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Networking Makes Our Customers Strong
Our customers continue to benefit from our leadership role in networking.
O
O

O
O
O
O
O

O

O

Continuing to outperform the industry in customer satisfaction and innovation
Ongoing investment to meet the needs of enterprises and individuals who place a high value on
communications
Offering unmatched capabilities in managing end-to-end mission critical business applications
Growing in our role as the industry-leading Internet protocol (IP) provider
Continuing to be recognized as a critical partner and a preeminent provider of high-quality services
Applying AT&T Labs expertise to networking solutions of tomorrow while meeting customer needs today
Delivering to customers a real return on their communications investment through more than 36,000
networking experts
Delivering international direct-dial service to more than 250 countries and territories, and in-bound calling services
for travelers in 200 countries through AT&T Direct Service
Offering real competitive choice in local, long distance and Internet services

Customers Make Us Strong
AT&T continues to benefit by satisfying the needs of its customers.
O
O
O
O
O
O
O

O

Managing nearly 50 million consumer relationships and 4 million business customers
Creating one of the strongest financial structures and best balance sheets in the industry
Realizing annual revenue of more than $37 billion
Leading the industry in customer satisfaction
Forming a unified communications services company with approximately 71,000 employees in 56 countries
Ranking as one of the largest online billers with more than 1 million residential customers billed online
Serving as the official provider of personal telecommunications services to military personnel serving at 529 military
bases and camps worldwide and on more than 200 U.S. Navy ships
Serving more than 2.4 million households, with residential AT&T Local Service in California, Georgia, Illinois,
Michigan, New Jersey, New York, Ohio and Texas as of December 2002, with more states to follow

AT&T: The World’s Networking Company
AT&T continues to operate the most sophisticated and reliable global network.
O
O

O
O

O
O
O
O
O
O

Having one of the most experienced leadership teams in the industry
Carrying more than 310 million long distance calls on an average business day, with more than
99.99 percent completed on the first try
Handling approximately 2,700 trillion bytes (terabytes) of data on an average business day
Leading in long distance backbone optical fiber, with more than 50,000 route miles, plus more than 19,600 route
miles of local metro fiber
Leading the industry in IP traffic growth
Operating 18 Internet data centers on three continents
Having approximately 2,900 points of presence in 850 cities across 60 nations
Operating with 95 intelligent optical switches online
Providing, first ever, 10-gigabit-per-second service (OC-192) coast-to-coast
Leading in Dense Wave Division Multiplexing with 1,600 systems deployed, including Ultravailable Networks for
enterprise customers

O With significant financial strength and leverage, a world-class network and
one of the most qualified management teams focused on transforming the
business, AT&T is committed and poised to meet the needs of its customers
better than anyone in the industry.

To my fellow shareowners: AT&T launched a new era in 2002 – an era marked by more than just a change in
the chairman’s office. We spun off our broadband operations. We completed our restructuring plan. And we introduced a new management team focused on serving customers and building shareowner value.
At the same time, we accelerated our efforts to transform AT&T from a primarily voice-services business to the
largest provider of data services globally. We reached out to expand our relationships with clients around the
world. And we realigned to focus less on individual products and more on integrated customer solutions.
In short, we rededicated ourselves to AT&T’s 118-year legacy of service, quality, reliability and innovation. And we
committed to fulfilling our mission as “the world’s networking company.”
While we focused on meeting our goals and seeking new market opportunities, waves of uncertainty crashed
around us. The world braced for terror and war. The global economy stumbled. And the telecom industry suffered
bankruptcies and accounting scandals that dragged down some of our major competitors.
Those telecom schemes conjured up phony market economics and phantom prices that no competitor could fairly
match. The companies involved saw their reputations rightly ravaged.
AT&T, on the other hand, rose above the fray. We remained focused on our customers. And we met our financial
commitments during every quarter of 2002, performing with both vigor and integrity. Today, we stand tall – proud to
be one of the world’s strongest telecommunications providers.
Our strength stems from our values, a set of principles we call “Our Common Bond.” Formally adopted in 1992, the
values of “Our Common Bond” have been hallmarks of the AT&T culture for more than 100 years: respect for individuals, dedication to helping customers, highest standards of integrity, innovation and teamwork. Our commitment to these principles cannot be compromised.
Nor can our commitment to our shareowners. That’s why we diligently overhauled our balance sheet. Our restructuring effort reduced AT&T’s net debt* from $56.2 billion entering 2001 to $12.9 billion at year-end 2002. We now
enjoy the lowest overall net debt level among the major players in our industry. *In 2001, net debt of $56.2 billion was
net of $0.1 billion of cash and $8.7 billion of monetizations. In 2002, net debt of $12.9 billion was net of $8.5 billion of
cash, $0.5 billion of monetizations and $0.7 billion of fluctuations in foreign debt value.
To maintain and magnify our financial strength, we’re taking a disciplined approach to our ongoing cost and capital structure. Our network investments are largely behind us. We spent $3.9 billion in capital expenditures in 2002,
roughly half the 1999 level, and we’ll continue to moderate our spending going forward.
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O With a focus on innovation and quality, AT&T Consumer is expanding its
portfolio of services, including offering local service (with long distance) in
more and more states. AT&T Consumer extended local service from two
states in 2001 to eight states in 2002.

We expect the majority of our 2003 capital expenditures to be demand-driven and success-based.
The primary focus for the remaining capital expenditures will be enhancing our products and processes to
improve service and customer satisfaction. So while our distressed competitors struggle to keep the lights on, we’ll
continue to pump up productivity and make it easier for customers to do business with AT&T.
Our business customers are already seeing results from the $500 million we invested in process improvements in
2002. We slashed cycle times an average of 30 percent last year. That means we cut days – and in some cases
weeks – off the interval between a customer’s order and activation of their services. The result: We’re setting new
standards for sales, provisioning, billing, and service that our competitors simply can’t match.
Our world-class standards and services are attracting new business customers, and winning back others concerned about our competitors’ well-publicized troubles. We continue to gain market share as companies increasingly value the reliability, sustainability, integrity and quality behind the AT&T brand. And we will continue to promote these advantages as we target new customers and take additional market share in 2003.
Maintaining our scale and broad customer base will be critical as we face ongoing declines in both consumer and
business long distance voice revenue. Several trends are driving these declines:
• Customers are relying increasingly on wireless and Internet communications.
• As the regional Bell operating companies (RBOCs) enter long distance, competition and price pressures mount.
• Our success in attracting quality wholesale customers has shifted the proportions of retail and reduced-priced
wholesale minutes that run on our network.
• Consumers are taking advantage of lower-priced products, such as prepaid cards and optional calling plans.
We are managing through these declines by scaling our growth investments. In 2002, we outperformed the industry and gained share in all the key growth areas of our business – business local, data, Internet protocol (IP) and
managed services. These services represent our future; their growth helps offset erosion in long distance voice.
These services are also at the heart of the AT&T Business portfolio, which will be the primary driver of our future
revenue. A leading global provider of enterprise communications solutions, AT&T Business delivered nearly
$27 billion to our top line in 2002.
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O Meeting the communications needs of businesses worldwide, AT&T Business
delivers the most reliable and secure enterprise networking solutions
with local-to-global reach, end-to-end network management and world-class
professional expertise.

For more than 4 million customers throughout the world, AT&T Business serves as a strategic partner. For large
enterprise customers, we design, deploy, manage and enhance networks, ensuring industry-leading levels of continuity and security. Our services help these customers unlock the full value of their applications while managing
complexity, improving productivity, and generating a return on their communications investments.
We are the undisputed industry leader in IP traffic, after being in sixth place only two years ago. Our IP traffic is
growing at a rate three times faster than the rest of the industry. The AT&T network now carries one petabyte of IP
traffic per day. To print that amount of data on paper, you’d need about 50 million trees – or a forest about the size
of New Orleans. And you’d need to re-grow that forest every day.
The growth of AT&T Business will be fueled, in part, by AT&T Consumer, which contributed nearly $12 billion in
2002 revenue. AT&T Consumer manages nearly 50 million customer relationships with consumers, who count on
us for long distance, local, Internet and transactional services such as prepaid cards and collect calling. If it were
a standalone business, AT&T Consumer would rank among the Fortune 200.
We continue to expand our consumer-service portfolio. A key growth area is our local and long distance bundle
for consumers and small businesses. We offer these combined services via the unbundled network elements platform, or UNE-P. That platform allows AT&T and other carriers to lease from the RBOCs the network elements needed to deliver services along the “last mile,” which connects directly to the customer.
By the end of 2002, more than 2.4 million AT&T residential customers were enjoying the features and price benefits
that result from UNE-P-based competition. As of this writing, our residential local customer base has grown to
more than 2.7 million. We also have more than 500,000 access lines serving small businesses through UNE-P.
More consumers and small businesses will enjoy the benefits of competition thanks to a Federal Communications
Commission decision announced in February 2003. The RBOCs lobbied furiously to eliminate UNE-P and reduce
competitive choice. But the Commission voted to allow the states to decide what works and what doesn’t, rather
than impose a national “one-size-fits all” mandate. Now we will take our case to the states, and we will enter markets where the economic conditions allow us to make a reasonable return using UNE-P.
Our initial results prove that customers want choice and will support a competitive offer. We have earned mid
single-digit market share or higher in our first eight markets. We doubled our number of all-distance customers in
2002. In the fourth quarter alone, the number grew more than 25 percent from the previous quarter.
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O With a shared commitment to Our Common Bond, values that bind the people
of AT&T, we are dedicated to satisfying customer needs and building value
for shareowners.

This pattern suggests strong opportunities for growth in new markets as well. We are confident that we will be offering all-distance service in a total of 14-17 markets by the end of 2003, with more markets to follow in 2004.
But getting there won’t be easy. In the months ahead, the challenges facing our industry will continue. Current market signals point to ongoing economic weakness and lower information technology (IT) spending.
We recognize, however, that this downturn won’t last forever. The economy will eventually rebound, IT spending
will resume, and telecom’s trials will end. We’re preparing today for that turnaround by channeling our resources to
keep our company strong and to position AT&T as one of the primary beneficiaries of an economic upswing.
We are the only long distance carrier upgrading its network and service portfolio. We are the only carrier enhancing its customer-facing processes and increasing its sales presence. And we are among the few carriers operating
from a position of unquestioned financial flexibility and strength. So when the market recovers, our scale, scope
and stability will make AT&T the company to beat.
That’s why, despite the challenges, I feel so proud and privileged to be leading this company. While our competitors are still getting organized, we’ve already assembled all the ingredients for success – solid financials, a worldclass global network, an intense customer focus and unshakable values.
Our people are passionate about satisfying customers and building shareowner value. We are working as one
company, one network and one team to deliver a level of excellence that others must strive mightily to attain.
Outstanding innovation, enduring integrity, and a flawless customer experience... our customers, employees and
you – our shareowners – should expect nothing less from the world’s networking company.

David Dorman
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SEVEN-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA(1)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
AND EARNINGS PER
SHARE
Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income (loss) from continuing
operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
INCOME FROM
CONTINUING
OPERATIONS
AT&T Common Stock Group:(2)
Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Earnings (loss) per basic share
Earnings (loss) per diluted
share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash dividends declared per
share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Liberty Media Group:(2)
(Loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) earnings per basic and
diluted share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
ASSETS AND CAPITAL
Property, plant and equipment,
net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total assets Ì continuing
operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total debtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shareowners' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Debt ratio(3) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
OTHER INFORMATION
Employees Ì continuing
operations(4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T year-end stock price per
share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2002

2001

$ 37,827
4,361

$ 42,197
7,832

1999
1998
1997
(Unaudited)
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

1996

$ 46,850
12,793

$ 49,609
12,544

$ 47,287
7,632

$ 46,226
6,835

$ 45,716
8,341

963

(2,640)

9,532

6,019

4,915

4,088

5,064

963
1.29

71
(0.91)

8,044
11.54

8,041
13.04

4,915
9.18

4,088
7.65

5,064
9.60

1.26

(0.91)

11.01

12.61

9.10

7.65

9.60

0.75

0.75

3.4875

4.40

4.40

4.40

4.40

Ì

(2,711)

1,488

(2,022)

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

(1.05)

0.58

(0.80)

Ì

Ì

Ì

$ 21,780

$ 19,177

$ 16,871

$ 25,604
55,272
55,272
18,812
22,574
12,312
64.7%

$ 26,803

26.11

$ 26,083

$ 25,587

62,329
165,481
24,025
34,159
51,680
86.3%

90,293
242,802
13,572
42,338
103,198
122.1%

89,554
169,499
13,543
25,091
78,927
83.7%

77,700

84,800

96,500

71,000
$

2000

$

37.19

$

27.57

$

80.81

40,134
59,550
5,555
6,638
25,522
36.7%

94,500
$

79.88

41,029
67,690
7,840
11,895
23,678
57.2%

116,800
$

65.02

38,229
63,669
8,861
11,334
21,092
61.6%

117,100
$

43.91

(1)

Prior period amounts have been restated to reÖect the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband and the 1-for-5 reverse
stock split, as applicable, both of which occurred on November 18, 2002.

(2)

In connection with the March 9, 1999 merger with Tele-Communications, Inc., AT&T issued separate
tracking stock for Liberty Media Group (LMG). LMG was accounted for as an equity investment prior to
its split-oÅ from AT&T on August 10, 2001. There were no dividends declared for LMG tracking stock.
AT&T Common Stock Group results exclude LMG.

(3)

Debt ratio reÖects debt from continuing operations as a percent of total capital, excluding discontinued
operations and LMG, (debt plus equity, excluding LMG and discontinued operations).

(4)

Data provided excludes LMG.
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AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
AT&T Corp. (AT&T or the ""Company'') is among the world's communications leaders, providing voice
and data communications services to large and small businesses, consumers and government agencies. We
provide domestic and international long distance, regional and local communications services, and data and
Internet communications services.
Restructuring of AT&T
In conjunction with the restructuring of AT&T announced on October 25, 2000, AT&T Broadband,
AT&T Wireless, and Liberty Media Corporation have all been separated from AT&T.
On November 18, 2002, AT&T spun-oÅ AT&T Broadband (which was primarily comprised of the
AT&T Broadband segment) to AT&T shareowners. Simultaneously, AT&T Broadband combined with
Comcast Corporation (Comcast). The combination was accomplished through a distribution of stock to
AT&T shareowners, who received 0.3235 of a share (1.6175 shares adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse stock split)
of Comcast Class A common stock for each share of AT&T they owned at market close on November 15,
2002, the record date. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) ruled that the transaction qualiÑed as tax-free for
AT&T and its shareowners for U.S. federal income tax purposes, with the exception of cash received for
fractional shares. Approximately 1.2 billion new Comcast shares were issued to AT&T shareowners at a value
of approximately $31.1 billion, based on the Comcast stock price on November 18, 2002. AT&T shareowners
received a 56% economic stake and a 66% voting interest in new Comcast.
In connection with the non-pro rata spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, AT&T wrote up the net assets of
AT&T Broadband to fair value. This resulted in a noncash gain of $1.3 billion, which represented the
diÅerence between the fair value of the AT&T Broadband business at the date of the spin-oÅ and AT&T's
book value in AT&T Broadband, net of certain charges triggered by the spin-oÅ and their related income tax
eÅect. These charges included compensation expense due to the accelerated vesting of stock options as well as
the enhancement of certain incentive plans. The gain was recorded in 2002 as a ""Gain on disposition of
discontinued operations.''
On August 10, 2001, AT&T completed the split-oÅ of Liberty Media Corporation as an independent,
publicly-traded company. Since, at the time of disposition, AT&T did not exit the line of business that Liberty
Media Group (LMG) operated in, LMG was not accounted for as a discontinued operation. AT&T redeemed
each outstanding share of Class A and Class B Liberty Media Group (LMG) tracking stock for one share of
Liberty Media Corporation's Series A and Series B common stock, respectively. The IRS ruled that the splitoÅ of Liberty Media Corporation qualiÑed as a tax-free transaction for AT&T, Liberty Media and their
shareowners. For accounting purposes, the deemed eÅective split-oÅ date was July 31, 2001. The operating
results from August 1, 2001, through August 10, 2001, were deemed immaterial to our consolidated results.
The LMG tracking stock, which had reÖected 100% of the performance of LMG, was issued in 1999 in
connection with AT&T's acquisition of Tele-Communications, Inc. (TCI). AT&T did not have a controlling
Ñnancial interest in LMG for Ñnancial accounting purposes; therefore, AT&T's ownership in LMG was
reÖected as an investment accounted for under the equity method in AT&T's consolidated Ñnancial
statements. The amounts attributable to LMG are reÖected in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations as ""Equity (losses) earnings from Liberty Media Group'' prior to its split-oÅ from AT&T.
On July 9, 2001, AT&T completed the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless as a separate, independently-traded
company. All AT&T Wireless Group tracking stock was converted into AT&T Wireless common stock on a
one-for-one basis and 1,136 million shares of AT&T Wireless common stock held by AT&T were distributed
to AT&T common shareowners on a basis of 0.3218 of a share (1.609 shares adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse
stock split) of AT&T Wireless for each AT&T share outstanding. AT&T common shareowners received
whole shares of AT&T Wireless and cash payments for fractional shares. The IRS ruled that the transaction
qualiÑed as tax-free for AT&T and its shareowners for U.S. federal income tax purposes, with the exception of
7

AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
cash received for fractional shares. For accounting purposes, the deemed eÅective split-oÅ date was June 30,
2001. The impact of operating results from July 1, 2001 through July 9, 2001, were deemed immaterial to our
consolidated results. The split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless resulted in a noncash tax-free gain of $13.5 billion, which
represented the diÅerence between the fair value of the AT&T Wireless tracking stock at the date of the splitoÅ and AT&T's book value in AT&T Wireless. This gain was recorded in 2001 as a ""Gain on disposition of
discontinued operations.'' At the time of split-oÅ, AT&T retained approximately $3 billion, or 7.3%, of AT&T
Wireless common stock.
AT&T issued the AT&T Wireless tracking stock in April 2000, to track the Ñnancial performance of
AT&T Wireless Group. The shares initially issued tracked approximately 16% of the performance of AT&T
Wireless Group.
The earnings attributable to AT&T Wireless Group are excluded from the earnings available to AT&T
Common Stock Group and are included in ""Net (loss) from discontinued operations.'' Similarly, the earnings
and losses related to LMG are excluded from the earnings available to AT&T Common Stock Group. The
remaining results of operations of AT&T, including the Ñnancial performance of AT&T Wireless Group not
represented by the tracking stock, is referred to as the AT&T Common Stock Group and is represented by
AT&T common stock.
Forward-Looking Statements
This document may contain forward-looking statements with respect to AT&T's Ñnancial condition,
results of operations, cash Öows, dividends, Ñnancing plans, business strategies, operating eÇciencies or
synergies, budgets, capital and other expenditures, network build-out and upgrade, competitive positions,
availability of capital, growth opportunities for existing products, beneÑts from new technologies, availability
and deployment of new technologies, plans and objectives of management, and other matters.
These forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, those relating to the future business
prospects, revenue, working capital, liquidity, capital needs, network build-out, interest costs and income, are
necessary estimates reÖecting the best judgment of senior management that rely on a number of assumptions
concerning future events, many of which are outside AT&T's control, and involve a number of risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to diÅer materially from those suggested by the forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements should, therefore, be considered in light of various important
factors that could cause actual results to diÅer materially from estimates or projections contained in the
forward-looking statements including, without limitation:
‚ the impact of existing and new competitors in the markets in which AT&T competes, including
competitors that may oÅer less expensive products and services, desirable or innovative products,
technological substitutes, or have extensive resources or better Ñnancing,
‚ the impact of oversupply of capacity resulting from excessive deployment of network capacity,
‚ the ongoing global and domestic trend toward consolidation in the telecommunications industry, which
may have the eÅect of making the competitors of these entities larger and better Ñnanced and aÅord
these competitors with extensive resources and greater geographic reach, allowing them to compete
more eÅectively,
‚ the eÅects of vigorous competition in the markets in which the Company operates, which may decrease
prices charged, increase churn and change customer mix and proÑtability,
‚ the ability to establish a signiÑcant market presence in new geographic and service markets,
‚ the availability and cost of capital,
8

AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
‚ the impact of any unusual items resulting from ongoing evaluations of the business strategies of the
Company,
‚ the requirements imposed on the Company or latitude allowed to competitors by the Federal
Communications Commission (FCC) or state regulatory commissions under the Telecommunications
Act of 1996 or other applicable laws and regulations,
‚ the risks associated with technological requirements, wireless, Internet or other technology substitution
and changes and other technological developments,
‚ the results of litigation Ñled or to be Ñled against the Company, and
‚ the possibility of one or more of the markets in which the Company competes being impacted by
changes in political, economic or other factors, such as monetary policy, legal and regulatory changes
or other external factors over which the Company has no control.
The words ""estimate,'' ""project,'' ""intend,'' ""expect,'' ""believe,'' ""plan'' and similar expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date this document is Ñled. Moreover, in the future,
AT&T, through its senior management, may make forward-looking statements about the matters described in
this document or other matters concerning AT&T.
The discussion and analysis that follows provides information management believes is relevant to an
assessment and understanding of AT&T's consolidated results of operations for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001, and 2000, and Ñnancial condition as of December 31, 2002 and 2001.
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
AT&T's Ñnancial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles that are generally
accepted in the United States. The preparation of these Ñnancial statements requires management to make
estimates and judgments that aÅect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses as well as
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Management continually evaluates its estimates and
judgments including those related to useful lives of plant and equipment, pension and other postretirement
beneÑts, income taxes and legal contingencies. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
diÅer from these estimates under diÅerent assumptions or conditions. We believe that of our signiÑcant
accounting policies, the following may involve a higher degree of judgment (see note 2 to the consolidated
Ñnancial statements for a complete discussion of AT&T's signiÑcant accounting policies):
Estimated useful lives of plant and equipment Ì We estimate the useful lives of plant and equipment in
order to determine the amount of depreciation and amortization expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The majority of our telecommunications plant and equipment is depreciated using the group method,
which develops a depreciation rate (annually) based on the average useful life of a speciÑc group of assets,
rather than the individual asset as would be utilized under the unit method. Such estimated life of the group
changes as the composition of the group of assets changes and their related lives. The estimated life of the
group is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as taking into account anticipated
technological or other changes. If technological changes were to occur more rapidly than anticipated or in a
diÅerent form than anticipated, the useful lives assigned to these assets may need to be shortened, resulting in
the recognition of increased depreciation and amortization expense in future periods. Likewise, if the
anticipated technological or other changes occur more slowly than anticipated, the life of the group could be
extended based on the life assigned to new assets added to the group. This could result in a reduction of
depreciation and amortization expense in future periods. A one-year decrease or increase in the useful life of
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AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
these assets would increase or decrease depreciation and amortization expense by approximately $0.5 billion.
We review these types of assets for impairment annually, or when events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may be not be recoverable over the remaining lives of the assets. In assessing impairments,
we follow the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, ""Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,'' utilizing cash Öows which take into account management's estimates of future operations.
Pension and postretirement beneÑts Ì The amounts recognized in the Ñnancial statements related to
pension and postretirement beneÑts are determined on an actuarial basis utilizing several diÅerent assumptions. A signiÑcant assumption used in determining our net pension credit (income) and postretirement
beneÑt expense is the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. In 2002, we used an expected longterm rate of return of 9.0%. For 2003, we will lower this expected rate of return to 8.5%. In determining this
revised rate, we considered the current and projected investment portfolio mix and estimated long-term
investment returns for each asset class. The projected portfolio mix of the plan assets is developed in
consideration of the expected duration of related plan obligations and as such is more heavily weighted toward
equity investments, including public and private equity positions. Plan assets also include Ñxed income and
real estate investments. The actual return on pension plan assets over the last 10 and 15 years has been 10.4%
and 10.9%, respectively, although the return for the last two years has been negative. The expected return on
plan assets is determined by applying the expected long-term rate of return to the market-related value of plan
assets. The market-related value is a calculated value that amortizes the diÅerence between actual and
expected returns evenly over a Ñve-year period. The combined market-related value of plan assets of the
pension and postretirement beneÑt plans as of December 31, 2002, was approximately $19.5 billion; about
$2 billion higher than the related fair value of plan assets. The expected return on assets of the pension and
postretirement beneÑt plans included in 2002 operating income was income of $1.7 billion. The reduction in
the expected long-term rate of return to 8.5% will reduce the expected return credit by approximately
$0.1 billion in 2003.
Another signiÑcant estimate is the discount rate used in the annual actuarial valuation of pension and
postretirement beneÑt plan obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate at year-end, we
considered the current yields on high quality corporate Ñxed-income investments with maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the beneÑt obligations. As of December 31, 2002, we reduced the discount rate
by 75 basis points to 6.5%. Changes in the discount rate do not have a material impact on our results of
operations.
Income taxes Ì Deferred income taxes are provided for the eÅect of temporary diÅerences between the
amounts of assets and liabilities recognized for Ñnancial reporting purposes and the amounts recognized for
income tax purposes. We measure deferred tax assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates that, if changed,
would result in either an increase or decrease in the provision for income taxes in the period of change. A onepercentage point increase in the enacted federal income tax rate as of December 31, 2002, would decrease net
income by approximately $0.1 billion. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that a
deferred tax asset will not be realized. In assessing the likelihood of realization, management considers
estimates of future taxable income, the character of income needed to realize future tax beneÑts, and all
available evidence.
Legal contingencies Ì We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings and have accrued amounts
that represent our estimate of the probable outcome of these matters. Such estimates of outcome are derived
from consultation with outside counsel, as well as an assessment of litigation and settlement strategies. In
addition, we may be responsible for a portion of certain legal proceedings associated with former aÇliates
pursuant to separation and distribution agreements. Such agreements provide AT&T to share in the cost of
certain litigation (relating to matters while aÇliated with AT&T) if a judgment or settlement exceeds certain
10
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thresholds. With the exception of the Sparks matter (see Discontinued Operations discussion), as of
December 31, 2002, we are not aware of, and have not been advised of, any matters in which it is probable that
costs would be incurred in excess of the thresholds above which we would be required to share in the costs.
However, in the event these former subsidiaries were unable to meet their obligations with respect to these
liabilities due to Ñnancial diÇculties, AT&T could be held responsible for all or a portion of these costs,
irrespective of the sharing agreements. Depending on how these matters are resolved, these costs could be
material.
Consolidated Results of Operations
The comparison of 2002 results with 2001 results was impacted by the April 1, 2002, unwind of Concert,
our joint venture with British Telecommunications plc (BT). The venture's assets and customer accounts
were distributed back to the parent companies. Under the partnership termination agreement, each of the
partners generally reclaimed the customer contracts and assets that were initially contributed to the joint
venture, including international transport facilities and gateway assets. In addition, AT&T assumed certain
other assets that BT originally contributed to the joint venture. As a result, 2002 results include revenue and
expenses associated with these customers and businesses for the period April 1, 2002 through December 31,
2002, while 2001 and the Ñrst quarter of 2002 includes our proportionate share of Concert's earnings and
related charges in ""Net losses related to other equity investments.'' In addition, the assets reclaimed are
consolidated in each line item of the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2002, versus an equity
investment in Concert at December 31, 2001, included in ""Other assets.''
For the period August 28, 2000, through December 31, 2002, AT&T's interest in AT&T Latin America
was fully consolidated in AT&T's results. In December 2002, AT&T signed a non-binding term-sheet for the
sale of its 69% economic interest (95% voting interest) in AT&T Latin America and began accounting for
AT&T Latin America as an asset held for sale (the operations of AT&T Latin America did not qualify for
treatment as a discontinued operation). As a result of this action, as well as our belief that no changes to the
plan will be made and that a sale will be completed within one year, we recorded an impairment charge of
$1.0 billion to write down AT&T Latin America's assets and liabilities to fair value, and reclassiÑed these
assets and liabilities to ""Other current assets'' and ""Other current liabilities'' at December 31, 2002.
The consolidated Ñnancial statements of AT&T reÖect AT&T Broadband and AT&T Wireless as
discontinued operations. AT&T Broadband was spun-oÅ on November 18, 2002, and AT&T Wireless was
split-oÅ on July 9, 2001. Accordingly, the revenue, costs and expenses and cash Öows of AT&T Broadband
and AT&T Wireless have been excluded from the respective captions in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and have been reported through their respective
dates of separation as ""Net (loss) from discontinued operations'' and as ""Net cash (used in) provided by
discontinued operations.'' In addition, the assets and liabilities of AT&T Broadband have been excluded from
the respective captions in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2001, and have been reported as
""Current assets of discontinued operations,'' ""Non-current assets of discontinued operations,'' ""Current
liabilities of discontinued operations,'' ""Non-current liabilities of discontinued operations,'' ""Minority Interest
of Discontinued Operations,'' and ""Company-Obligated Convertible Quarterly Income Preferred Securities of
Subsidiary Trust Holding Solely Subordinated Debt Securities of AT&T of Discontinued Operations.''
A 1-for-5 reverse stock split of AT&T common stock was eÅected on November 18, 2002. Shares
(except shares authorized), per share amounts and stock prices were restated to reÖect the stock split on a
retroactive basis. In addition, our stock prices were restated to reÖect the AT&T Broadband disposition.
EÅective July 1, 2000, the FCC eliminated Primary Interexchange Carrier Charges (PICC or per-line
charges) that AT&T pays for residential and single-line business long distance customers. The elimination of
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these per-line charges resulted in lower access expense as well as lower revenue, since AT&T has historically
billed its customers for these charges.
Revenue

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

AT&T Business Services ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Consumer ServicesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate and OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$26,558
11,527
(258)

$27,705
14,843
(351)

$28,559
18,643
(352)

Total Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$37,827

$42,197

$46,850

Total revenue decreased 10.4%, or $4.4 billion, in 2002 compared with 2001, and decreased 9.9%, or
$4.7 billion, in 2001 compared with 2000. The decrease in both years was largely driven by continued declines
in long distance voice revenue of approximately $5.2 billion in 2002 and $5.5 billion in 2001. In addition, 2001
revenue declined by $0.5 billion due to the elimination of PICC. The long distance voice decline reÖects the
impact of pricing pressures and substitution, including a shift from higher-priced products such as business
retail to lower-priced products such as business wholesale and prepaid cards. Partially oÅsetting the declines
was growth in data/Internet Protocol(IP)/managed services within AT&T Business Services and local voice
services within both AT&T Consumer Services and AT&T Business Services of approximately $0.8 billion in
2002, and $1.4 billion in 2001. The 2002 variances include a positive impact attributable to the reintegration of
customers and assets from the unwind of Concert.
In 2003, we expect our long distance voice revenue to continue to decline due to ongoing competition and
product substitution. This decline in revenue is expected to be partially oÅset by growth in our local voice
services and data/IP/managed services.
Revenue by segment is discussed in greater detail in the segment results section.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Access and other connection ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Costs of services and productsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Selling, general and administrative ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net restructuring and other charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$10,790
8,363
7,988
4,888
1,437

$12,085
8,621
8,064
4,559
1,036

$13,139
8,235
7,387
4,538
758

Total operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$33,466

$34,365

$34,057

Operating income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating margin ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 4,361
$ 7,832
$12,793
11.5%
18.6%
27.3%

Included within access and other connection expenses are costs we pay to connect calls using the facilities
of other service providers, as well as the Universal Service Fund contributions and per-line charges mandated
by the FCC. Costs paid to telephone companies outside of the United States to connect international calls are
also included within access and other connection expenses.
Access and other connection expenses decreased 10.7%, or $1.3 billion, in 2002 compared with 2001.
Approximately $0.5 billion of this decrease was due to lower Universal Service Fund contributions and lower
per-line charges, which were primarily driven by the decline in long distance voice revenue. In addition,
domestic access charges decreased by $0.5 billion primarily due to product mix and FCC-mandated access12
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rate reductions. International connection charges decreased by approximately $0.4 billion driven primarily by
lower rates and the reintegration of customers and assets from the unwind of Concert. These reductions were
partially oÅset by an increase in local connectivity costs. Since most of the Universal Service Fund
contributions, per-minute access-rate reductions and per-line charges are passed through to the customer,
these reductions generally result in a corresponding reduction in revenue.
In 2003, we expect access rates to be Öat or slightly lower than 2002 as most of the FCC-mandated rate
reductions have been implemented. We also expect our local connectivity costs to continue to increase as we
continue to grow our local voice business.
Access and other connection expenses decreased 8.0%, or $1.1 billion, in 2001 compared with 2000.
Approximately $1.6 billion of the decrease was due to mandated reductions in per-minute access rates, lower
per-line charges and lower international connection rates. In July 2000, per-line charges that AT&T paid for
residential and single-line business customers were eliminated by the FCC. These reductions were partially
oÅset by a $0.6 billion increase due to overall volume growth primarily related to local and international
services and higher Universal Service Fund contributions.
Costs of services and products include the costs of operating and maintaining our networks, costs to
support our outsourcing contracts, the provision for uncollectible receivables and other service-related costs,
including the cost of equipment sold.
Costs of services and products decreased $0.3 billion, or 3.0%, in 2002 compared with 2001. Approximately $0.5 billion of the decrease was due to the overall impact of lower revenue and related costs at AT&T
Consumer Services and AT&T Business Services. In addition, costs decreased approximately $0.2 billion due
to losses on certain long-term contracts recorded in 2001 by AT&T Business Services. These decreases were
partially oÅset by an increase of $0.1 billion in AT&T Business Services' provision for uncollectible receivables
primarily attributable to the weak economy. Cost of services and products also increased as a result of the
reintegration of customers and assets from the unwind of Concert.
In 2001, these costs increased $0.4 billion, or 4.7%, compared with 2000. The increase was driven by
approximately $0.6 billion of higher costs associated with our growth businesses, primarily at AT&T Business
Services, including the cost of equipment sold. In addition, costs increased approximately $0.3 billion due to
estimated losses on certain long-term contracts at AT&T Business Services and a lower pension credit
(income) primarily due to the lower expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and the eÅects of lower
actual plan assets. These increases were partially oÅset by approximately $0.4 billion of lower costs associated
with decreased revenue, primarily lower volumes at AT&T Business Services, including our international
operations, and lower payphone compensation costs.
Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses decreased $76 million, or 0.9%, in 2002 compared
with 2001. This decrease was driven by a reduction in the number of residential customers as well as cost
control eÅorts of $0.7 billion, and lower transaction costs of $0.2 billion associated with the AT&T
restructuring. Partially oÅsetting these decreases was $0.3 billion of lower pension credits (income) primarily
due to the lower expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and the eÅects of lower actual plan assets,
and $0.3 billion associated with increased marketing and sales expenses for new local consumer service
oÅerings and increased investment for business sales and customer care development. SG&A expenses also
increased as a result of the reintegration of customers and assets from the unwind of Concert.
We expect SG&A expenses, and to a lesser extent costs of services and products, will be unfavorably
impacted in the future due to lower pension credits (income) and higher post-retirement expenses resulting
from a lower expected long-term rate of return on plan assets in 2003 of 8.5% compared with the 9% rate used
in 2002 and the eÅects of lower actual plan assets. We also expect SG&A expenses to be impacted by higher
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compensation costs associated with stock options reÖecting the decision to expense stock option grants,
commencing with options granted in 2003.
SG&A expenses increased $0.7 billion, or 9.2%, in 2001 compared with 2000. Increased expenses in
support of growth businesses, primarily data/IP/managed services, and local voice services, drove approximately $0.5 billion of the increase. These expenses included infrastructure development costs associated with
increased sales headcount, advertising, and other general and administrative expenses. A lower pension credit
(income) and higher postretirement expense resulting from decreased return on plan assets, combined with
higher compensation accruals, contributed approximately $0.3 billion to the increase. Also included in the
increased SG&A expenses were transaction costs of approximately $0.2 billion associated with AT&T's
restructuring announced in October 2000. Partially oÅsetting these increases was the impact of cost control
eÅorts as well as decreased customer care and billing expenses of approximately $0.7 billion, primarily from
AT&T Consumer Services.
Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $0.3 billion, or 7.2%, in 2002 compared with 2001. The
increase was primarily due to a larger asset base resulting from continued infrastructure investment supporting
our growth business. The increase was partially oÅset by the adoption of SFAS No. 142, ""Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets'' as of January 1, 2002, which eliminated the amortization of goodwill. In 2001, we recorded
$0.2 billion of amortization expense on goodwill.
In 2003, the adoption of SFAS No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,'' which requires
that obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets be recorded as liabilities only if
such liability is unavoidable and legally enforceable, will have a favorable impact on depreciation expense.
(See ""New Accounting Pronouncements'' for a further discussion of SFAS No. 143.) However, we continue
to invest in our asset base, which will increase depreciation expense in 2003.
Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $21 million in 2001 compared with 2000. The increase
was primarily due to a larger asset base resulting from continued infrastructure investment. Certain
infrastructure assets placed in service in 2001 extended the average life of the overall assets, partially
mitigating the impact of the larger asset base.
Total capital expenditures were $3.9 billion, $5.6 billion and $6.8 billion for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease in spending was primarily due to cost containment eÅorts. We continue to focus the
majority of our capital spending on our growth businesses of data/IP/managed services.
In 2002, net restructuring and other charges were $1,437 million. The net charge included $1,203 million
related to AT&T Business Services, $211 million related to AT&T Consumer Services and $23 million related
to the Corporate and Other group.
Included in the $1,437 million was a $1,029 million charge for the impairment of the net assets of our
consolidated subsidiary, AT&T Latin America. In December 2002, the AT&T Board of Directors approved a
plan for AT&T to sell its approximate 95% voting stake in AT&T Latin America in its current condition. On
December 31, 2002, AT&T signed a non-binding term sheet for the sale of our shares within one year for a
nominal amount. As a result of this plan, we classiÑed AT&T Latin America as an asset ""held for sale'' at fair
market value, in accordance with SFAS No. 144. Consequently, there are approximately $160 million of
assets (principally cash and accounts receivable) included in Other Current Assets and approximately
$160 million of liabilities (principally secured short-term debt) included in Other Current Liabilities. The
$1,029 million charge to write the assets and liabilities down to their fair values was reported within our AT&T
Business Services segment.
Also included in net restructuring and other charges was a $204 million impairment charge related to
certain Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) assets (including internal-use software, licenses, and property, plant &
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equipment) that will not be utilized by AT&T as result of changes to our ""DSL build'' strategy. Instead of
building DSL capabilities in all geographic areas initially targeted, we have signed an agreement with Covad
Communications to oÅer DSL services over their network. As a result, the assets in these areas were impaired.
This charge was reported within our AT&T Consumer Services segment.
In 2002, AT&T recorded net business restructuring charges of $204 million. These activities consisted of
new exit plans totaling $377 million and reversals of $173 million. The new plans primarily consisted of
$334 million for employee separation costs primarily in AT&T Business Services, and $39 million of facility
closing reserves. Slightly more than 4,800 employees will be separated in conjunction with these exit plans,
approximately one-half of which are management employees and one-half are non-management employees.
The majority of these employee separations will be involuntary and are largely the result of improved processes
and automation in provisioning and maintenance of services for business customers. Due to the timing of these
separations, these exit plans did not yield cash savings in 2002, nor did we realize a beneÑt to operating income
in 2002. Future cash and expense savings is dependent upon the timing of actual separations and associated
payments. In the Ñrst full year following the completion of these exit plans, we expect to realize approximately
$300 million of cash savings and beneÑt to operating income. Approximately 14% of the employees aÅected by
these exit plans had left their positions by December 31, 2002, and we expect those remaining to leave their
positions by the end of 2003. Termination beneÑts of approximately $328 million were paid throughout 2002
for the current and prior year's separation plans.
The $173 million reversal primarily consisted of $124 million of employee separation costs and
$26 million related to prior plan facility closings no longer deemed to be necessary. The reversals were
primarily due to management's determination that the restructuring plan established in the fourth quarter of
2001 for certain areas of AT&T Business Services, including network services, needed to be modiÑed given
current industry conditions, as well as the redeployment of certain employees to diÅerent functions within the
Company.
During 2001, net restructuring and other charges were $1,036 million which were primarily comprised of
$862 million for employee separations, of which $388 million related to beneÑts to be paid from pension assets
as well as pension and postretirement curtailment losses, and $166 million for facility closings. The
restructuring and exit plans support our cost reduction eÅorts through headcount reductions across all
segments of the business, primarily network support and customer care functions in AT&T Business Services.
These charges were slightly oÅset by the reversal of $33 million related to business restructuring plans
announced in the fourth quarter 1999 and the Ñrst quarter 2000 (of which $15 million related to employee
separations and $18 million related to contract terminations). The net charge consisted of $570 million related
to AT&T Business Services, $31 million related to AT&T Consumer Services and $435 million related to the
Corporate and Other group.
The charge covered separation costs for approximately 10,000 employees, approximately one-half of
whom were management and one-half were non-management employees. More than 9,000 employee
separations related to involuntary terminations and the remaining 1,000 were voluntary.
During 2000, we recorded $758 million of net restructuring and other charges which included $586 million for employee separations associated with AT&T's initiative to reduce costs, of which $144 million
primarily related to pension and postretirement curtailment losses. The charge also included $91 million
related to the government-mandated disposition of AT&T Communications (U.K.) Ltd., which would have
competed directly with Concert, and $62 million of network lease and other contract termination costs
associated with penalties incurred as part of notifying vendors of the termination of these contracts during the
year. The net charge consisted of $395 million related to AT&T Business Services, $97 million related to
AT&T Consumer Services and $266 million related to the Corporate and Other group.
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These plans covered separation costs for approximately 6,100 employees, mainly in AT&T Business
Services, including network operations, primarily for the consolidation of customer-care and call centers.
Approximately one-half of whom were management employees and one-half were non-management employees. Approximately 5,500 of the employee separations related to involuntary terminations and approximately
600 related to voluntary terminations.
AT&T's operating income in 2002 decreased $3.5 billion, or 44.3%, compared with 2001 and decreased
$5.0 billion, or 38.8%, in 2001 compared with 2000. AT&T's operating margin was 11.5% in 2002 compared
with 18.6% in 2001 and 27.3% in 2000. The decline in 2002 was primarily due to the decline in revenue
combined with increased net restructuring and other charges and increased depreciation and amortization
expenses. Also contributing to the decline was a lower rate of decline in selling, general and administrative
expenses and costs of services and products compared with the revenue rate of decline. The decline in
operating margin in 2001 was primarily due to a decline in revenue combined with increased selling, general
and administrative expenses, costs of services and products, net restructuring and other charges, and
depreciation and amortization expenses. The operating margin declines in both years reÖect pricing pressures
and a shift from higher-margin retail long distance services to lower-margin wholesale long distance service
and other lower-margin services such as lower-priced optional calling plans and prepaid cards.
We expect the operating margin to continue to decline in 2003 despite the expected beneÑt from lower
net restructuring and other charges. The expected decline is primarily due to a continued decline in the long
distance business reÖecting the impact of accelerating growth in wholesale services as well as a shift to lowermargin services such as lower-priced optional calling plans and prepaid cards.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Other (expense) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(77)

$1,327

$1,190

Other (expense) income in 2002 was expense of $77 million compared with income of $1.3 billion in
2001. The unfavorable variance of $1.4 billion was primarily due to $1.2 billion of higher net gains on sales of
businesses and investments in 2001, including gains on the sale of AT&T's retained interest in AT&T Wireless
and Japan Telecom. The unfavorable variance was also due to impairments of $0.2 billion recorded in 2002
related to certain leases of aircraft which are accounted for as leveraged leases, $0.2 billion of lower income
related to mark-to-market adjustments on derivative instruments and lower investment-related income of
$0.2 billion. Favorably impacting other (expense) income were lower investment impairment charges of
$0.4 billion in 2002, primarily driven by lower impairment charges for Time Warner Telecom.
At December 31, 2002, we had investments in leveraged leases of aircraft of $601 million ®$(185) million
net of deferred taxes©, which we lease to airlines as well as aircraft related companies. Several airline carriers
who have leases have recently experienced Ñnancial diÇculties. While these airlines are current on their lease
rental payments, we could record additional impairment charges in 2003 if any of these carriers declare
bankruptcy or renegotiate their lease terms with us. In addition, in the event of bankruptcy or a renegotiation
of lease terms, if any portion of the non-recourse debt is canceled, such amounts would result in taxable
income to AT&T and accordingly a cash tax expense.
Other (expense) income in 2001 was income of $1.3 billion compared with income of $1.2 billion in
2000. The favorable variance of $0.1 billion was driven primarily by higher net gains on the sales of businesses
and investments of $0.5 billion which reÖect the gains on the sales of AT&T's retained interest in AT&T
Wireless and Japan Telecom in 2001, $0.2 billion related to the settlement, in 2001, of disputes relating to the
buyer's obligations resulting from the sale of AT&T Universal Card Services, and higher income related to
mark-to-market adjustments on derivative instruments of $0.2 billion. Partially oÅsetting these increases was
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investment impairment charges of $0.5 billion, primarily consisting of the impairment of Time Warner
Telecom, and lower interest income of $0.2 billion.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Interest (expense)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(1,448)

$(1,493)

$(1,503)

Interest expense decreased $45 million, or 3.0%, in 2002 compared with 2001, and decreased $10 million,
or 0.6%, in 2001 compared with 2000. The decrease in both periods was primarily due to lower average debt
balances, reÖecting our debt reduction eÅorts, partially oÅset by higher average interest rates. Average interest
rates were higher in both periods due to the mix of short-term and long-term debt. The 2002 average rate was
adversely aÅected by the $10 billion bond oÅering in November 2001. We expect interest expense to be lower
in future periods as a result of our debt reduction eÅorts.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

(Provision) for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EÅective tax rateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(1,587) $(2,890) $(4,487)
56.0%
37.7%
35.9%

The eÅective tax rate is the provision for income taxes as a percent of income from continuing operations
before income taxes. The 2002 rate was adversely impacted by approximately 14.9 percentage points due to
the $1.0 billion impairment charge recorded in 2002 relating to AT&T's interest in AT&T Latin America for
which no tax beneÑt was recorded. Also negatively impacting the 2002 rate was the impact of AT&T Latin
America's losses from operations for which no tax beneÑt was recorded because realization of a tax beneÑt was
not likely to occur and the losses were not includable in AT&T's consolidated income tax return.
In 2001, the eÅective tax rate was positively impacted by tax beneÑts associated with the tax-free gain
from the disposal of a portion of AT&T's retained interest in AT&T Wireless in a debt-for-equity exchange,
partially oÅset by the consolidation of AT&T Latin America's pretax losses for which no tax beneÑt was
provided.
In 2000, the eÅective tax rate was positively impacted by the tax beneÑts associated with certain legal
entity restructurings and investments.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Minority interest incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$114

$131

$41

Minority interest income represents an adjustment to AT&T's income to reÖect the less than 100%
ownership of consolidated subsidiaries. Minority interest income decreased $17 million in 2002 compared with
2001 as a result of lower net losses of AT&T Latin America in 2002. In December 2002, AT&T fully utilized
the minority interest balance related to AT&T Latin America; therefore, we will no longer record minority
interest income related to AT&T Latin America.
Minority interest income increased $0.1 billion in 2001 compared with 2000 primarily due to AT&T
Latin America, which we acquired on August 28, 2000; therefore, 2001 includes a full year of results,
compared with a partial year in 2000.
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For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Equity (losses) earnings from Liberty Media Group ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$Ì

$(2,711)

$1,488

Equity (losses) earnings from LMG, which are recorded net of income taxes, were a loss of $2.7 billion in
2001, compared with earnings of $1.5 billion in 2000. The decline of $4.2 billion was largely driven by gains on
dispositions recorded in 2000, including gains associated with the mergers of various companies that LMG had
investments in, as well as higher stock compensation expense in 2001 compared with 2000. Partially oÅsetting
these declines were lower impairment charges recorded on LMG's investments to reÖect other than temporary
declines in value. Equity losses for 2001 reÖect results through July 31, 2001, the deemed eÅective date of the
split-oÅ.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Net (losses) earnings related to other equity investmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(400)

$(4,836)

$10

Net (losses) related to other equity investments, which are recorded net of income taxes, declined
$4.4 billion in 2002 compared with 2001 due to lower net losses of $2.1 billion for Concert, $1.5 billion for
AT&T Canada and $0.8 billion for Net2Phone, primarily resulting from impairment charges recorded in 2001.
Net (losses) related to other equity investments, net of income taxes, were $4.8 billion in 2001 compared
with income of $10 million in 2000. The unfavorable variance of $4.8 billion was primarily due to greater
losses of $2.2 billion for Concert, $1.8 billion for AT&T Canada and $0.8 billion for Net2Phone primarily due
to impairment charges recorded in 2001.
The after-tax amortization of excess basis associated with nonconsolidated investments, recorded as a
reduction of income, totaled $36 million in 2001, and $37 million in 2000.
EÅective January 1, 2002, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, we no longer amortize
excess basis related to nonconsolidated investments.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Net (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(14,513)
1,324

$(4,052)
13,503

$(4,863)
Ì

Net (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, primarily represents the operating results of
AT&T Broadband and AT&T Wireless, which AT&T disposed of and accounted for as discontinued
operations. Accordingly, the revenue, costs and expenses of AT&T Broadband and AT&T Wireless have been
excluded from the respective captions in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
In 2002, the net (loss) from discontinued operations included a loss of $14.5 billion from the
discontinued operations of AT&T Broadband, and an estimated loss on the litigation settlement associated
with the business of Lucent Technologies Inc., which was spun-oÅ from AT&T in 1996 and accounted for as a
discontinued operation. Sparks, et al. v. AT&T and Lucent Technologies Inc. et al., was a class action lawsuit
Ñled in 1996 in Illinois state court. On August 9, 2002, a settlement proposal was submitted to and accepted by
the court. In accordance with the separation and distribution agreement between AT&T and Lucent
Technologies Inc., AT&T recorded its proportionate share of the settlement and estimated legal costs, which
totaled $33 million, net of tax. Depending upon the number of claims submitted and accepted, the actual cost
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of the settlement to AT&T may be less than stated amounts, but it is not possible to estimate the amount at
this time.
In 2002, we realized a noncash gain on the disposition of AT&T Broadband of $1.3 billion, which
represented the diÅerence between the fair value of AT&T Broadband at the date of the spin-oÅ and AT&T's
book value, net of certain charges triggered by the spin-oÅ of $159 million, and the related income tax eÅect of
$61 million. These charges included compensation expense due to the accelerated vesting of stock options as
well as the enhancement of certain incentive plans.
In 2001, the net (loss) from discontinued operations included a loss of $4.2 billion from the discontinued
operations of AT&T Broadband, and income of $150 million from the discontinued operations of AT&T
Wireless.
In 2001, we realized a tax-free noncash gain on the disposition of discontinued operations of $13.5 billion,
representing the diÅerence between the fair value of the AT&T Wireless tracking stock at the date of the splitoÅ and AT&T's book value.
In 2000, the net (loss) from discontinued operations consisted of a loss of $5.4 billion from the
discontinued operations of AT&T Broadband, and income of $536 million from the discontinued operations of
AT&T Wireless.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(856)

$904

$Ì

EÅective January 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.'' In
accordance with SFAS No. 142, franchise costs were tested for impairment as of January 1, 2002, by
comparing the fair value to the carrying value (at the market level). As a result of this test, an impairment loss
(related to discontinued operations) of $0.9 billion, net of income taxes of $0.5 billion, was recorded in 2002.
EÅective January 1, 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 133, ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.'' The cumulative eÅect of this accounting change, net of applicable income taxes, was
comprised of $0.4 billion for AT&T Group (of which $0.2 billion related to discontinued operations) and
$0.5 billion for LMG. The $0.4 billion recorded by AT&T Group was attributable primarily to fair value
adjustments of equity derivative instruments embedded in indexed debt instruments and warrants held in
public and private companies. The $0.5 billion recorded by LMG represents the impact of separately recording
the embedded call option obligations associated with LMG's senior exchangeable debentures.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Dividend requirements of preferred stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Premium on exchange of AT&T Wireless tracking stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$Ì
Ì

$(652)
(80)

$Ì
Ì

Dividend requirements of preferred stock were $0.7 billion in 2001. The preferred stock dividend
represented interest in connection with convertible preferred stock issued to NTT DoCoMo in January of 2001
as well as accretion of the beneÑcial conversion feature associated with this preferred stock. The beneÑcial
conversion feature was computed upon the issuance of the NTT DoCoMo preferred stock and represented the
excess of the fair value of the preferred shares issued over the proceeds received. This beneÑcial feature was
being accreted over the time period DoCoMo was required to hold the shares. On July 9, 2001, in conjunction
with the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless Group, these preferred shares were converted into AT&T Wireless
common stock. As a result, the beneÑcial conversion feature was fully accreted.
19

AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
In May 2001, AT&T completed an exchange oÅer of AT&T common stock for AT&T Wireless tracking
stock. In 2001, this exchange resulted in a premium of $80 million, which was a reduction of net income
available to common shareowners. The premium represented the excess of the fair value of the AT&T
Wireless tracking stock issued over the fair value of the AT&T common stock exchanged and was calculated
based on the closing share prices of AT&T common stock and AT&T Wireless tracking stock on May 25,
2001.
Segment Results
AT&T's results are segmented according to the customers we service: AT&T Business Services and
AT&T Consumer Services. The balance of AT&T's continuing operations (excluding LMG) is included in a
""Corporate and Other'' group. This group primarily reÖects corporate staÅ functions and the elimination of
transactions between segments. The discussion of segment results includes revenue, earnings before interest
and taxes (EBIT), capital additions and total assets.
EBIT is the primary measure used by AT&T's chief operating decision makers to measure AT&T's
operating results and to measure segment proÑtability and performance. AT&T calculates EBIT as operating
income plus other (expense) income, net, pretax minority interest income and pretax net (losses) earnings
related to other equity investments. Interest and income taxes are not factored into the segment proÑtability
measure used by the chief operating decision makers; therefore, trends for these items are discussed on a
consolidated basis. Management believes EBIT is meaningful to investors because it provides an analysis of
operating results using the same measure used by AT&T's chief operating decision makers. EBIT for AT&T
was $3.9 billion, $1.5 billion and $14.0 billion for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. We provide EBIT, a measure not calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP), for AT&T in order to provide investors a means to evaluate the Ñnancial results of each
segment in relation to total AT&T. The table below provides a reconciliation of EBIT to operating income.
Our calculations of EBIT may or may not be consistent with the calculation of this measure by other public
companies. EBIT should not be viewed by investors as an alternative to a GAAP measure of performance,
such as operating income.
Reconciliation of EBIT to Operating Income

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

EBIT ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deduct:
Other (expense) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minority interest income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Pretax net (losses) related to other equity investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$3,886

Operating income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$4,361

(77)
114
(512)

$1,507
1,327
131
(7,783)
$7,832

$13,973
1,190
41
(51)
$12,793

Total assets for each segment generally include all assets, except intercompany receivables. Prepaid
pension assets and corporate-owned or leased real estate are generally held at the corporate level, and
therefore are included in the Corporate and Other group. The total assets of discontinued operations and the
related (loss) as well as the gain on disposition are not reÖected in the Corporate and Other group. Capital
additions for each segment include capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment, additions to
nonconsolidated investments and additions to internal-use software.
Our existing segments reÖect certain managerial changes that were implemented during 2002. The
changes primarily include the following: revenue previously recorded by the AT&T Business Services segment
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as ""Internal revenue'' for services provided to certain other AT&T units and then eliminated within the
Corporate and Other group is now recorded as a contra-expense by AT&T Business Services; the results of
certain units previously included in the Corporate and Other group were transferred to the AT&T Business
Services segment; the Ñnancial impacts of SFAS No. 133 that were previously recorded in the Corporate and
Other group were transferred to the appropriate segments. In addition, AT&T Consumer Services and total
AT&T revenue was restated in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issue 01-9, ""Accounting
for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer,'' which requires cash incentives given to customers
previously recorded as advertising and promotion expense now to be recorded as a reduction of revenue when
recognized in the income statement, unless an identiÑable beneÑt is received in exchange. All prior periods
have been restated to reÖect these changes.
ReÖecting the dynamics of our business, we continuously review our management model and structure,
which may result in additional adjustments to our operating segments in the future.
AT&T Business Services
AT&T Business Services oÅers a variety of global communications services to small and medium-sized
businesses, large domestic and multinational businesses and government agencies. Their services include long
distance, international, toll-free and local voice; data and IP services; managed services; and wholesale
transport services (sales of services to service resellers). Data and IP services are broad categories of services
in which data (i.e. e-mail, video or computer Ñles) is transported from one location to another. In packet
services, data is divided into eÇciently sized components and transported between packet switches until it
reaches its Ñnal destination, where it is reassembled. Packet services includes IP, frame relay and Asynchronous Transfer Mode or ""ATM.'' Managed services delivers end-to-end enterprise networking solutions by
managing networks, servers and applications.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

External revenue
Services revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Equipment and product salesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$25,856
379

$26,947
317

$27,900
236

Total external revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Internal revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

26,235
323

27,264
441

28,136
423

Total revenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$26,558

$27,705

$28,559

EBIT ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Capital additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 1,638
3,716

$(2,305)
5,451

$ 5,917
6,841

At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$36,365

$40,316

Revenue
AT&T Business Services revenue decreased $1.1 billion, or 4.1%, in 2002 compared with 2001, and
decreased $0.9 billion, or 3.0% in 2001 compared with 2000. The declines were primarily driven by a decline in
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long distance voice revenue of $1.7 billion in 2002 and $2.0 billion in 2001. Partially oÅsetting the decline was
growth in data/IP/managed services, including equipment sales, and local voice services of $0.7 billion in
2002 and $1.3 billion in 2001.
In 2003, we expect long distance voice revenue will continue to decline, reÖecting continued competitive
pressure as well as an accelerating shift in the retail/wholesale mix. We expect the declines in long distance
voice revenue will continue to be partially oÅset by growth in local and data/IP/managed services.
Long distance voice revenue declined approximately 12% in 2002 compared with 2001, and approximately 13% in 2001 compared with 2000, reÖecting the continued impact of pricing pressures and a change in
the wholesale-retail product mix. While long distance volumes grew at a low single-digit rate in 2002 and
2001, the increase was driven by growth in lower-priced wholesale volumes that was essentially oÅset by a
decrease in higher-priced retail volumes. These factors are expected to continue to negatively impact revenue
in 2003.
Data/IP/managed services, excluding equipment and product sales, increased approximately 5% in 2002
compared with 2001. Growth was driven by increased sales in packet services, which grew at a rate of
approximately 17%, partially oÅset by a decline in private line services (a service in which the connection is
dedicated to the customer), reÖecting an industry trend of customers migrating from private line services to
more cost-eÅective and technologically-advanced packet services. When we include equipment and product
sales, data/IP/managed services increased approximately 6%.
Data/IP/managed services increased approximately 13% in 2001 compared with 2000, with or without
the impact of equipment sales. The growth was led by packet services, which grew at a mid-20 percent rate.
Local voice services revenue grew approximately 13% in 2002 compared with 2001 and more than 20% in
2001 compared with 2000. This growth reÖects our continued focus on increasing the utilization of our existing
footprint. AT&T added approximately 676,000 access lines in 2002. Access lines at the end of 2002 and 2001
were approximately 3.6 million and 2.9 million, respectively.
AT&T Business Services internal revenue decreased $0.1 billion in 2002 compared with 2001 and was
relatively Öat in 2001 compared with 2000. The impact of internal revenue is included in the revenue by
product discussions, above. The decrease in internal revenue in 2002 compared with 2001 was primarily due to
the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless on July 9, 2001, as these sales are now reported as external revenue, partially
oÅset by an increase in sales to AT&T Broadband. Sales to AT&T Broadband were recorded as internal
revenue through the November 18, 2002, date of disposition. Subsequent to November 18, 2002, sales to
AT&T Broadband, now Comcast, are recorded as external revenue.
EBIT
In 2002, EBIT increased $3.9 billion, or 171.1%, compared with 2001. The improvement was primarily
due to a decrease in pretax net losses related to equity investments of $3.5 billion for Concert and $2.6 billion
for AT&T Canada driven primarily by impairment charges and equity losses recorded in 2001, as well as
$0.4 billion in lower restructuring charges recorded in 2002. This improvement was partially oÅset by a
decrease in the long distance voice business resulting primarily from the impact of pricing pressures, a
$1.0 billion impairment charge recorded in 2002 for AT&T Latin America, and a gain of approximately
$0.5 billion recorded on the sale of our stake in Japan Telecom in 2001.
In 2001, EBIT decreased $8.2 billion, or 138.9%, compared with 2000. The decline was primarily due to
higher losses of $3.5 billion related to Concert and $3.0 billion related to AT&T Canada, primarily due to
impairment charges recorded in 2001. Also reÖected in the decline was the impact of long distance voice
pricing pressure, as well as a shift from higher-margin long distance services to lower-margin growth services.
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Other Items
Capital additions decreased $1.7 billion in 2002 compared with 2001 and $1.4 billion in 2001 compared
with 2000 as we continue to maintain a disciplined focus on capital spending. Although these declines reÖect
signiÑcantly lower capital expenditures for network assets that support all services provided by AT&T, we
continue to focus the majority of our capital spending on our data, IP and local voice products.
Total assets decreased $4.0 billion, or 9.8%, at December 31, 2002, compared with December 31, 2001.
The decrease reÖects lower receivables primarily driven by the settlement of receivables from Concert in
connection with the Concert unwind, improved cash collections and lower revenue. The decrease also reÖects
the write-oÅ of the assets associated with the impairment of AT&T Latin America.
AT&T Consumer Services
AT&T Consumer Services provides a variety of communications services to residential customers
including domestic and international long distance; transaction-based long distance, such as operator-assisted
service and prepaid phone cards; local and local toll (intrastate calls outside the immediate local area); and
dial-up Internet.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EBIT ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Capital additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$11,527
2,647
127

$14,843
4,875
140

$18,643
6,893
148

At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 1,674

$ 2,141

Revenue
AT&T Consumer Services revenue declined $3.3 billion, or 22.3%, in 2002 compared with 2001, and
$3.8 billion, or 20.4%, in 2001 compared with 2000. The decline in both periods was primarily due to long
distance revenue, which fell $3.6 billion in both 2002 and 2001. These declines were largely driven by
traditional long distance voice services, such as domestic and international dial services (long distance calls
where the number ""1'' is dialed before the call), and domestic calling card services. The traditional long
distance voice services revenue was negatively impacted by substitution and the impact of ongoing competition, which has led to a loss of market share. In addition, the continued migration of customers to optional
calling plans and lower-priced products, such as prepaid cards, has also negatively impacted revenue. The
revenue decline for 2001 also reÖects a $0.5 billion impact due to the elimination of per-line charges in July
2000. Partially oÅsetting these declines was growth of $0.2 billion in both 2002 and 2001 related to local
services. Calling volumes declined at a low-teen percentage rate in 2002, and a low double-digit percentage
rate in 2001 as a result of competition and wireless and Internet substitution, partially oÅset by an increase in
prepaid card usage.
In 2002, approximately 5% of AT&T Consumer Services total revenue and more than 50% of prepaid
card revenue was related to a contract with Wal-Mart, Inc. If this contract is not renewed at the next renewal
date, January 31, 2004 (subject to early termination if certain events occur), AT&T Consumer Services
revenue would be adversely aÅected if we are unsuccessful in selling the cards through a diÅerent channel. We
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expect product substitution, competition (including the continued entry of the Regional Bell Operating
Companies (RBOCs) into the long distance market) and customer migration to lower-priced calling plans
and products to continue to negatively impact AT&T Consumer Services revenue in 2003.
EBIT
EBIT declined $2.2 billion, or 45.7%, in 2002 compared with 2001 and declined $2.0 billion, or 29.3%, in
2001 compared with 2000. The declines in both periods were primarily due to the revenue declines in the long
distance business. Also impacting the EBIT decline in 2002 was an asset impairment charge of $0.2 billion
recorded in 2002 related to the Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) assets that will no longer be utilized by AT&T
as a result of the agreement with Covad Communications to oÅer DSL services over their network.
EBIT margin declined to 23.0% in 2002 from 32.8% in 2001 and 37.0% in 2000. The declining EBIT
margins primarily reÖect the impact of customers who substitute long distance calling with wireless and
Internet service and remain AT&T Consumer Services customers as well as customers who migrate to
optional calling plans and lower-priced products. These customers generate less revenue, while their billing,
customer care and Ñxed costs remain. The 2002 margin was also negatively impacted by the DSL asset
impairment charge. The 2001 margin decline was also impacted by a slight increase in marketing spending
targeted at high-value customers, partially oÅset by the receipt of $0.2 billion in 2001 from the settlement of
disputes relating to obligations resulting from the sale of AT&T Universal Card Services to Citigroup in 1998.
Other Items
In 2002, capital additions decreased $13 million, or 9.2%, compared with 2001. In 2001, capital additions
decreased $8 million, or 5.2%, compared with 2000.
Total assets declined $0.5 billion to $1.7 billion at December 31, 2002, compared with $2.1 billion at
December 31, 2001. This decline was primarily due to lower accounts receivable, reÖecting lower revenue and
slightly improved cash collections.
Corporate and Other
This group primarily reÖects the results of corporate staÅ functions and the elimination of transactions
between segments.
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EBIT ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Capital additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ (258)
(399)
63

$ (351)
(1,063)
150

$ (352)
1,163
1,594

At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$17,233

$19,872

Revenue
In 2002, Corporate and Other revenue was negative $258 million, compared with negative $351 million in
2001. The year-over-year change was primarily due to lower internal revenue with AT&T Wireless due to its
split-oÅ on July 9, 2001, partially oÅset by an increase in internal revenue with AT&T Broadband. In 2003, as
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a result of the AT&T Broadband spin-oÅ, the elimination of internal revenue residing in Corporate and Other
will decline signiÑcantly.
Revenue for Corporate and Other was essentially Öat in 2001 compared with 2000, as lower internal
revenue from AT&T Wireless due to its split-oÅ in 2001 was oÅset by increased sales from AT&T Business
Services to AT&T Broadband.
EBIT
In 2002, EBIT improved $0.7 billion to a deÑcit of $0.4 billion. The improvement was largely due to
lower investment impairment charges of approximately $1.4 billion, primarily related to our investments in
Net2Phone and Time Warner Telecom in 2001. Also contributing to the EBIT improvement was lower
business restructuring charges as well as lower transaction costs associated with AT&T's restructuring
announced in October of 2000, totaling $0.6 billion. These EBIT improvements were partially oÅset by lower
net gains of $0.7 billion driven by a $0.5 billion tax-free gain recorded in 2001 associated with the disposal of a
portion of AT&T's retained interest in AT&T Wireless. Also oÅsetting the EBIT improvements were a lower
pension credit (income) of $0.3 billion primarily driven by a lower long-term expected rate of return and the
eÅects of lower actual plan assets, a $0.2 billion impairment charge recorded in 2002 of certain leases of
aircraft which are accounted for as leveraged leases, and a $0.2 billion variance due to mark-to-market
adjustments on derivative instruments.
EBIT declined $2.2 billion to a deÑcit of $1.1 billion in 2001 compared with 2000. The decline was
largely due to $1.5 billion of greater investment impairment charges in 2001, primarily for Net2Phone and
Time Warner Telecom. Also contributing to the decline were higher restructuring and other charges and
higher transaction costs associated with AT&T's restructuring announced in October 2000, totaling $0.4 billion; and a lower pension credit (income) and higher postretirement expense of $0.3 billion. These declines
were partially oÅset by the $0.5 billion gain associated with the disposal of a portion of AT&T's retained
interest in AT&T Wireless.
Other Items
Capital additions decreased $87 million in 2002 primarily due to a decline in the purchase of investments.
Capital additions decreased $1.4 billion in 2001 primarily as a result of our investment in Net2Phone in 2000.
Total assets decreased $2.6 billion, to $17.2 billion in 2002. The decrease was primarily driven by a lower
cash balance at December 31, 2002, and a decrease in investments primarily due to mark-to-market
adjustments, partially oÅset by derivative-related activity.
Financial Condition
At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total shareowners' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$55,272
42,960
12,312

$165,481
105,778
51,680

Total assets decreased $110.2 billion, or 66.6%, to $55.3 billion at December 31, 2002, compared with
December 31, 2001. The November 18, 2002, spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband accounted for $103.2 billion of the
decrease. The decrease also reÖects lower receivables of $3.1 billion primarily driven by improved cash
collections, the settlement of receivables from Concert in connection with the Concert unwind, and lower
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revenue. In addition, assets decreased as a result of a $2.7 billion reduction in cash and the write-oÅ of
$1.1 billion of assets associated with the impairment of our interest in AT&T Latin America.
Total liabilities decreased $62.8 billion, or 59.4%, to $43.0 billion at December 31, 2002, from
$105.8 billion at December 31, 2001. The November 18, 2002, spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband contributed
$48.9 billion to the decrease. Also contributing to the decrease in liabilities was $11.6 billion in lower debt
reÖecting the pay-down of short-term debt and AT&T Broadband's assumption of $3.5 billion of AT&T longterm debt in connection with its spin-oÅ. In addition, total liabilities decreased as a result of the settlement of
AT&T's obligation to purchase the publicly owned shares of AT&T Canada and due to the impairment of our
interest in AT&T Latin America.
Minority interest of discontinued operations decreased $3.3 billion at December 31, 2002, compared with
December 31, 2001. The decrease was a result of the exchange or redemption of all TCI PaciÑc preferred
shares for AT&T common stock and the November 18, 2002, spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband. Quarterly income
preferred securities of discontinued operations decreased $4.7 billion at December 31, 2002, compared with
December 31, 2001, as these securities were converted into Comcast class A common stock in conjunction
with the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband.
Total shareowners' equity decreased $39.4 billion, or 76.2%, to $12.3 billion at December 31, 2002, from
$51.7 billion at December 31, 2001. This decrease was primarily due to a decline of $26.6 billion in additional
paid-in capital principally due to a $31.0 billion reduction resulting from the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband
(including compensation expense triggered by the spin-oÅ), partially oÅset by an increase of $2.5 billion from
the June 2002 common stock oÅering and $2.1 billion from the exchange or redemption of all TCI PaciÑc
preferred shares for AT&T common shares. Retained earnings decreased $13.1 billion at December 31, 2002,
compared with December 31, 2001, primarily due to the net (loss) from discontinued operations partially
oÅset by a $1.3 billion gain on the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband.
During 2002, when AT&T declared its quarterly dividends to the AT&T Common Stock Group
shareowners, the Company was in an accumulated deÑcit position. As a result, the Company reduced
additional paid-in capital by $0.6 billion, the entire amount of the dividends declared.
Liquidity
Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Provided by operating activities of continuing operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Used in) investing activities of continuing operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Used in) provided by Ñnancing activities of continuing
operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Used in) provided by discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$10,483
(1,429)

$10,005
(4,295)

$10,641
(32,678)

(6,041)
(5,679)

(2,778)
7,683

23,745
(2,746)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(2,666)

$10,615

$(1,038)

Net cash provided by operating activities of AT&T's continuing operations of $10.5 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2002, was generated primarily by $11.4 billion of income from continuing operations,
adjusted to exclude noncash income items and net gains on sales of businesses and investments, and a decrease
in accounts receivable of $0.7 billion reÖecting cash collections and lower revenue. Partially oÅsetting these
sources of cash were a net change in other operating assets and liabilities of $1.4 billion due to lower tax
liabilities as well as lower payroll and beneÑt-related liabilities.
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Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations of $10.0 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2001, primarily included $11.8 billion of income from continuing operations, adjusted to
exclude noncash income items and net gains on sales of businesses and investments, and a decrease in
accounts receivable of $0.9 billion due to lower revenue and strong cash collections in December 2001.
Partially oÅsetting the cash provided were net changes in other operating assets and liabilities of $2.1 billion
due to tax payments, and a decrease in accounts payable of $0.5 billion. Net cash provided by operating
activities of continuing operations of $10.6 billion for the year ended December 31, 2000, primarily included
income from continuing operations, excluding noncash income items and the adjustment for net gains on sales
of businesses and investments, of $13.8 billion, partially oÅset by an increase in accounts receivable of
$2.4 billion due to an increase in the receivables from Concert and slow customer collections at AT&T
Business Services, a decrease in accounts payable of $0.6 billion and a net change in other assets and liabilities
of $0.1 billion.
AT&T's investing activities resulted in a net use of cash of $1.4 billion in 2002, compared with
$4.3 billion in 2001 and $32.7 billion in 2000. During 2002, AT&T spent $3.9 billion on capital expenditures,
paid $3.4 billion to settle the AT&T Canada obligation and received a $5.8 billion cash distribution from
AT&T Broadband in conjunction with its spin-oÅ. In 2001, AT&T spent $5.8 billion on capital expenditures,
and received approximately $1.6 billion from the sales of investments. During 2000, AT&T used approximately $23.7 billion for acquisitions of businesses, primarily MediaOne Group, Inc., and spent $7.0 billion on
capital expenditures.
During 2002, net cash used in Ñnancing activities was $6.0 billion, compared with net cash used in
Ñnancing activities of $2.8 billion in 2001, and net cash provided by Ñnancing activities of $23.7 billion in 2000.
During 2002, AT&T made net payments of $8.2 billion to reduce debt, paid dividends of $0.6 billion, and
received $2.7 billion from the issuance of AT&T common stock, primarily due to the sale of 46 million shares
in the second quarter. The proceeds from this stock sale, along with funds from other short-term sources, were
used to satisfy AT&T's obligation to the AT&T Canada shareholders (see investing activities above).
During 2001, AT&T made net debt payments of $6.5 billion, paid AT&T Wireless $5.8 billion to settle an
intercompany loan in conjunction with its split-oÅ from AT&T, and paid dividends of $0.5 billion. Partially
oÅsetting these outÖows in 2001 was the receipt of $9.8 billion from the issuance of convertible preferred stock
to NTT DoCoMo. During 2000, AT&T received $10.3 billion from the AT&T Wireless Group tracking stock
oÅering and had net borrowings of debt of $17.0 billion. These sources of cash were partially oÅset by the
payment of $3.0 billion in dividends.
Working Capital and Other Sources of Liquidity
At December 31, 2002, our working capital ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.32,
reÖecting the cash balance on hand as a result of cash received in conjunction with the spin-oÅ of AT&T
Broadband.
During the second and third quarters of 2002, AT&T renewed both its AT&T Business Services and
AT&T Consumer Services customer accounts receivable securitization facilities. Together, the programs
provide up to $2.0 billion of available Ñnancing, limited by the eligible receivables balance, which varies from
month to month. Proceeds from the securitization are recorded as a borrowing and included in short-term
debt. At December 31, 2002, approximately $0.2 billion was outstanding. The terms of these facilities have
been extended to June (AT&T Business Services) and July (AT&T Consumer Services) of 2003.
At December 31, 2002, we had a $3.0 billion 364-day credit facility available to us that was entered into
on October 9, 2002. The credit facility contains a Ñnancial covenant that requires AT&T to meet a net debtto-EBITDA ratio (as deÑned in the credit agreement) not exceeding 2.25 to 1.00 for four consecutive quarters
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ending on the last day of each Ñscal quarter. It also contains a covenant that requires AT&T to maintain
$1.27 billion in unencumbered cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities. At December 31, 2002, we
were in compliance with these covenants.
AT&T reduced its debt in 2002 as a result of the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband on November 18, 2002.
The third party debt of TCI and MediaOne Group, Inc. of $15.0 billion was included in the net assets spun-oÅ
with AT&T Broadband. This debt was included in the liabilities of discontinued operations at December 31,
2001. At the time of spin-oÅ, AT&T and AT&T Broadband settled approximately $9.4 billion of intercompany debt and transaction-related costs. AT&T received a $5.8 billion cash distribution from AT&T
Broadband, which is reÖected in the cash balance at December 31, 2002. The remainder of the intercompany
debt and transaction-related costs was settled via a debt exchange. In the AT&T Broadband debt exchange,
$3.5 billion of outstanding AT&T notes were exchanged for notes that, upon completion of the spin-oÅ of
AT&T Broadband, became notes of AT&T Broadband and are unconditionally guaranteed by Comcast and
certain of its subsidiaries. In addition, AT&T completed another exchange in which $4.6 billion of outstanding
AT&T notes were exchanged for new AT&T notes that remain solely obligations of AT&T and, upon
completion of the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, have revised terms, including revised maturity dates and/or
interest rates.
We anticipate funding our operations in 2003 primarily with cash and cash equivalents on hand as well as
cash from operations. If economic conditions worsen or do not improve and/or competition and product
substitution accelerate beyond current expectations, our cash Öow from operations would decrease, negatively
impacting our liquidity. However, we believe our access to the capital markets is adequate to provide the
Öexibility in funding our operations that we desire. Sources of liquidity include the commercial paper market,
a $2.4 billion universal shelf registration, the securitization program and the credit facility. However, we
cannot provide any assurances that all of these sources of funding will be available at the time they are needed
or in the amounts required.
Credit Ratings and Related Debt Implications
During 2002, AT&T's long-term debt ratings were lowered by Moody's and Fitch. None of AT&T's
ratings are currently under review or on Credit Watch for further downgrade. As of December 31, 2002, our
credit ratings were as follows:
Credit Rating Agency

Standard & Poor's ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Moody's ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Fitch RatingsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Short-Term
Rating

Long-Term
Rating

Outlook

A-2
P-2
F-2

BBB°
Baa2
BBB°

Stable*
Negative
Stable*

* Subsequent to December 31, 2002, the Outlook was changed to ""Negative.''

Our access to the capital markets as well as the cost of our borrowings is aÅected by our debt ratings. In
2002, as a result of the Moody's downgrade, the interest rate on $10.0 billion of notes sold in November 2001,
increased by 50 basis points eÅective with interest payment periods that began after November 15, 2002, for
the majority of the notes. The additional interest expense in 2002 was approximately $8 million and is
estimated to be an additional $50 million in 2003. Additional debt rating downgrades could require AT&T to
pay higher rates on certain existing debt, prepay certain operating leases and post cash collateral for certain
interest-rate and equity swaps if we are in a net payable position.
If our ratings were downgraded below investment grade by Standard & Poor's or Moody's, there are
provisions in our securitization programs, which could require the outstanding balances to be paid by the
collection of the receivables. We do not believe downgrades below investment grade are likely to occur.
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The holders of certain private debt with an outstanding balance of $0.9 billion at December 31, 2002,
have an annual put right to cause AT&T to repay the debt upon payment of an exercise fee. In exchange for
the debt holders agreeing not to exercise their put right, AT&T posted a cash-collateralized letter of credit in
2002 totaling $0.4 billion and expiring March 2005. The annual put right for 2003 expired on February 13,
2003, without exercise by the debt holders. The holders could accelerate repayment of the debt based on
certain events such as the occurrence of unfavorable local law or regulation changes in its country of operation.
If AT&T's debt ratings are further downgraded, AT&T's access to the capital market may be restricted
and/or such replacement Ñnancing may be more costly or have additional covenants than we had in
connection with our debt at December 31, 2002. In addition, the market environment for Ñnancing in general,
and within the telecommunications sector in particular, has been adversely aÅected by economic conditions
and bankruptcies of other telecommunication providers. If the Ñnancial markets become more cautious
regarding the industry/ratings category we operate in, our ability to obtain Ñnancing would be further reduced.
This could negatively impact our ability to pursue acquisitions, make capital expenditures to expand our
network or to pay dividends.
Cash Requirements
Our cash needs for 2003 will be primarily related to capital expenditures, repayment of debt and payment
of dividends. We expect our capital expenditures for 2003 to be approximately $3.3 billion to $3.5 billion. On
January 31, 2003, we completed the repurchase, with cash, of $3.7 billion of notes with interest rates of 6.375%
and 6.5% and maturities of 2004 and 2013. These notes were classiÑed as long-term debt at December 31,
2002. In addition, in connection with the early retirement in February 2003, of exchangeable notes that are
indexed to AT&T Wireless stock, we made cash payments of $152 million to the debt holders, funded in part
by $72 million of proceeds from the sale of our remaining AT&T Wireless shares.
AT&T is not required to make cash contributions to its principle pension plans in 2003. However, based
on the Ñnal valuation of private equities and real estate for 2002, cash contributions could be required in 2004.
Contractual Cash Obligations
The following summarizes AT&T's contractual cash obligations and commercial commitments at
December 31, 2002, and the eÅect such obligations are expected to have on liquidity and cash Öow in future
periods.
Contractual Obligations

(1)

Total

Payments Due by Period
Less than
2-3
4-5
1 Year
Years
Years
(Dollars in millions)

After 5
Years

Long-term debt, including current
maturities(1),(2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Capital lease obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating leases(3) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unconditional purchase obligations(4),(5),(6),(7)

$19,988
101
2,124
674

$5,470
4
480
268

$2,368
17
729
291

$4,201
7
455
115

$7,949
73
460
Ì

Total Contractual Cash Obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$22,887

$6,222

$3,405

$4,778

$8,482

We had long-term debt that was indexed to securities (monetized debt). The total balance of monetized debt of $519 million at
December 31, 2002, had scheduled maturity dates of 2005 and 2006. However, in February 2003, we redeemed those notes with a
combination of shares and cash of $152 million. The portion of debt that was settled in shares is excluded from the above table and the
cash payments were included in ""Less than 1 Year'' in the above table.
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We had long-term debt, with original maturity dates of 2004 and 2013, with a carrying value of $3.7 billion at December 31, 2002.
This debt was settled in the Ñrst quarter of 2003 and included in ""Less than 1 Year'' in the above table. In connection with the
settlement of this debt, we paid premiums of $124 million, which are excluded from the above table.

(3)

Under certain real estate operating leases, we could be required to make payments to the lessors of up to $447 million at the end of the
lease term (lease terms range from 2004 through 2007). The actual amount paid, if any, would be reduced by amounts received by the
lessor upon remarketing of the property. These amounts are excluded from the above table due to the uncertainty of the dollar
amounts to be paid, if any, as well as the timing of such amounts.

(4)

AT&T Consumer Services has unconditional purchase obligations with multiple vendors to purchase a broad range of products and
services, including the outsourcing of billing and customer care services, and the purchase of certain promotional items. Such
obligations extend through 2005.

(5)

AT&T has contractual obligations to utilize network facilities from local exchange carriers with terms greater than one year. Since the
contracts have no minimum volume requirements, and are based on an interrelationship of volumes and discounted rates, we assessed
our minimum commitment based on penalties to exit the contracts, assuming we exited the contracts on December 31, 2002. At
December 31, 2002, the penalties AT&T would have incurred to exit all of these contracts would have been $2.1 billion. These
amounts are excluded from the above table due to the uncertainty of the dollar amounts to be paid, if any, as well as the timing of such
amounts.

(6)

AT&T has contractual obligations under two contracts that extend through 2006 for services that include computer application design,
development, maintenance and testing as well as the operation of data centers that host many of the computer applications operated
throughout AT&T. Payments under these contracts are based in part on the volume and type of services we require. Since AT&T can
terminate either or both of these contracts for convenience at any time by paying a fee, we assessed our minimum commitment based
on the termination for convenience fees, which decline each year during the term of the contracts. If we elect to exit both of these
contracts, the maximum termination fees we would be obligated to pay in the year of termination would be approximately $359 million
in 2003, $308 million in 2004, $239 million in 2005, or $164 million in 2006. These termination fees are excluded from the above table
due to the uncertainty of the dollar amounts to be paid, if any, as well as the timing of such amounts.

(7)

AT&T has contractual obligations that extend through 2009 for services that include payroll and related human resource services.
Payments under these contracts are based on level of service required and Öuctuates based on volume. Since there is no minimum
service requirement and we can exit the contract at any time by paying a termination fee, we assessed our minimum commitment
based on these termination fees, assuming we terminated the contracts on December 31 of each year. Such termination fees would be
approximately $50 million in 2003, $44 million in 2004, $38 million in 2005, $23 million in 2006, $11 million in 2007 or $3 million in
2008. These amounts are excluded from the above table due to the uncertainty of the dollar amounts to be paid, if any, as well as the
timing of such amounts.

From time to time, we guarantee the debt of our subsidiaries, and, in connection with the separation of
certain subsidiaries, these guarantees remained and we issued guarantees for certain debt and other
obligations. These guarantees relate to our former subsidiaries AT&T Capital Corp., NCR, AT&T Wireless
and AT&T Broadband.
We currently hold no collateral for such guarantees, and have not recorded corresponding obligations. We
have been provided with cross-guarantees or indemniÑcations by third parties for certain of these guarantees.
In the event that the Ñnancial condition of the parties to the various agreements deteriorates to the point at
which they declare bankruptcy, other third parties to the agreements could look to us for payment.
Commitments by Period
Other Commercial Commitments

(1)
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Total
Amounts
Committed

Less than
2-3
4-5
1 Year
Years
Years
(Dollars in millions)

After 5
Years

Guarantees of debt(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Guarantees of other obligations(2),(3) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 506
4,968

$ Ì
180

$ Ì
4,646

$ Ì
142

$506
Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$5,474

$180

$4,646

$142

$506

Prior to the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, we had guaranteed certain debt of AT&T Broadband, which we continue to provide. Under
the terms of the merger agreement between AT&T Broadband and Comcast, if Comcast does not call the debt in 2003, they must
provide us with a letter of credit in the amount of $500 million. In addition, Comcast has provided us with an indemniÑcation for this
debt.
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Prior to the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, we had guaranteed various obligations of AT&T Broadband, including operating leases for
real estate, surety bonds, and equity hedges, which we continue to provide. Comcast has provided indemniÑcations for the full amount
of these guarantees.

(3)

AT&T provides a guarantee of an obligation that AT&T Wireless has to DoCoMo. In connection with an investment DoCoMo made
in AT&T Wireless, AT&T and AT&T Wireless agreed that under certain circumstances, including that AT&T Wireless fails to meet
speciÑc technological milestones by June 30, 2004 (revised to December 31, 2004, pursuant to an amended agreement between AT&T
Wireless and DoCoMo), DoCoMo would have the right to require AT&T Wireless to repurchase its AT&T Wireless common stock
for $9.8 billion plus interest. In the event AT&T Wireless is unable to satisfy its entire obligation, AT&T is secondarily liable for up to
$3.65 billion, plus interest.

Risk Management
We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest and foreign exchange rates, as well as changes in
equity prices associated with previously aÇliated companies. In addition, we are exposed to market risk from
Öuctuations in the prices of securities, some of which we had monetized through the issuance of debt. On a
limited basis, we use certain derivative Ñnancial instruments, including interest rate swaps, options, forwards,
equity hedges and other derivative contracts, to manage these risks. We do not use Ñnancial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes. All Ñnancial instruments are used in accordance with board-approved policies.
We enter into foreign currency contracts to minimize our exposure to risk of adverse changes in currency
exchange rates. We are subject to foreign exchange risk for foreign-currency-denominated transactions, such
as debt issued, recognized payables and receivables and forecasted transactions. At December 31, 2002, our
foreign currency market exposures were principally Euros, Japanese yen, and Swiss francs.
The fair value of foreign exchange contracts is subject to the changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
For the purpose of assessing speciÑc risks, we use a sensitivity analysis to determine the eÅects that market
risk exposures may have on the fair value of our Ñnancial instruments and results of operations. To perform the
sensitivity analysis, we assess the risk of loss in fair values from the eÅect of a hypothetical 10% adverse
change in the value of foreign currencies, assuming no change in interest rates.
For foreign exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001, assuming a hypothetical
10% appreciation of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies from the prevailing foreign currency exchange
rates, the fair value of the foreign exchange contracts would have decreased $66 million and $492 million,
respectively. The decrease in the change from 200l was primarily due to a $5.3 billion decline in the notional
amount of contracts outstanding. This decline was largely due to debt under the Euro Commercial Paper
Program paid down in 2002, and the satisfaction of the obligation to purchase the outstanding shares of AT&T
Canada in 2002. Because our foreign exchange contracts are entered into for hedging purposes, we believe that
these losses would be largely oÅset by gains on the underlying transactions.
We have also entered into combined interest rate foreign currency contracts to hedge foreign-currencydenominated debt. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, assuming a hypothetical 10% appreciation in the
U.S. dollar against foreign currencies from the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates, the fair value of the
combined interest rate foreign currency contracts would have decreased $0.5 billion and $0.4 billion,
respectively. Because our foreign exchange contracts are entered into for hedging purposes, we believe that
these losses would be largely oÅset by gains on the underlying foreign-currency-denominated debt.
The model to determine sensitivity assumes a parallel shift in all foreign currency exchange rates,
although exchange rates rarely move in the same direction. Additionally, the amounts above do not necessarily
represent the actual changes in fair value we would incur under normal market conditions because all
variables, other than the exchange rates, are held constant in the calculations.
We use interest rate swaps to manage the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash Öows. We
perform a sensitivity analysis on our interest rate swaps to assess the risk of changes in fair value. The model to
31

AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
determine sensitivity assumes a hypothetical 10% parallel shift in all interest rates. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, assuming a hypothetical 10% decrease in interest rates, the fair value of interest rate swaps would have
decreased by $1 million and $2 million, respectively. We believe the decrease in fair value would be largely
oÅset by an increase in the fair value of the underlying hedged debt.
As discussed above, we have also entered into combined interest rate foreign currency contracts to hedge
foreign-currency-denominated debt. Assuming a hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates, the fair value of
the contracts would have decreased by $3 million at December 31, 2002, and by a negligible amount at
December 31, 2001.
The fair value of our Ñxed-rate long-term debt is sensitive to changes in interest rates. Interest rate
changes would result in gains or losses in the market value of the debt due to diÅerences between the market
interest rates and rates at the inception of the obligation. Assuming a 10% downward shift in interest rates at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair value of unhedged debt would have increased by $0.7 billion and
$1.0 billion, respectively.
At December 31, 2002, we had certain notes, with embedded derivatives, which were indexed to the
market price of equity securities we owned. Changes in the market prices of these securities resulted in
changes in the fair value of the derivatives. Assuming a hypothetical 10% increase in the market price of these
equity securities, the fair value of the collars would have decreased by $46 million and $112 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Because these collars hedged the underlying equity securities
monetized, we believed that the decrease in the fair value of the collars would have been largely oÅset by
increases in the fair value of the underlying equity securities. The changes in fair values referenced above do
not represent the actual changes in fair value we would incur under normal market conditions because all
variables other than the equity prices were held constant in the calculations.
We use equity hedges to manage our exposure to changes in equity prices associated with various equity
awards of previously aÇliated companies. Assuming a hypothetical 10% decrease in equity prices of these
companies, the fair value of the equity hedges (net liability) would have increased by $9 million at
December 31, 2002, and by a negligible amount at December 31, 2001. Because these contracts are entered
into for hedging purposes, we believe that the increase in fair value would be largely oÅset by decreases in the
underlying liabilities.
In order to determine the changes in fair value of our various Ñnancial instruments, including options,
equity collars and other equity awards, we use certain Ñnancial modeling techniques, including Black-Scholes.
We apply rate sensitivity changes directly to our interest rate swap transactions and forward rate sensitivity to
our foreign currency forward contracts.
The changes in fair value, as discussed above, assume the occurrence of certain market conditions, which
could have an adverse Ñnancial impact on the Company. They do not consider the potential eÅect of changes
in market factors that would result in favorable impacts to us, and do not represent projected losses in fair
value that we expect to incur. Future impacts would be based on actual developments in global Ñnancial
markets. We do not foresee any signiÑcant changes in the strategies used to manage interest rate risk, foreign
currency rate risk or equity price risk in the near future.
New Accounting Pronouncements
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.'' This
standard requires that obligations that are legally enforceable and unavoidable, and are associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets, be recorded as liabilities when those obligations are incurred, with the
amount of the liability initially measured at fair value. The oÅset to the initial asset retirement obligation is an
increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, this liability is accreted to its future
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value, and the asset is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, an
entity either settles the obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss upon settlement. SFAS
No. 143 is eÅective for Ñnancial statements issued for Ñscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. For AT&T,
this means that the standard was adopted on January 1, 2003. AT&T currently includes, in its group
depreciation rates, an amount related to the retirement costs for certain assets. However, such amounts are not
legally enforceable or unavoidable; therefore, AT&T will be required to reverse the amount accrued in
accumulated depreciation. As of January 1, 2003, AT&T will report approximately $40 million as the
cumulative eÅect of a change in accounting principles related to the adoption of SFAS No. 143. The impact of
no longer including the cost of removal in the group depreciation rates for these assets, coupled with the
cumulative eÅect impact on accumulated depreciation, will result in a decrease to depreciation expense in
2003. However, the costs incurred to remove these assets will be reÖected as a cost in the period incurred as
""Costs of services and products.''
On June 28, 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, ""Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities.'' This
statement addresses the recognition, measurement and reporting of costs that are associated with exit and
disposal activities. This statement includes the restructuring activities that are currently accounted for
pursuant to the guidance set forth in EITF 94-3, ""Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring),'' costs
related to terminating a contract that is not a capital lease and one-time beneÑt arrangements received by
employees who are involuntarily terminated Ì nullifying the guidance under EITF 94-3. Under
SFAS No. 146, the cost associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized in the periods in which it is
incurred rather than at the date the company committed to the exit plan. This statement is eÅective for exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, with earlier application encouraged. Previously issued
Ñnancial statements will not be restated. The provisions of EITF 94-3 shall continue to apply for exit plans
initiated prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 146. Accordingly, the initial adoption of SFAS No. 146 will not
have an eÅect on AT&T's results of operations, Ñnancial position or cash Öows. Liabilities associated with
future exit and disposal activities will not be recognized until actually incurred.
In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì
Transition and Disclosure Ì an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.'' This standard provides alternate
methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation and requires more prominent disclosure about the method used. This statement is eÅective for
Ñscal years ending after December 15, 2002. For AT&T, this means it is eÅective for December 31, 2002.
Currently AT&T applies the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation'' and we do not expense our stock options. However, as previously announced, AT&T will begin
expensing all stock options issued after January 1, 2003, and will continue to apply the disclosure-only
provisions to stock options issued prior to January 1, 2003. This method of transition is in compliance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 148. The adoption of the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 will not have an
impact on AT&T's results of operations, Ñnancial position or cash Öows; however, the expensing of the stock
options issued after January 1, 2003, will have a negative impact on our results of operations. (See note 2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the required disclosure under this standard.)
In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 45, ""Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.'' FIN 45
requires that an entity issuing a guarantee (including those embedded in a purchase or sales agreement) must
recognize, at the inception of the guarantee, a liability equal to the fair value of the guarantee. The recording
of this liability is not dependent on the probability that the payments will be required. The oÅset to the liability
will depend on the circumstances under which the guarantee was issued, but could include: cash/accounts
receivable if it is a standalone transaction, net proceeds in a sales transaction, or expense if no compensation is
received. FIN 45 also requires detailed information about each guarantee or group of guarantees even if the
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likelihood of making a payment is remote. The disclosure requirements of this interpretation are eÅective for
Ñnancial statements of periods ending after December 15, 2002, which makes them eÅective for AT&T for
December 31, 2002 (see note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the disclosures required under
this interpretation). The recognition and measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a
prospective basis to guarantees issued or modiÑed after December 31, 2002. FIN 45 could have an impact on
the future results of AT&T depending on guarantees issued; however, at this time we do not believe that the
adoption of this statement will have a material impact on our results of operations, Ñnancial position or cash
Öows.
In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, ""Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities Ì an Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51.'' FIN 46 requires the primary beneÑciary to consolidate a
variable interest entity (VIE) if it has a variable interest that will absorb a majority of the entity's expected
losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity's expected residual returns if they occur, or both. FIN 46
applies immediately to VIEs created after January 31, 2003, and to VIEs in which the entity obtains an
interest after that date. For VIEs acquired before February 1, 2003, the eÅective date for AT&T is July 1,
2003. AT&T is currently in the process of determining the impact of this statement on its results of operations,
Ñnancial position and cash Öows. The disclosures relating to our present involvement with possible VIEs and
our maximum exposure to losses are included in note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
In November 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF 00-21, ""Revenue Arrangements with
Multiple Deliverables,'' related to the timing of revenue recognition for arrangements in which goods or
services or both are delivered separately in a bundled sales arrangement. The EITF requires that when the
deliverables included in this type of arrangement meet certain criteria they should be accounted for separately
as separate units of accounting. This may result in a diÅerence in the timing of revenue recognition but will not
result in a change in the total amount of revenue recognized in a bundled sales arrangement. The allocation of
revenue to the separate deliverables is based on the relative fair value of each item. If the fair value is not
available for the delivered items then the residual method must be used. This method requires that the amount
allocated to the undelivered items in the arrangement is their full fair value. This would result in the discount,
if any, being allocated to the delivered items. This consensus is eÅective prospectively for arrangements
entered into in Ñscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003, which, for AT&T, is July 1, 2003. AT&T is
currently evaluating the impact of this consensus on its results of operations, Ñnancial position and cash Öows.
In January 2003, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF 02-18, ""Accounting for Subsequent Investments
in an Investee after Suspension of Equity Method Loss Recognition.'' This consensus states that if an
additional investment, in whole or in part, represents the funding of prior losses, the investor should recognize
previously suspended losses. This determination would be based on various factors including whether the
investment results in an increased ownership percentage, the fair value of the consideration received is
equivalent to the consideration paid and whether the investment is acquired from a third party or directly from
an investee. If any of these provisions are met, the additional investment would generally not be considered as
funding prior losses. When appropriate to recognize prior losses, the amount recognized would be limited to
the amount of the additional investment determined to represent the funding of prior losses. The consensus
will be eÅective for additional investments made after February 5, 2003.
Subsequent Events
In January 2003, AT&T early retired $3.7 billion of long-term notes. In February 2003, AT&T redeemed
exchangeable notes that were indexed to AT&T Wireless common stock and subsequently sold its remaining
AT&T Wireless holdings. For further information on these items, see the contractual cash obligations table in
the liquidity discussion.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity of the consolidated Ñnancial
statements and all other Ñnancial information included in this report. Management is also responsible for
maintaining a system of internal controls as a fundamental requirement for the operational and Ñnancial
integrity of results. The Ñnancial statements, which reÖect the consolidated accounts of AT&T Corp. and
subsidiaries (AT&T) and other Ñnancial information shown, were prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. Estimates included in the Ñnancial statements were based on judgments of
qualiÑed personnel. To maintain its system of internal controls, management carefully selects key personnel
and establishes the organizational structure to provide an appropriate division of responsibility. We believe it is
essential to conduct business aÅairs in accordance with the highest ethical standards as set forth in the AT&T
Code of Conduct. These guidelines and other informational programs are designed and used to ensure that
policies, standards and managerial authorities are understood throughout the organization. Our internal
auditors monitor compliance with the system of internal controls by means of an annual plan of internal audits.
On an ongoing basis, the system of internal controls is reviewed, evaluated and revised as necessary in light of
the results of constant management oversight, internal and independent audits, changes in AT&T's business
and other conditions. Management believes that the system of internal controls, taken as a whole, provides
reasonable assurance that (1) Ñnancial records are adequate and can be relied upon to permit the preparation
of Ñnancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and (2) access to assets
occurs only in accordance with management's authorizations.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which is composed of directors who are not employees,
meets periodically with management, the internal auditors and the independent accountants to review the
manner in which these groups of individuals are performing their responsibilities and to carry out the Audit
Committee's oversight role with respect to auditing, internal controls and Ñnancial reporting matters.
Periodically, both the internal auditors and the independent accountants meet privately with the Audit
Committee and have access to its individual members at any time.
The consolidated Ñnancial statements in this annual report have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, Independent Accountants. Their audits were conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and include an assessment of the internal control structure and selective tests of transactions. Their
report follows.

David W. Dorman
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive OÇcer

Thomas W. Horton
Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial OÇcer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of AT&T Corp.:
In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareowners' equity and of
cash Öows present fairly, in all material respects, the Ñnancial position of AT&T Corp. and its subsidiaries
(AT&T) at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash Öows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These Ñnancial statements are the responsibility of AT&T's
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ñnancial statements based on our audits. We
did not audit the Ñnancial statements for the year ended December 31, 2000 of Liberty Media Group, an
equity method investee, which was acquired by AT&T on March 9, 1999. AT&T's Ñnancial statements
include equity method earnings of $1,488 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Those statements
were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed
herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Liberty Media Group, for the year ended
December 31, 2000, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ñnancial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and signiÑcant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall Ñnancial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
As discussed in the notes to the Ñnancial statements, AT&T was required to adopt Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, eÅective January 1, 2002.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
New York, New York
January 23, 2003, except for Note 20,
as to which the date is February 28, 2003
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For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
Dollars in millions
(except per share amounts)

Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating Expenses
Access and other connection ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Costs of services and products (excluding depreciation of $3,391, $2,954 and $3,119
included below) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Selling, general and administrative ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net restructuring and other charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total operating expensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other (expense) income, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest (expense)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from continuing operations before income taxes, minority interest income,
and net (losses) earnings related to equity investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Provision) for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minority interest income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Equity (losses) earnings from Liberty Media Group ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net (losses) earnings related to other equity investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net (loss) from discontinued operations (net of income tax beneÑts of $6,014,
$3,715, and $1,364) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations (net of income tax beneÑt of $61 in
2002) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) income before cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes (net of income taxes of $530 and $(578))
Net (loss) incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividend requirements of preferred stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Premium on exchange of AT&T Wireless tracking stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) income attributable to common shareowners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Common Stock Group Ì per basic share:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Common Stock Group (loss) earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 37,827

$42,197

$46,850

10,790

12,085

13,139

8,363
7,988
4,888
1,437
33,466
4,361
(77)
(1,448)

8,621
8,064
4,559
1,036
34,365
7,832
1,327
(1,493)

8,235
7,387
4,538
758
34,057
12,793
1,190
(1,503)

2,836
(1,587)
114
Ì
(400)
963

7,666
(2,890)
131
(2,711)
(4,836)
(2,640)

12,480
(4,487)
41
1,488
10
9,532

(14,513)

(4,052)

(4,863)

1,324
13,503
(12,226)
6,811
(856)
904
(13,082)
7,715
Ì
(652)
Ì
(80)
$(13,082) $ 6,983

Ì
4,669
Ì
4,669
Ì
Ì
$ 4,669

$

1.29 $ (0.91) $ 11.54
(19.44)
(5.60)
(7.09)
1.77
18.53
Ì
(1.15)
0.49
Ì
$ (17.53) $ 12.51 $ 4.45

AT&T Common Stock Group Ì per diluted share:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Common Stock Group (loss) earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1.26 $ (0.91) $ 11.01
(18.95)
(5.60)
(6.76)
1.73
18.53
Ì
(1.12)
0.49
Ì
$ (17.08) $ 12.51 $ 4.25

AT&T Wireless Group Ì per basic and diluted share:
Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

Ì

$

$

Ì
Ì
Ì

$ (1.05) $ 0.58
0.21
Ì
$ (0.84) $ 0.58

Liberty Media Group Ì per basic and diluted share:
(Loss) earnings Ì before cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Liberty Media Group (loss) earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

$

0.08

$

0.21

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
At December 31,
2002
2001
Dollars in millions

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $669 and $754ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Current assets of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

8,014
5,286
173
910
1,520
Ì

$ 10,680
7,153
1,431
1,192
622
1,649

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Property, plant and equipment, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization in 2001 of $564ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other purchased intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $244 and $190 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Prepaid pension costsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Non-current assets of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

15,903
25,604
4,626
556
3,596
4,987
Ì

22,727
26,803
5,314
661
3,329
5,144
101,503

TOTAL ASSETS ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 55,272

$165,481

$

$

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Payroll and beneÑt-related liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Debt maturing within one year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Current liabilities of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

3,819
1,519
3,762
2,924
Ì

4,156
1,606
10,134
3,929
5,801

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term debtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term beneÑt-related liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Non-current liabilities of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

12,024
18,812
4,001
4,739
3,384
Ì

25,626
24,025
3,459
2,438
7,159
43,071

TOTAL LIABILITIES ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minority Interest of Discontinued OperationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Company-Obligated Convertible Quarterly Income Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trust
Holding Solely Subordinated Debt Securities of AT&T of Discontinued Operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

42,960
Ì

105,778
3,303

Ì

4,720

SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY
AT&T Common Stock, $1 par value, authorized 6,000,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding
783,037,580 shares (net of 171,801,716 treasury shares) at December 31, 2002 and
708,481,149 shares (net of 170,349,286 treasury shares) at December 31, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additional paid-in capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accumulated deÑcit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

783
28,163
(16,566)
(68)

708
54,798
(3,484)
(342)

TOTAL SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

12,312

51,680

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 55,272

$165,481

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
Dollars in millions

AT&T Common Stock
Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shares issued (acquired), net:
Under employee plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
For acquisitions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Settlement of put optionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
For exchange of AT&T Wireless tracking stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
For funding AT&T Canada obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Redemption of TCI PaciÑc preferred stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

708

$

752

$

639

6
Ì
Ì
Ì
46
10
13

3
9
31
(74)
Ì
Ì
(13)

1
121
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
(9)

783

708

752

Ì

362

Ì

AT&T Wireless Group Common Stock
Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shares issued:
For stock oÅering ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Under employee plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
For exchange of AT&T Wireless tracking stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Conversion of preferred stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Wireless Group split-oÅÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì

Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì

Ì

362
2,314

Ì
2
438
406
(1,208)

360
2
Ì
Ì
Ì

Liberty Media Group Class A Common Stock
Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shares issued (acquired), net:
For acquisitions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Liberty Media Group split-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì

2,364

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì
14
(2,378)

Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì

Ì

Liberty Media Group Class B Common Stock
Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shares issued (acquired), net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Liberty Media Group split-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì

206
6
(212)
Ì

217
(11)
Ì
Ì

Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì

Ì

206

54,798

93,504

62,083

328
Ì
Ì
2,485
2,087
31
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì

291
862
3,361
Ì
Ì
(1,054)
Ì
20
9,631
(20,955)
(30,768)

100
23,583
Ì
Ì
Ì
(2,804)
9,915
530
Ì
Ì
Ì

Additional Paid-In Capital
Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shares issued (acquired), net:
Under employee plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
For acquisitions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Settlement of put optionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
For funding AT&T Canada obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Redemption of TCI PaciÑc preferred stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other* ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Proceeds in excess of par value from issuance of AT&T Wireless common stock
Gain on issuance of common stock by aÇliates ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Conversion of preferred stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Wireless Group split-oÅÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Liberty Media Group split-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

62
(12)
Ì
2,364

(continued on next page)
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AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY (Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
Dollars in millions

AT&T Broadband spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Exchange of AT&T Wireless tracking stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑcial conversion value of preferred stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividends declared Ì AT&T Common Stock GroupÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(31,032)
Ì
Ì
(569)
35

Ì
(284)
295
(265)
160

Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
97

Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

28,163

54,798

93,504

Guaranteed ESOP Obligation
Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

(17)
17

Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì

Ì

Ì

(Accumulated DeÑcit)/Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net (loss) incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividends declared Ì AT&T Common Stock GroupÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividends accrued Ì preferred stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Premium on exchange of AT&T Wireless tracking stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Treasury shares issued at less than cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Wireless Group split-oÅÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(3,484)
(13,082)
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì

7,408
7,715
(275)
(652)
(80)
(7)
(17,593)

6,712
4,669
(2,485)
Ì
Ì
(1,488)
Ì

Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(16,566)

(3,484)

7,408

Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss)
Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other comprehensive income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Wireless Group split-oÅÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Liberty Media Group split-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Broadband spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(342)
266
Ì
Ì
8

(1,398)
1,742
72
(758)
Ì

6,979
(8,377)
Ì
Ì
Ì

Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(68)

(342)

(1,398)

Total Shareowners' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 12,312

$ 51,680

$103,198

Summary of Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income:
(Loss) income before cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(12,226)
(856)

$

$

Net (loss) incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other comprehensive income (loss)®net of income taxes of $(169), $(1,119),
and $5,348© ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(13,082)

Comprehensive (Loss) Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(12,816)

6,811
904
7,715

266
$

4,669
Ì
4,669

1,742

(8,377)

9,457

$ (3,708)

AT&T accounts for treasury stock as retired stock.
We have 100 million authorized shares of preferred stock at $1 par value.
* Other activity in 2001 and 2000 represents AT&T common stock received in exchange for entities owning certain cable
systems.

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
Dollars in millions
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deduct:
Loss from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes Ì net of income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(13,082)
(14,513)
1,324
(856)

7,715

$

4,669

(4,052)
13,503
904

(4,863)
Ì
Ì

(2,640)

9,532

Income (loss) from continuing operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash provided by operating activities
of continuing operations:
Net gains on sales of businesses and investmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cost investment impairment charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net restructuring and other charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Provision for uncollectible receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net revaluation of certain Ñnancial instruments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minority interest income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Equity losses (earnings) from Liberty Media Group ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net losses related to other equity investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Decrease (increase) in receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Decrease in accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net change in other operating assets and liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other adjustments, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(30)
146
1,418
4,888
1,058
2,631
8
(114)
Ì
512
707
(175)
(1,400)
(129)

(1,231)
531
973
4,559
884
(1,338)
(150)
(131)
2,711
7,783
888
(508)
(2,126)
(200)

(734)
7
577
4,538
925
1,005
Ì
(41)
(1,488)
51
(2,382)
(585)
(148)
(616)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

10,483

10,005

10,641

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures and other additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Proceeds from sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Increase in other receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Investment distributions and sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Investment contributions and purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net dispositions (acquisitions) of businesses, net of cash disposed/acquired ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Decrease in AT&T Canada obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Proceeds from AT&T Broadband ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Increase in restricted cash ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other investing activities, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(3,878)
468
Ì
10
(2)
(18)
(3,449)
5,849
(442)
33

(5,767)
73
Ì
1,585
(101)
15
Ì
Ì
Ì
(100)

(7,025)
555
(981)
414
(1,787)
(23,742)
Ì
Ì
Ì
(112)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(1,429)

(4,295)

(32,678)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term debt issuances, net of issuance costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Retirement of long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Repayment of borrowings from AT&T Wireless ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Issuance of convertible preferred securities and warrants ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Issuance of AT&T common shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Issuance of AT&T Wireless Group common shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net issuance (acquisition) of treasury shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividends paid on common stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other Ñnancing activities, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

79
(1,091)
(7,157)
Ì
Ì
2,684
Ì
Ì
(555)
(1)

11,392
(725)
(17,168)
(5,803)
9,811
224
54
24
(549)
(38)

739
(688)
16,973
Ì
Ì
99
10,314
(581)
(3,047)
(64)

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING
OPERATIONS ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(6,041)

(2,778)

23,745

Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(5,679)
(2,666)
10,680

7,683
10,615
65

(2,746)
(1,038)
1,103

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

963

$

$

8,014

$ 10,680

$

65

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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1.

AT&T Restructuring and Discontinued Operations

In connection with the restructuring of AT&T Corp. (AT&T or the ""Company'') announced on
October 25, 2000, AT&T Broadband, AT&T Wireless, and Liberty Media Group have all been separated
from AT&T.
AT&T Broadband, which was spun-oÅ from AT&T on November 18, 2002, was accounted for as a
discontinued operation pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.'' In accordance with SFAS No. 144, prior
period Ñnancial statements have been restated to reÖect AT&T Broadband as a discontinued operation in all
periods. AT&T Wireless, which was split-oÅ from AT&T on July 9, 2001, was accounted for as a discontinued
operation pursuant to Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 30, ""Reporting Results of Operations Ì Reporting the EÅects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.'' Since AT&T Wireless was separated in 2001, it was
reÖected as a discontinued operation in the prior year's Ñnancial statements. As discontinued operations, the
revenue, costs and expenses and cash Öows of AT&T Broadband and AT&T Wireless have been excluded
from the respective captions in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows, and have been reported through their respective dates of separation as ""Net (loss) from
discontinued operations'' and as ""Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued operations.'' In addition, the
assets and liabilities of AT&T Broadband have been excluded from the respective captions in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31, 2001, and have been reported as ""Current assets of discontinued operations,''
""Non-current assets of discontinued operations,'' ""Current liabilities of discontinued operations,'' ""Noncurrent liabilities of discontinued operations,'' ""Minority Interest of Discontinued Operations'' and ""Company-Obligated Convertible Quarterly Income Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trust Holding Solely
Subordinated Debt Securities of AT&T of Discontinued Operations.''
AT&T Broadband
On November 18, 2002, AT&T spun-oÅ AT&T Broadband, which was comprised primarily of the AT&T
Broadband segment, to AT&T shareowners. Simultaneously, AT&T Broadband combined with Comcast
Corporation (Comcast) to form new Comcast. The combination was accomplished through a distribution of
stock to AT&T shareowners, who received 0.3235 (1.6175 adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse stock split) of a
share of Comcast Class A common stock for each share of AT&T they owned at market close on
November 15, 2002, the record date. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) ruled that the transaction qualiÑed
as tax-free for AT&T and its shareowners for U.S. federal income tax purposes, with the exception of cash
received for fractional shares. Approximately 1.2 billion Comcast shares were issued to AT&T shareowners at
a value of approximately $31.1 billion, based on the Comcast stock price on November 18, 2002. AT&T
shareowners received a 56% economic stake and a 66% voting interest in new Comcast.
In connection with the non-pro rata spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, AT&T wrote up the net assets of
AT&T Broadband to fair value. This resulted in a noncash gain of $1.3 billion, which represented the
diÅerence between the fair value of the AT&T Broadband business at the date of the spin-oÅ and AT&T's
book value in AT&T Broadband, net of certain charges triggered by the spin-oÅ and their related income tax
eÅect. These charges included compensation expense due to the accelerated vesting of stock options as well as
the enhancement of certain incentive plans. The gain was recorded as a ""Gain on disposition of discontinued
operations.''
Revenue for AT&T's Broadband business (which included At Home Corporation, or ""Excite@Home''
through September 2001) was $8.9 billion, $10.1 billion and $8.4 billion for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Net (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes was $(20.5) billion, $(8.1) billion, and
$(7.1) billion for 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively for the AT&T Broadband business. The loss for 2002
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included pretax impairment charges of $16.5 billion ($11.8 billion after taxes) relating to goodwill and
franchise costs which was recorded in the second quarter of 2002.
Interest expense of $359 million, $333 million and $463 million was allocated to discontinued operations
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, based on the balance of intercompany debt between AT&T Broadband
and AT&T. At the time of the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, this intercompany debt was settled via a
$5.8 billion cash distribution from AT&T Broadband and the exchange of $3.5 billion of AT&T notes for notes
of AT&T Broadband which are unconditionally guaranteed by Comcast and certain of its subsidiaries (see
note 8).
At December 31, 2001, current assets of $1.6 billion, non-current assets of $101.5 billion (including net
goodwill of $19.4 billion), current liabilities of $5.8 billion, non-current liabilities of $43.1 billion, minority
interest of $3.3 billion, and company-obligated convertible quarterly income preferred securities of $4.7 billion
were attributable to the discontinued operations of the AT&T Broadband business. Current assets were
primarily comprised of accounts receivable and investments, while non-current assets were primarily
comprised of goodwill, franchise costs and investments. Current liabilities were primarily comprised of shortterm debt, accounts payable and payroll and beneÑt-related liabilities, while non-current liabilities were
primarily comprised of long-term debt and deferred income taxes.
The noncash impacts of the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband include a reduction to assets of approximately
$84.3 billion, a reduction to liabilities of approximately $48.8 billion, the reduction of minority interest of $1.2
billion, the reduction of company-obligated convertible quarterly income preferred securities of subsidiary
trust of $4.7 billion, and a reduction to shareowners' equity of approximately $29.6 billion, including the
$1.3 billion noncash gain on spin-oÅ.
AT&T Wireless
On April 27, 2000, AT&T created a new class of stock and completed a public stock oÅering of
360 million shares, which represented 15.6% of AT&T Wireless Group tracking stock at a price of $29.50 per
share. This stock was intended to track the Ñnancial performance and economic value of AT&T's wireless
services business. The net proceeds to AT&T, after deducting the underwriter's discount and related fees and
expenses, were $10.3 billion. AT&T allocated $7.0 billion of the net proceeds to AT&T Wireless Group, which
was used for acquisitions, network expansion, capital expenditures and general corporate purposes. AT&T
utilized the remaining net proceeds of $3.3 billion for general corporate purposes.
On May 25, 2001, AT&T completed an exchange oÅer of AT&T common stock for AT&T Wireless
stock. Under the terms of the exchange oÅer, AT&T issued 1.176 shares (5.88 shares adjusted for the 1-for-5
reverse stock split) of AT&T Wireless Group tracking stock in exchange for each share of AT&T common
stock validly tendered. A total of 372.2 million shares (74.4 million shares adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse
stock split) of AT&T common stock were tendered in exchange for 437.7 million shares of AT&T Wireless
Group tracking stock. In conjunction with the exchange oÅer, AT&T recorded an $80 million premium as a
reduction to net income available to common shareowners. The premium represented the excess of the fair
value of the AT&T Wireless Group tracking stock issued over the fair value of the AT&T common stock
exchanged.
On July 9, 2001, AT&T completed the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless as a separate, independently traded
company. All AT&T Wireless Group tracking stock was converted into AT&T Wireless common stock on a
one-for-one basis, and 1,136 million shares of AT&T Wireless common stock held by AT&T were distributed
to AT&T common shareowners on a basis of 0.3218 shares (1.609 shares adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse stock
split) of AT&T Wireless for each AT&T share outstanding. AT&T common shareowners received whole
shares of AT&T Wireless common stock and cash payments for fractional shares. The IRS ruled that the
transaction qualiÑed as tax-free for AT&T and its shareowners for U.S. federal income tax purposes, with the
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exception of cash received for fractional shares. For accounting purposes, the deemed eÅective split-oÅ date
was June 30, 2001. The impact of operating results from July 1, 2001 through July 9, 2001, were deemed
immaterial to our consolidated results. The split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless resulted in a tax-free noncash gain of
$13.5 billion, which represented the diÅerence between the fair value of the AT&T Wireless tracking stock at
the date of the split-oÅ and AT&T's book value in AT&T Wireless. This gain was recorded in 2001 as a ""Gain
on disposition of discontinued operations.'' At the time of split-oÅ, AT&T retained approximately $3.0 billion,
or 7.3%, of AT&T Wireless common stock, about half of which was used in a debt-for-equity exchange in July
2001. The remaining portion of these holdings was monetized in October and December of 2001 through the
issuance of debt that was exchangeable into AT&T Wireless shares (or their cash equivalent) at maturity (see
notes 7 and 8).
Revenue for AT&T Wireless was $6.6 billion for 2001 and $10.4 billion for 2000. Income from
discontinued operations before income taxes for AT&T Wireless was $308 million for 2001 and $844 million
for 2000. Interest expense of $153 million and $330 million was allocated to AT&T Wireless discontinued
operations in 2001 and 2000, respectively, based on the debt of AT&T that was attributable to AT&T
Wireless.
The noncash impacts of the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless reÖect the split-oÅ of approximately $39.7 billion
of net assets which included a $13.5 billion noncash gain.
Lucent Technologies Inc.
Net (loss) from discontinued operations for 2002 reÖects an estimated loss on a litigation settlement
associated with the business of Lucent Technologies Inc. (Lucent), which was spun-oÅ from AT&T in 1996.
Sparks, et al. v. AT&T and Lucent Technologies Inc. et al., was a class action lawsuit Ñled in 1996 in Illinois
state court. The complaint sought damages on behalf of present and former customers based on a claim that
the AT&T Consumer Products business (which became part of Lucent in 1996) and Lucent had defrauded
and misled customers who leased telephones, resulting in payments in excess of the cost to purchase the
telephones. AT&T and Lucent have denied any wrongdoing, but settled this matter to avoid the uncertainty
and expense of protracted litigation. On August 9, 2002, a settlement proposal was submitted to and accepted
by the court. In accordance with the separation and distribution agreement between AT&T and Lucent,
AT&T's estimated proportionate share of the settlement and legal costs totaled $45 million pretax ($33 million after-tax), reÖecting a fourth quarter adjustment to the initial estimate. Depending upon the number of
claims submitted and accepted, the actual cost of the settlement to AT&T may be less than stated amounts,
but it is not possible to estimate the amount at this time. While similar consumer class actions are pending in
various state courts, the Illinois state court has held that the class it certiÑed covers claims in the other state
court class actions.
Summary
Following is a summary of net (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)
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AT&T Broadband, net of income tax beneÑts of $6,002, $3,873
and $1,671 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Wireless, net of income taxes of $(158) and $(307) ÏÏÏ
Lucent Technologies Inc., net of income tax beneÑt of $12 ÏÏÏÏ

$(14,480)
Ì
(33)

$(4,202)
150
Ì

$(5,399)
536
Ì

Net (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ÏÏ

$(14,513)

$(4,052)

$(4,863)
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Liberty Media Corporation
As a result of our merger with Tele-Communications, Inc. (TCI) in 1999, we acquired Liberty Media
Group (LMG). Although LMG was wholly owned, we accounted for it as an equity method investment since
we did not have a controlling Ñnancial interest. On August 10, 2001, AT&T completed the split-oÅ of Liberty
Media Corporation (LMC) as an independent, publicly-traded company. AT&T redeemed each outstanding
share of Class A and Class B LMG tracking stock for one share of Liberty Media Corporation's Series A and
Series B common stock, respectively. The IRS ruled that the split-oÅ of Liberty Media Corporation qualiÑed
as a tax-free transaction for AT&T, Liberty Media and their shareowners. The operating results of LMG
through July 31, 2001, the deemed eÅective split-oÅ date for accounting purposes, were reÖected as ""Equity
(losses) earnings from Liberty Media Group.'' The impact of the operating results from August 1 through
August 10, 2001, was deemed immaterial to our consolidated results. At the time of disposition, AT&T did not
exit the line of business that Liberty Media Group operated in; therefore, at the time of its separation, Liberty
Media Group was not accounted for as a discontinued operation.
Upon split-oÅ, AT&T paid LMG $803 million pursuant to a tax-sharing agreement related to TCI net
operating losses generated prior to AT&T's merger with TCI. In addition, in 2002, AT&T received
approximately $114 million from LMG related to taxes pursuant to a tax-sharing agreement between LMG
and AT&T Broadband, which existed prior to the TCI merger. At December 31, 2001, this receivable was
included in ""Accounts receivable.''
Summarized results of operations for LMG were as follows:
For the
For the
Seven Months Ended
Year Ended
July 31, 2001
December 31, 2000
(Dollars in millions)

RevenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) income from continuing operations before
cumulative eÅect of accounting change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2.

$ 1,190
(426)

$1,526
436

(2,711)
545
(2,166)

1,488
Ì
1,488

Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies
Consolidation

The consolidated Ñnancial statements include all controlled subsidiaries. All signiÑcant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in majority-owned subsidiaries
where control does not exist and investments in which we exercise signiÑcant inÖuence but do not control
(generally a 20% to 50% ownership interest) are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
Investments in which there is no signiÑcant inÖuence (generally less than a 20% ownership interest) are
accounted for under the cost method of accounting.
Foreign Currency Translation
For operations outside the United States that prepare Ñnancial statements in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar, we translate income statement amounts at average exchange rates for the year, and we translate
assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates. We present these translation adjustments as a component of
""Accumulated other comprehensive loss'' within shareowners' equity. Gains and losses from foreign currency
transactions are included in results of operations.
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Use of Estimates
The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aÅect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Ñnancial statements, and revenue
and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could diÅer from those estimates. Estimates are used
when accounting for certain items such as allowances for doubtful accounts, depreciation and amortization,
employee beneÑt plans, taxes, restructuring reserves and contingencies.
Revenue Recognition
We recognize long distance, local voice and data services revenue based upon minutes of traÇc processed
or contracted fee schedules. In addition, we record an estimated revenue reduction for adjustments to
customer accounts. This estimate is based on a detailed analysis that compares accounts receivable aging at
diÅerent points in time to determine the appropriate level of adjustments. We recognize other products and
services revenue when the products are delivered and accepted by customers and when services are provided in
accordance with contract terms. For contracts where we provide customers with an indefeasible right to use
network capacity, we recognize revenue ratably over the stated life of the agreement.
Advertising and Promotional Costs
We expense costs of advertising and promotions as incurred. Advertising and promotional expenses were
$814 million, $874 million and $801 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is based on reported income before income taxes. Deferred income taxes
are provided for the eÅect of temporary diÅerences between the amounts of assets and liabilities recognized for
Ñnancial reporting purposes and the amounts recognized for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using currently enacted tax laws and the eÅects of any changes in income tax laws are
included in the provision for income taxes in the period of enactment. Valuation allowances are recognized to
reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized. In assessing the
likelihood of realization, we consider estimates of future taxable income, the character of income needed to
realize future beneÑts and all available evidence. Investment tax credits are amortized as a reduction to the
provision for income taxes over the useful lives of the assets that produced the credits.
Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of generally three months or less to be
cash equivalents.
Property, Plant and Equipment
We state property, plant and equipment at cost. Construction costs, labor and applicable overhead related
to installations and interest during construction are capitalized. Costs of additions and substantial improvements to property, plant and equipment are capitalized. The costs of maintenance and repairs of property,
plant and equipment are charged to operating expense. Depreciation is determined based upon the assets'
estimated useful lives using either the group or unit method. The useful lives of communications and network
equipment range from three to 15 years. The useful lives of other equipment ranges from three to seven years.
The useful lives of buildings and improvements range from 10 to 40 years. The group method is used for most
depreciable assets, including the majority of communications and network equipment. The unit method is
primarily used for large computer systems, buildings and support assets. Under the group method, a speciÑc
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asset group has an average life. A depreciation rate is developed based on the average useful life for the
speciÑc asset group. This method requires the periodic revision of depreciation rates. Under the unit method,
assets are depreciated based on the useful life of the individual asset. When we sell or retire assets depreciated
using the group method, the diÅerence between the proceeds, if any, and the cost of the asset is charged or
credited to accumulated depreciation, without recognition of a gain or loss. When we sell assets that were
depreciated using the unit method, we include the related gains or losses in ""Other (expense) income, net.''
Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment annually, or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If the total of the expected future
undiscounted cash Öows is less than the carrying value of the asset, a loss is recognized for the diÅerence
between the fair value and the carrying value of the asset.
We use accelerated depreciation methods for certain high-technology computer-processing equipment
and digital equipment used in the telecommunications network, except for switching equipment placed in
service before 1989, where a straight-line method is used. All other plant and equipment is depreciated on a
straight-line basis.
Software Capitalization
Certain direct development costs associated with internal-use software are capitalized, including external
direct costs of material and services, and payroll costs for employees devoting time to the software projects.
These costs are included within ""Other assets'' and are amortized over a period not to exceed Ñve years
beginning when the asset is substantially ready for use. Costs incurred during the preliminary project stage, as
well as maintenance and training costs, are expensed as incurred. AT&T also capitalizes initial operatingsystem software costs and amortizes them over the life of the associated hardware.
AT&T also capitalizes costs associated with the development of application software incurred from the
time technological feasibility is established until the software is ready to provide service to customers. These
capitalized costs are included in property, plant and equipment and are amortized over a useful life not to
exceed Ñve years.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in business
combinations accounted for under the purchase method. Beginning January 1, 2002, in accordance with SFAS
No. 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,'' goodwill and indeÑnite-lived intangible assets are no longer
amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at least annually (see note 3). Intangible assets that have
Ñnite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives, which range from Ñve to 20 years.
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities
We use derivative Ñnancial instruments to mitigate market risk from changes in interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates and equity prices. Derivative Ñnancial instruments may be exchange-traded or
contracted in the over-the-counter market and include swaps, options, warrants and forward contracts. We do
not use derivative Ñnancial instruments for speculative purposes.
All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Certain derivatives, at inception, are
designated as hedges and evaluated for eÅectiveness at least quarterly throughout the hedge period. These
derivatives are designated as either (1) a hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or of an
unrecognized Ñrm commitment (fair value hedge), or (2) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the
variability of cash Öows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (cash Öow hedge). All
other derivatives are not formally designated for accounting purposes (undesignated). These derivatives,
except for warrants, although undesignated for accounting purposes, are entered into to hedge economic risks.
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We record changes in the fair value of fair-value hedges, along with the changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that is attributable to the hedged risk (including losses or gains on Ñrm commitments), in ""Other (expense) income, net.''
We record changes in the fair value of cash-Öow hedges, along with the recognized asset or liability, in
""Other comprehensive income (loss),'' net of income taxes, as a component of shareowners' equity, until
earnings are aÅected by the variability of cash Öows of the hedged transaction.
Changes in the fair value of undesignated derivatives are recorded in ""Other (expense) income, net,''
along with the change in fair value of the underlying asset or liability.
We currently do not have any net investment hedges in a foreign operation.
We assess embedded derivatives to determine whether (1) the economic characteristics of the embedded
instruments are not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics of the remaining component of
the Ñnancial instrument (the host instrument) and (2) whether a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded instrument would meet the deÑnition of a derivative instrument. When it is determined that
both conditions exist, we designate the derivatives as described above, and recognize the derivative at fair
value.
We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes
linking all derivatives that are designated as fair value or cash Öow hedges to speciÑc assets and liabilities on
the balance sheet or to speciÑc Ñrm commitments or forecasted transactions.
We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when (1) it is determined that the derivative is no longer
eÅective in oÅsetting changes in the fair value of cash Öows of a hedged item; (2) the derivative expires or is
sold, terminated, or exercised; (3) it is determined that the forecasted hedged transaction will no longer occur;
(4) a hedged Ñrm commitment no longer meets the deÑnition of a Ñrm commitment, or (5) management
determines that the designation of the derivative as a hedge instrument is no longer appropriate.
When hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivative is adjusted for changes in fair value through
""Other (expense) income, net.'' For fair value hedges, the underlying asset or liability will no longer be
adjusted for changes in fair value and any asset or liability recorded in connection with a Ñrm commitment will
be removed from the balance sheet and recorded in current period earnings. For cash Öow hedges, gains and
losses that were accumulated in ""Other comprehensive income (loss)'' as a component of shareowners' equity
in connection with a forecasted transaction, will be recognized immediately in ""Other (expense) income, net.''
Stock-Based Compensation
As of December 31, 2002, AT&T had a Long-Term Incentive Program and an Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, which are described more fully in note 12. We apply APB Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees,'' and related interpretations in accounting for our plans. Accordingly, no compensation expense
has been recognized for our stock-based compensation plans other than for our performance-based and
restricted stock awards, stock appreciation rights (SARs), and certain occasions when we have modiÑed the
terms of the stock option vesting schedule in conjunction with the 2001 split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless and the
2002 spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband.
AT&T has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.'' If AT&T had elected to recognize compensation costs based on the fair value at the date of
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grant of the awards, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, net income and earnings per share
amounts would have been as follows:
AT&T Common Stock
AT&T Wireless
Group
Group
2002
2001
2000
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Add: Stock-based employee compensation
included in reported net (loss) income, net of
taxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under the
fair value based method for all awards, net of
taxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(13,082)

Pro forma net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(13,384)

Basic (loss) earnings per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Proforma basic (loss) earnings per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted (loss) earnings per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Proforma diluted (loss) earnings per share ÏÏÏÏÏ

$
$
$
$

$9,114

$3,105

$ 35

$ 76

43

75

(156)

Ì

Ì

(345)

(692)

(324)

(17)

(25)

$8,497

(17.53) $12.51
(17.93) $11.66
(17.08) $12.51
(17.47) $11.66

$2,625

$ 18

$ 51

$
$
$
$

$0.08
$0.04
$0.08
$0.04

$0.21
$0.14
$0.21
$0.14

4.45
3.77
4.25
3.60

The stock-based employee compensation (expense) income, net of tax, for AT&T Common Stock Group
included in income (loss) from continuing operations was $(55) million, $(71) million and $(7) million in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and included in discontinued operations was $12 million, $(4) million and
$163 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The amounts attributed to discontinued operations included
income (expense), net of tax, of $51 million, $(2) million and $166 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, related to grants of SARs of aÇliated companies held by certain employees subsequent to the
TCI merger and prior to the AT&T Broadband spin-oÅ. In addition, we entered into an equity hedge in 1999
to oÅset potential future compensation costs associated with these SARS. (Expense), net of tax, related to
this hedge was $(56) million, $(10) million, and $(200) million in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
Total stock-based employee compensation (expense), net of tax, determined under the fair value based
method for all awards related to continuing operations was $(288) million, $(562) million and $(315) million
for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and related to discontinued operations was $(57) million, $(147) million and $(34) million for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Pro forma earnings (loss) for AT&T Common Stock Group from continuing operations was $730 million, $(1,152) million and $7,736 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and from discontinued
operations was $(14,582) million, $(4,213) million and $(5,111) million for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.
Pro forma earnings (loss) for AT&T Common Stock Group per basic share from continuing operations
was $0.98, $(1.58) and $11.10 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and from discontinued operations was
$(19.53), $(5.78) and $(7.33) for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Pro forma earnings (loss) for AT&T Common Stock Group per diluted share from continuing operations
was $0.96, $(1.58) and $10.59 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and from discontinued operations was
$(19.04), $(5.78) and $(6.99) for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The pro forma eÅect on net loss from discontinued operations for AT&T Common Stock Group for 2002
includes expense of $28 million due to the accelerated vesting of AT&T stock options held by AT&T
Broadband employees at the date of spin-oÅ. The pro forma eÅect on net loss from discontinued operations for
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AT&T Common Stock Group for 2001 includes expense of $10 million due to the conversion of AT&T
common stock options in connection with the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless, and also includes expense of
$12 million due to the accelerated vesting of AT&T Wireless stock options held by AT&T employees at the
date of the split-oÅ.
The pro forma eÅect on net loss from continuing operations available to common shareowners for 2001
includes expense of $40 million due to the conversion of AT&T common stock options in connection with the
split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless, and also includes expense of $163 million due to the accelerated vesting of AT&T
Wireless stock options held by AT&T employees at the date of split-oÅ.
Issuance of Common Stock by AÇliates
Changes in our proportionate share of the underlying equity of a subsidiary or equity method investee,
which result from the issuance of additional equity securities by such entity, are recognized as increases or
decreases to additional paid-in capital in the Consolidated Statements of Shareowners' Equity.
Concentrations
As of December 31, 2002, other than the guarantee issued in connection with the split-oÅ of AT&T
Wireless (see note 9), we do not have any signiÑcant concentration of business transacted with a particular
customer, supplier, lender or former aÇliate that could, if suddenly adversely impacted, severely impact our
operations. We also do not have a concentration of available sources of labor, services or other rights that
could, if suddenly eliminated, severely impact our operations. We invest our cash with many high-quality
credit institutions.
ReclassiÑcations and Restatements
We reclassiÑed and restated certain amounts for previous years to conform to the 2002 presentation.
3.

Impacts of Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
SFAS No. 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets''

EÅective January 1, 2002, AT&T adopted SFAS No. 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.''
Upon adoption, goodwill was tested for impairment by comparing the fair value of our reporting units to their
carrying values. As of January 1, 2002, the fair value of the reporting units' goodwill exceeded their carrying
value, and therefore no impairment loss was recognized. Franchise costs were tested for impairment as of
January 1, 2002, by comparing the fair value to the carrying value (at the market level). An impairment loss
of $856 million, net of taxes of $530 million, was recorded relating to the discontinued operation of AT&T
Broadband in the Ñrst quarter of 2002. At December 31, 2002, this amount is included in the ""Cumulative
eÅect of accounting changes'' in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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The table below presents the impact of SFAS No. 142 on net (loss) income and (loss) earnings per
share, had the standard been in eÅect on January 1, 2000:
AT&T
Liberty
AT&T Common Stock Group
Wireless Group
Media Group
2002
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Net (loss) income:
Reported income (loss) from continuing
operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividend requirements of preferred stockÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Premium on exchange of AT&T Wireless
tracking stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Reported income (loss) from continuing
operations available to common shareowners
Add back amortization, net of tax:
Goodwill ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Equity method excess basis ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Franchise costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Adjusted income (loss) from continuing
operations available to common shareowners
Reported (loss) income from discontinued
operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Add back discontinued operations amortization,
net of tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Adjusted net (loss) income available to
common shareowners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Basic (loss) earnings per share:
Reported basic earnings (loss) per share from
continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Add back amortization, net of tax:
Goodwill ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Equity method excess basis ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Franchise costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Adjusted basic earnings (loss) per share from
continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Reported (loss) earnings from discontinued
operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Add back discontinued operations amortization,
net of tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Adjusted basic (loss) earnings per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted (loss) earnings per share:
Reported diluted earnings (loss) per share from
continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

963
Ì

71
(652)

$8,044
Ì

$ Ì
Ì

$ Ì
Ì

Ì

(80)

Ì

Ì

Ì

963

(661)

8,044

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

175
37
Ì

149
37
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

963

(449)

8,230

Ì

Ì

(4,087)

(4,939)

35

76

Ì

Ì

Ì
1,324
(856)

1,588
13,503
359

1,705
Ì
Ì

36
Ì
Ì

27
Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì
545

Ì
Ì
Ì

$(13,082)

$10,914

$4,996

$ 71

$ 103

$(1,466)

$2,718

$

$ (0.91)

$11.54

$ Ì

$ Ì

$ (1.05)

$ 0.58

0.24
0.05
Ì

0.21
0.05
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

0.14
0.13
Ì

0.22
0.25
0.01

1.29

(0.62)

11.80

Ì

Ì

(0.78)

1.06

(19.44)

(5.60)

(7.09)

0.08

0.21

(14,513)

1.29
Ì
Ì
Ì

$

$(2,711)
Ì
Ì
(2,711)
350
346
4
(2,011)

Ì

$1,488
Ì
Ì
1,488
568
654
8
2,718

Ì

Ì
1.77
(1.15)
$ (17.53)

2.18
18.53
0.49
$ 14.98

2.45
Ì
Ì
$ 7.16

0.08
Ì
Ì
$0.16

0.08
Ì
Ì
$0.29

Ì
Ì
0.21
$ (0.57)

Ì
Ì
Ì
$ 1.06

$

$ (0.91)

$11.01

$ Ì

$ Ì

$ (1.05)

$ 0.58

1.26

51

AT&T CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Add back amortization, net of tax:
Goodwill ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Equity method excess basis ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Franchise costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Adjusted diluted earnings (loss) per share from
continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Reported (loss) earnings from discontinued
operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Add back discontinued operations amortization,
net of tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Adjusted diluted (loss) earnings per shareÏÏÏÏÏ

AT&T
Liberty
AT&T Common Stock Group
Wireless Group
Media Group
2002
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Ì
Ì
Ì

0.24
0.05
Ì

0.20
0.05
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

0.14
0.13
Ì

0.22
0.25
0.01

1.26

(0.62)

11.26

Ì

Ì

(0.78)

1.06

(18.95)

(5.60)

(6.76)

0.08

0.21

0.08
Ì
Ì
$0.16

0.08
Ì
Ì
$0.29

Ì
1.73
(1.12)
$ (17.08)

2.18
18.53
0.49
$ 14.98

2.34
Ì
Ì
$ 6.84

Ì
Ì
Ì
0.21
$ (0.57)

Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
$ 1.06

Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 01-9, ""Accounting For Consideration Given by a Vendor to a
Customer''
During 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on Issue 01-9, ""Accounting
for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer,'' that cash incentives given to customers should be
characterized as a reduction of revenue when recognized in the income statement, unless an identiÑable
beneÑt is received in exchange. Prior to this consensus, cash incentives to acquire customers were recorded as
advertising and promotion expense within selling, general and administrative expenses. These cash incentives
are now recorded as a reduction of revenue and prior periods have been reclassiÑed to conform to this
presentation. The amounts reclassiÑed as a reduction of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, were $236 million and $250 million, respectively. Net income was not aÅected by this reclassiÑcation.
SFAS No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets''
On January 1, 2002, AT&T adopted SFAS No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets,'' which supersedes SFAS No. 121, ""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.'' SFAS No. 144 applies to all long-lived assets, including
discontinued operations, and consequently amends APB Opinion No. 30. The initial adoption had no impact
on AT&T's results of operations, Ñnancial position or cash Öows.
Adoption of SFAS No. 133, ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities''
EÅective January 1, 2001, AT&T adopted SFAS No. 133, ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities'' and its corresponding amendments under SFAS No. 138, ""Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities.'' SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and
for hedging activities. All derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are required to be
recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1, 2001, resulted in a
pretax cumulative-eÅect increase to income of $1,482 million ($904 million after-tax); $581 million
($359 million after-tax) was attributable to AT&T Group (other than LMG), and $901 million ($545 million
after-tax) was attributable to LMG.
AT&T Group's cumulative-eÅect increase to net income of $359 million was comprised of $130 million
related to continuing operations primarily attributable to warrants held in both public and private companies,
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and $229 million related to discontinued operations primarily attributable to embedded and non-embedded net
purchase options related to indexed debt instruments.
Upon adoption, AT&T Group, as permitted by SFAS No. 133, reclassiÑed certain securities from
""available-for-sale'' to ""trading.'' This reclassiÑcation resulted in the recognition, in earnings, of losses
previously recorded within ""Accumulated other comprehensive loss.'' A portion of the loss ($1.6 billion
pretax; $1.0 billion after-tax) was recorded as part of the cumulative eÅect of adoption. This loss completely
oÅset a gain on the indexed debt obligation that had been considered a hedge of Comcast, Microsoft and
Vodafone available-for-sale securities. The reclassiÑcation of securities also resulted in a pretax charge of
$1.2 billion ($0.7 billion after-tax) recorded in ""Net (loss) from discontinued operations,'' in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
LMG's cumulative-eÅect increase to income of $545 million was primarily attributable to separately
recording the embedded call option obligations associated with LMG's senior exchangeable debentures. Also
included in the cumulative-eÅect was $87 million previously included in ""Accumulated other comprehensive
loss'' primarily related to changes in the fair value of LMG's warrants and options to purchase certain
available-for-sale securities.
4.

Supplementary Financial Information
Supplementary Income Statement Information

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Included in Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:
Research and development expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 254

Other (Expense) Income, Net:
Aircraft leveraged-lease write-downs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cost investment impairment charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net revaluation of certain Ñnancial instrumentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Investment-related income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Settlements associated with businesses disposed of ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net gains on sales of businesses and investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Miscellaneous, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(244) $ Ì
$ Ì
(146)
(531)
(7)
(8)
150
Ì
116
285
435
107
154
Ì
30
1,231
734
68
38
28

Total other (expense) income, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ (77)

Supplementary Balance Sheet Information

$ 274

$1,327

$ 313

$1,190

At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Communications, network and other equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Buildings and improvements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Land and improvements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$48,169
8,129
327

$47,552
7,969
370

Total property, plant and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accumulated depreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

56,625
31,021

55,891
29,088

Property, plant and equipment, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$25,604

$26,803
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AT&T
AT&T
Business
Consumer
Services
Services
Total
(Dollars in millions)

Goodwill:
Balance at December 31, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Write-oÅ of goodwill of AT&T Latin America ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Translation adjustment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$5,244
(777)
91
(2)

$70
Ì
Ì
Ì

$5,314
(777)
91
(2)

Balance at December 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$4,556

$70

$4,626

Gross
Carrying
Accumulated
Amount
Amortization
(Dollars in millions)

Net

Intangible Assets:
Amortizable purchased intangible assets at December 31, 2002:
Customer lists and relationships ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$557
243

$132
112

$425
131

Total intangible assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$800

$244

$556

The amortization expense associated with purchased intangible assets for the year ended December 31,
2002, was approximately $83 million. Amortization expense for purchased intangible assets is estimated to be
approximately $65 million for the year ending December 31, 2003, $50 million for the year ending
December 31, 2004, and $45 million for each of the years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007.
Leveraged Leases:
We lease to third parties airplanes, energy-producing facilities and transportation equipment under
leveraged leases having original terms of 10 to 30 years, expiring in various years from 2004 through 2020. The
investment in leveraged leases is primarily included in ""Other assets.'' Following is a summary of our
investment in leveraged leases:
At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Rental receivables (net of nonrecourse debt*) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Estimated unguaranteed residual values ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unearned income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Allowance for credit lossesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 476
483
(211)
(23)

$ 635
720
(297)
(28)

Investment in leverage leases (included in ""Other assets'') ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

725
932

1,030
1,063

Net investment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(207)

$ (33)

* The rental receivables are net of nonrecourse debt of $1.4 billion and $2.0 billion at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Supplementary Shareowners' Equity Information
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Net foreign currency translation adjustment ®net of taxes of
$(82), $160 and $181©(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net revaluation of certain Ñnancial instruments:
Unrealized (losses) gains ®net of taxes of $340, $(343) and
$4,686©(2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Recognition of previously unrealized losses (gains) on
available-for-sale securities ®net of taxes of $(539), $(950)
and $480©(3) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net minimum pension liability adjustment (net of taxes of $112,
$14 and $1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total other comprehensive income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 132

(550)

869
(185)
$ 266

$ (250)

$ (309)

475

(7,317)

1,535

(750)

(18)
$1,742

(1)
$(8,377)

(1)

Includes LMG's foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes of $149 in 2001 through July 31, 2001, and $202 in 2000.

(2)

Includes LMG's unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes of $(1,286) in 2001 through July 31, 2001, and
$6,117 in 2000.

(3)

See below for a summary of the ""Recognition of previously unrealized losses (gains) on available-for-sale securities'' and the
Statement of Operations line items impacted.

Summary of Recognition of Previously Unrealized Losses (Gains) on Available-For-Sale Securities and
the Statement of Operations Line Items Impacted
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
Pretax
After-tax
Pretax
After-tax
Pretax
After-tax
(Dollars in millions)

AT&T GROUP:
Other (expense) income, net:
Other-than-temporary investment impairments
Other derivative activity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Sales of various securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income from discontinued operations:
Other-than-temporary investment impairments
ReclassiÑcation of securities to ""trading'' in
conjunction with the adoption of SFAS
No. 133*ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Sales of various securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
LIBERTY MEDIA GROUP:
Earnings (losses) from Liberty Media Group:
Sales of various securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting change* ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total recognition of previously unrealized losses
(gains) on available-for-sale securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 148
28
Ì

$ 91
17
Ì

$ 475 $ 293 $
Ì $ Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
(238) (147)
(433) (267)

1,232

761

510

315

290

179

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

1,154
555

713
343

Ì
(43)

Ì
(27)

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

173
(144)

105
(87)

(1,044)
Ì

(635)
Ì

$1,408

$869

$2,485

$1,535

$(1,230) $(750)

* See note 3 for detailed discussion.
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For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Interest payments, net of capitalized interest of $61, $121 and
$143 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income tax (receipts) payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
5.

$1,532
(814)

$1,537
1,441

$1,420
3,379

Earnings per Common Share and Potential Common Share

During 2001 and 2000, in addition to AT&T Common Stock, the AT&T Wireless Group and Liberty
Media Group tracking stocks were outstanding. The tracking stocks represented an interest in the economic
performance of the net assets of each of the respective groups. The earnings attributable to AT&T Wireless
Group and Liberty Media Group were excluded from the earnings attributable to the AT&T Common stock
group. On July 9 and August 10, 2001, AT&T Wireless and Liberty Media Group, respectively, were
separated from AT&T and the tracking stocks were redeemed (see note 1).
Income (loss) attributable to the diÅerent classes of AT&T common stock is as follows:
AT&T Common Stock
Group

AT&T Wireless
Group

Liberty Media
Group

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002

2001

2000

2002

2001

2000

2002

2001

2000

(Dollars in millions)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
before cumulative eÅect of accounting
change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividend requirements of preferred stock ÏÏÏ
Premium on exchange of AT&T Wireless
tracking stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income (loss) from continuing operations
attributable to common shareowners ÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) income from discontinued operations
Gain on disposition of discontinued
operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting changes ÏÏÏ
Net (loss) income attributable to common
shareowners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

963
Ì

$Ì
Ì

$Ì
Ì

$Ì
Ì

$Ì
Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
35

Ì
76

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

$(13,082) $ 9,114 $ 3,105

$Ì

$35

$76

$Ì

Ì
963
(14,513)
1,324
(856)

$

71 $ 8,044
(652)
Ì
(80)

(661)
(4,087)
13,503
359

Ì
8,044
(4,939)

$(2,711) $1,488
Ì
Ì
Ì
(2,711)
Ì
Ì
545

Ì
1,488
Ì
Ì
Ì

$(2,166) $1,488

AT&T Common Stock Group
On November 18, 2002, a 1-for-5 reverse stock split of AT&T common stock as approved by shareowners
on July 10, 2002, was eÅected. Shares (except shares authorized) and per share amounts were restated to
reÖect the stock split on a retroactive basis.
Basic earnings per common share (EPS) is computed by dividing income attributable to common
shareowners by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS
reÖects the potential dilution (considering the combined income and share impact) that could occur if
securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. The
potential issuance of common stock is assumed to occur at the beginning of the year, and the incremental
shares are included using the treasury stock method, which assumes the proceeds (after-tax) from exercise are
used by the Company to purchase common stock at the average market price during the period. The
incremental shares (diÅerence between the shares assumed to be issued and the shares assumed to be
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purchased), to the extent they would have been dilutive, are included in the denominator of the diluted EPS
calculation.
A reconciliation of the share components for AT&T Common Stock Group basic to diluted EPS
calculations is as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002(1)
2001(1),(2)
2000(1)
(Shares in millions)

Weighted-average common shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EÅect of dilutive securities:
Stock optionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Preferred stock of subsidiary ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Convertible quarterly income preferred securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Excite@Home Put Options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

746

729

697

1
3
16
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì

4
8
14
8

Weighted-average common shares and potential common shares

766

729

731

(1)

For 2002, 2001 and 2000, no adjustments were made to income for the computation of diluted EPS.

(2)

As AT&T reported a loss from its continuing operations for 2001, the eÅects of including incremental shares are antidilutive;
therefore, both basic and diluted EPS reÖect the same calculation.

Preferred Stock of Subsidiary
Pursuant to the AT&T Broadband and Comcast merger agreement, AT&T was required to redeem the
outstanding TCI PaciÑc Communications, Inc. Class A Senior Cumulative Exchangeable Preferred Stock
(TCI PaciÑc preferred stock) for AT&T common stock. All outstanding shares of TCI PaciÑc preferred stock
were either exchanged or redeemed for AT&T common stock during 2001 and 2002 (see note 10). At
December 31, 2001, the carrying value of TCI PaciÑc preferred stock was included in ""Minority Interest of
Discontinued Operations.'' Dividends were included in ""Net (loss) from discontinued operations'' for 2002,
2001 and 2000.
Convertible Quarterly Income Preferred Securities (Quarterly Preferred Securities)
On June 16, 1999, AT&T Finance Trust I, a wholly owned subsidiary of AT&T, completed the private
sale of 100 million shares of 5.0% cumulative quarterly income preferred securities (quarterly preferred
securities) to Microsoft Corporation. Such securities were convertible into AT&T common stock. However, in
connection with the AT&T Broadband spin-oÅ (see note 1), Comcast assumed the quarterly preferred
securities and Microsoft agreed to convert these preferred securities into shares of Comcast common stock. At
December 31, 2001, these securities were included in ""Company-Obligated Convertible Quarterly Income
Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trust Holding Solely Subordinated Debt Securities of AT&T of Discontinued Operations.'' Dividends were included in ""Net (loss) from discontinued operations'' for 2002, 2001 and
2000.
AT&T Wireless Group
Basic EPS from discontinued operations for AT&T Wireless Group for 2001 through June 30, 2001, the
deemed eÅective split-oÅ date for accounting purposes, and from April 27, 2000, the stock oÅering date,
through December 31, 2000, was computed by dividing income attributable to AT&T Wireless Group by the
weighted-average number of shares outstanding of AT&T Wireless Group of 438 million and 361 million,
respectively.
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Liberty Media Group
Basic (loss) earnings per share for LMG was computed by dividing (loss) income attributable to LMG
by the weighted-average number of LMG shares outstanding of 2,582 million in 2001 through July 31, 2001,
the deemed eÅective split-oÅ date for accounting purposes, and 2,572 million in 2000. Potentially dilutive
securities, including Ñxed and nonvested performance awards and stock options, have not been factored into
the dilutive calculations because past history indicated that these contracts were generally settled in cash.
6.

Net Restructuring and Other Charges

In 2002, net restructuring and other charges were $1,437 million which included a $1,029 million charge
for the impairment of the net assets of our consolidated subsidiary, AT&T Latin America. In December 2002,
the AT&T Board of Directors approved a plan for AT&T to sell its approximate 95% voting stake in AT&T
Latin America in its current condition. On December 31, 2002, we signed a non-binding term sheet for the
sale of our shares within one year for a nominal amount. As a result of this plan, we classiÑed AT&T Latin
America as an asset held for sale at fair market value, in accordance with SFAS No. 144. Consequently, there
are approximately $160 million of assets (principally cash and accounts receivable) included in Other Current
Assets and approximately $160 million of liabilities (principally secured short-term debt) included in Other
Current Liabilities. The $1,029 million charge to write the assets and liabilities down to their fair values was
reported within our AT&T Business Services segment.
Also included in net restructuring and other charges was a $204 million impairment charge related to
certain Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) assets (including internal-use software, licenses, and property, plant &
equipment) that will not be utilized by AT&T as result of changes to our ""DSL build'' strategy. Instead of
building DSL capabilities in all geographic areas initially targeted, we have signed an agreement with Covad
Communications to oÅer DSL services over their network. As a result, the assets in these areas were impaired.
This charge was reported within our AT&T Consumer Services segment.
In 2002, AT&T recorded net business restructuring charges of $204 million. These activities consisted of
new exit plans totaling $377 million and reversals of $173 million. The new plans primarily consisted of
$334 million for employee separation costs ($28 million of which was recorded as a pension liability associated
with management employees to be separated in 2002 which will be funded from the pension trust) and
$39 million of facility closing reserves. Slightly more than 4,800 employees will be separated in conjunction
with these exit plans, approximately one-half of which are management employees and one-half are nonmanagement employees. The majority of these employee separations will be involuntary. Approximately 14%
of the employees aÅected by these exit plans had left their positions by December 31, 2002, and we expect
those remaining to leave their positions by the end of 2003.
The $173 million reversal primarily consisted of $124 million of employee separation costs (approximately $48 million of which was reversed from the pension liability) and $26 million related to prior plan
facility closings that were deemed to be no longer necessary. The reversals were primarily due to management's determination that the restructuring plan established in the fourth quarter of 2001 for certain areas of
AT&T Business Services, including network services, needed to be modiÑed given current industry conditions,
as well as the redeployment of certain employees to diÅerent functions within the Company.
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The following table displays the activity and balances of the restructuring reserve account:
Employee
Separations

Type of Cost
Facility
Closings
Other
(Dollars in millions)

Total

Balance at January 1, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deductions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 150
442
(350)

$ 239
2
(67)

$ 21
62
(47)

$ 410
506
(464)

Balance at December 31, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deductions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

242
474
(230)

174
166
(36)

36
12
(29)

452
652
(295)

Balance at December 31, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deductions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

486
306
(413)

304
78
(99)

19
Ì
(16)

809
384
(528)

Balance at December 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 379

$ 283

$

3

$ 665

In addition to the new exit plans recorded during 2002, total additions for 2002 in the table above also
includes $39 million facility closing reserves recorded by Concert in 2001 and transferred to AT&T during
2002 as part of the unwind of that joint venture.
Deductions reÖect cash payments of $366 million, $249 million and $410 million for 2000, 2001 and
2002, respectively. These payments included cash termination beneÑts of $254 million, $202 million and
$328 million, for 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively, which were primarily funded through cash from
operations. In 2000, 2001 and 2002, reserves of $98 million, $13 million and $9 million, respectively, were
transferred out of the restructuring liability to long-term liability accounts as a result of exiting managers
deferring severance payments, primarily related to executives. Also included in 2001 and 2002 deductions are
reversals of prior business restructuring reserves of $33 million and $109 million, respectively. The business
restructuring plans of 2000 and 2001 were substantially complete as of December 31, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.
During 2001, net restructuring and other charges were $1,036 million which were primarily comprised of
$862 million for employee separations, of which $388 million related to beneÑts to be paid from pension assets
as well as pension and postretirement curtailment losses, and $166 million for facility closings. These charges
were slightly oÅset by the reversal of $33 million related to business restructuring plans announced in the
fourth quarter 1999 and the Ñrst quarter 2000 (of which $15 million related to employee separations and
$18 million related to contract terminations).
The charge covered separation costs for approximately 10,000 employees, approximately one-half of
whom were management employees and one-half were non-management employees. More than 9,000 employee separations related to involuntary terminations and the remaining 1,000 were voluntary.
During 2000, we recorded $758 million of net restructuring and other charges which included $586 million for employee separations, of which $144 million primarily related to pension and postretirement
curtailment losses, $91 million related to the government-mandated disposition of AT&T Communications
(U.K.) Ltd., which would have competed directly with Concert and $62 million of network lease and other
contract termination costs associated with penalties incurred as part of notifying vendors of the termination of
these contracts during the year.
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The charge covered separation costs for approximately 6,100 employees, approximately one-half of whom
were management employees and one-half were non-management employees. Approximately 5,500 of the
employee separations were related to involuntary terminations and approximately 600 related to voluntary
terminations.
7.

Investments
Equity Method Investments

We have investments in various companies and partnerships that are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting and included within ""Other assets.'' Under the equity method, investments are stated at
initial cost, and are adjusted for subsequent contributions and our share of earnings, losses and distributions as
well as declines in value that are ""other than temporary.'' At December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had equity
investments of $135 million and $313 million, respectively. Distributions from equity investments totaled
$5 million, $25 million and $13 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Summarized combined Ñnancial information for investments accounted for under the equity method that
were signiÑcant to AT&T's Ñnancial results in 2001 is as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) income from continuing
operations before extraordinary
items & cumulative eÅect of
accounting changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
At December 31,

Current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Non-current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Non-current liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Redeemable preferred stockÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minority interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Concert(1)
2001
2000

$ 6,189
(3,574)

$7,748
329

(3,609)
103
$(3,609) $ 103
2001

$ 3,744
1,758
4,296
76
Ì
Ì

AT&T Canada
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

$

947
(853)

$1,000
(226)

$1,001
(225)

Other Equity
Investments(2)
2001
2000

$3,813
86

$11,751
542

(1,247)
(521)
(351)
(18)
$(2,220) $ (518) $ (351) $ (20) $
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

$

386
496
3,152
41
Ì
Ì

$ 391
2,577
256
2,963
Ì
Ì

307
260

2001

$ 171
645
179
589
7
Ì

(1)

The Concert joint venture was unwound in April 2002; therefore, Ñnancial information for 2002 is not applicable.

(2)

AT&T did not have any individually signiÑcant equity investments in 2002 and on a combined basis such investments were not
signiÑcant to AT&T's 2002 Ñnancial results.

Concert
On April 1, 2002, Concert, our 50% owned joint venture with British Telecommunications plc (BT), was
oÇcially unwound and the venture's assets and customer accounts were distributed back to the parent
companies, as agreed to in 2001. Under the partnership termination agreement, each of the partners generally
reclaimed the customer contracts and assets that were initially contributed to the joint venture, including
international transport facilities and gateway assets. In addition, AT&T assumed certain other assets that BT
originally contributed to the joint venture.
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In 2001, the agreement to dissolve the Concert venture impacted AT&T's intent and ability to hold its
investment in Concert; therefore, AT&T recorded a $1.8 billion after-tax impairment charge ($2.9 billion
pretax) included in ""Net (losses) related to other equity investments.'' The charge related to the diÅerence
between the fair market value of the net assets AT&T was to receive in the transaction and the carrying value
of AT&T's investment in Concert. Certain items reserved for in 2001 were favorably settled resulting in a
$60 million after-tax reversal in 2002, recorded within ""Net (losses) earnings related to other equity
investments.''
AT&T Canada
At December 31, 2002, AT&T had an approximate 31% ownership interest in AT&T Canada. Pursuant
to a 1999 merger agreement, AT&T had a commitment to purchase, or arrange for another entity to purchase,
the publicly owned shares of AT&T Canada for the Back-end Price, which was the greater of the contractual
Öoor price or the fair market value. The Öoor price accreted 4% each quarter, commencing on June 30, 2000.
In 2002 and 2001, AT&T recorded charges reÖecting the estimated loss on this commitment. The
charges represented the diÅerence between the underlying value of the publicly owned AT&T Canada shares
and the price AT&T had committed to pay for them, including the 4% accretion of the Öoor price. After-tax
charges of $0.3 billion ($0.5 billion pretax) and $1.8 billion ($3.0 billion pretax) were recorded within ""Net
(losses) related to other equity investments'' for 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2001, this
liability of $3.0 billion was included in ""Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits.''
During 2002, AT&T arranged for third parties (Tricap Investment Corporation and CIBC Capital
Partners) to purchase the remaining 69% equity in AT&T Canada. As part of this agreement, AT&T agreed
to fund the purchase price on behalf of the third parties. Tricap and CIBC Partners made a nominal payment
to AT&T upon completion of the transaction. Although AT&T held an approximate 31% ownership interest in
AT&T Canada throughout 2002, it did not record equity earnings or losses since its investment balance was
written down to zero largely through losses generated by AT&T Canada. Subsequent to December 31, 2002,
AT&T entered into an agreement to dispose of its stake in AT&T Canada. In February 2003, pursuant to that
agreement, AT&T disposed of substantially all of its AT&T Canada shares.
Impairments Ì Equity Investments
Declines in value of equity method investments judged to be other-than-temporary are recorded in ""Net
(losses) related to other equity investments.'' In 2002 and 2001, we recorded impairment charges on equity
method investments of $0.3 billion after-tax ($0.5 billion pretax), and $4.3 billion after-tax ($7.0 billion
pretax), respectively.
The 2002 charges primarily related to AT&T Canada and the 2001 charges primarily related to AT&T
Canada and Concert, as discussed above. In addition, in 2001, we recorded an impairment charge on our
investment in Net2Phone, Inc. (Net2Phone) of $0.7 billion after-tax ($1.1 billion pretax). This charge
resulted from the deterioration of market valuations of Internet-related companies. In October 2001, AT&T
contributed its investment in Net2Phone to NTOP Holdings, LLC (NTOP), and received ownership in
NTOP. At December 31, 2001 AT&T retained an approximate 10% interest in NTOP, which was accounted
for as a cost method investment. It was subsequently sold in December 2002.
Cost Method Investments
At December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had cost method investments included in ""Other assets'' of
$0.6 billion and $1.6 billion, respectively. Under the cost method, earnings are recognized only to the extent
distributions are received from the accumulated earnings of the investee. Distributions received in excess of
accumulated earnings are recognized as a reduction of our investment balance. The Company's cost
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investments are classiÑed as available-for-sale and are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses,
net of tax, recorded as a separate component of ""Other comprehensive income (loss)'' in shareowners' equity.
At December 31, 2002 and 2001, approximately $0.5 billion and $1.3 billion, respectively, of these investments
were indexed to certain long-term debt instruments (see note 8).
Impairments Ì Cost Investments
Declines in value of available-for-sale securities, judged to be other-than-temporary, are recorded in
""Other (expense) income, net.'' During 2002 and 2001, we believed that certain investments would not
recover our cost basis in the foreseeable future given the signiÑcant decline in stock prices, the length of time
these investments had been below market, and industry speciÑc issues. Accordingly, we believed the declines
in value were other-than-temporary and, as a result, recorded investment impairment charges on such
securities of $0.1 billion after-tax ($0.1 billion pretax) and $0.3 billion after-tax ($0.5 billion pretax) for 2002
and 2001, respectively, consisting primarily of charges related to Time Warner Telecom in both years. In
addition, during 2002, we recorded a pretax impairment charge of $0.6 billion related to our holdings in AT&T
Wireless, which is monetized by debt indexed to the value of the AT&T Wireless shares (see note 8). The
debt contains an embedded derivative that is designated as a cash Öow hedge. At the time we recognized the
other-than-temporary decline in the value of AT&T Wireless as an expense, as permitted by SFAS No. 133,
we also recognized, in earnings, the previously unrecognized gain on the embedded derivative of $0.6 billion
pretax, resulting in no net income impact.
AT&T Wireless Group
On July 9, 2001, AT&T completed the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless (see note 1). At that time, AT&T
retained an approximate 7.3% interest in AT&T Wireless common stock. In 2001, we recorded a $0.5 billion
tax-free gain associated with the disposal of a portion of this ownership interest in a debt-for-equity exchange
in ""Other (expense) income, net.''
In February 2003, AT&T redeemed exchangeable notes that were indexed to AT&T Wireless common
stock. The notes were settled with 78.6 million AT&T Wireless shares (see note 8). Subsequently, AT&T sold
its remaining AT&T Wireless shares (approximately 12.2 million shares) for $72 million in cash, resulting in a
gain of $22 million.
Japan Telecom Co. Ltd
On April 27, 2001, AT&T completed the sale of its 10% stake in Japan Telecom Co. Ltd to Vodafone for
$1.35 billion in cash. The proceeds from the transaction were split evenly between AT&T and AT&T Wireless
Group since AT&T Wireless Group held approximately one-half of AT&T's investment. The transaction
resulted in a pretax gain of approximately $0.5 billion recorded in ""Other (expense) income, net'' and a pretax
gain of approximately $0.5 billion recorded in ""Net (loss) from discontinued operations.''
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8.

Debt Obligations
Debt Maturing within One Year

At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Commercial paper ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Short-term notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Currently maturing long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$1,091
1,086
1,581
4

$ 5,087
3,970
955
122

Total debt maturing within one year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$3,762

$10,134

Weighted-average interest rate of short-term debtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

3.7%

5.0%

Securitizations
During 2002, AT&T renewed both its AT&T Business Services and AT&T Consumer Services customer
accounts receivable securitization facilities, the terms of which have been extended to June (AT&T Business
Services) and July (AT&T Consumer Services) of 2003. Together, the 2002 programs provide up to
$2.0 billion of available Ñnancing, limited by monthly eligible receivable balances, which vary from month to
month. At December 31, 2002, the available Ñnancing was collateralized by $4.6 billion of accounts
receivable. Approximately $0.2 billion and $2.3 billion was outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, and was included in ""Short-term notes'' in the table above. Under the program, accounts
receivable are sold on a discounted, revolving basis, to special-purpose, wholly-owned and fully consolidated
subsidiaries of AT&T, which assign interests in such receivables to unrelated third-party Ñnancing entities.
Credit Facility
At December 31, 2002, we had a $3.0 billion 364-day credit facility available to us that was entered into
on October 9, 2002. The credit facility contains a Ñnancial covenant that requires AT&T to meet a net debtto-EBITDA ratio (as deÑned in the credit agreement) not exceeding 2.25 to 1.00 for four consecutive quarters
ending on the last day of each Ñscal quarter. It also contains a covenant that requires AT&T to maintain
$1.27 billion in unencumbered cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities. At December 31, 2002, we
were in compliance with these covenants.
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Long-Term Debt
At December 31,
2002(1)
2001(1)
(Dollars in millions)

Debentures and Notes
Interest Rates(2)
Maturities

4.59% - 6.00%
6.06% - 6.50%
6.75% - 7.50%
7.75% - 8.85%
9.90% - 19.95%(3)
Variable rate

2004 - 2009
2004 - 2029
2004 - 2006
2003 - 2031
2004 - 2004
2003 - 2054

$ 1,455
6,678
2,449
6,796
13
3,012

$ 6,760
4,960
4,459
5,328
21
3,440

Total debentures and notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unamortized discount, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

20,403
105
(115)

24,968
162
(150)

Total long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Less: Currently maturing long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

20,393
1,581

24,980
955

Net long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$18,812

$24,025

(1)

Debt amounts are included within the range of interest rates that are applied at each respective balance sheet date. See below for
discussion on interest rate changes that occurred during 2002.

(2)

The actual interest paid on our debt obligations may have diÅered from the stated amount due to our entering into interest rate swap
contracts to manage our exposure to interest rate risk and our strategy to reduce Ñnance costs (see note 9).

(3)

Interest rates greater than 10% are related to $8 million in bank loans held by AT&T Latin America in 2001. In 2002, AT&T Latin
America is classiÑed as an ""asset held for sale,'' and accordingly its associated liabilities, including debt, was recorded at fair value and
included in ""Other current liabilities'' at December 31, 2002 (see note 6).

The following table shows maturities at December 31, 2002, of the $20,393 million in total long-term
obligations:
2003

2004

$1,581

$2,437

2005
2006
(Dollars in millions)

$1,185

$4,328

2007

Later Years

$296

$10,566

In connection with the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, AT&T completed two debt exchanges. In the
AT&T Broadband debt exchange, $3.5 billion of outstanding AT&T notes (with interest rates ranging from
6.0% to 8.63%) were exchanged for notes that, upon completion of the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, became
notes of AT&T Broadband and are unconditionally guaranteed by Comcast and certain of its subsidiaries.
Also, $4.6 billion of outstanding long-term AT&T notes (with Ñxed interest rates ranging from 5.63% to
8.0%, and maturities of 2004, 2025 and 2029) were exchanged for new AT&T notes (with Ñxed interest rates
ranging from 6.38% to 8.6%, and maturities of 2004, 2013 and 2025) that upon completion of the spin-oÅ of
AT&T Broadband, have revised terms, including revised maturity dates and/or interest rates.
As a result of a long-term debt rating downgrade by Moody's, the interest rate on approximately
$10.0 billion of notes (with interest rates ranging from 6.0% to 8.0%) sold in November 2001, increased by
50 basis points eÅective with interest payment periods that begin after November 15, 2002, for the majority of
the notes.
The holders of certain private debt with an outstanding balance of $0.9 billion at December 31, 2002,
have an annual put right to cause AT&T to repay the debt upon payment of an exercise fee. In exchange for
the debt holders agreeing to not exercise their put right for 2002, AT&T posted a cash-collateralized letter of
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credit in 2002, totaling $0.4 billion, and expiring in March, 2005. The $0.4 billion is considered restricted cash
and is included in ""Other assets'' at December 31, 2002. The annual put right in 2003 expired on February 13,
2003, without exercise by the debt holders. The debt holders could accelerate repayment of the debt based on
certain events such as the occurrence of unfavorable local law or regulation changes in its country of operation.
On January 31, 2003, AT&T completed the early retirement of approximately $1,152 million and
$2,590 million long-term notes, with interest rates of 6.375% and 6.50%, due in March 2004 and March 2013,
respectively. The notes were repurchased with cash and resulted in a loss of $178 million recorded in ""Other
(expense) income, net'' in the Ñrst quarter of 2003.
Exchangeable Notes
During 2001, we issued long-term debt (exchangeable notes) that was indexed to AT&T Wireless
common stock and, at AT&T's option, was mandatorily redeemable with a number of shares of AT&T
Wireless common stock that was equal to the underlying shares multiplied by an exchange ratio, or its cash
equivalent. The notes were accounted for as indexed debt instruments because the carrying value of the debt
was dependent upon the fair market value of the underlying securities. In addition, the notes contained
embedded derivatives that required separate accounting. The economic characteristics of the embedded
derivatives (i.e. equity-like features) were not clearly and closely related to those of the host instruments (a
debt security). As a result, the embedded derivatives were separated from the host debt instrument for
valuation purposes and were carried at fair value within the host debt instrument. The embedded derivatives
for these exchangeable notes were designated as cash Öow hedges. The options hedged the market risk of a
decline in value of AT&T Wireless securities. The market risk of a decline in these securities, below the
respective put prices, had been eliminated. In addition, any market gains we may have earned had been
limited to the call prices. These designated options were carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recorded, net of income taxes, within ""Accumulated other comprehensive loss'' as a component of
shareowners' equity. There was no ineÅectiveness recognized on the cash Öow hedges.
The shares of AT&T Wireless common stock were accounted for as ""available-for-sale'' securities under
SFAS No. 115 with changes in the carrying value of the underlying securities that are not ""other-thantemporary'' being recorded as unrealized gains or losses, net of income taxes, within ""Other comprehensive
income (loss)'' as a component of shareowners' equity. See note 7 for a discussion of impairments recorded in
2002.
Following is a summary of the exchangeable notes outstanding at December 31, 2002:
Maturities

Face Value

Put Price
Interest Rate
Per Share
(Dollars in millions except per share amounts)

Indexed to 45.8 million shares of AT&T Wireless common stock:
2005
$220
LIBOR ° 0.4%
$14.41
2006
220
LIBOR ° 0.4%
14.41
2006
220
LIBOR ° 0.4%
14.41
Indexed to 45 million shares of AT&T Wireless common stock:
2006
$204
LIBOR ° 0.4%
$13.57
2006
201
LIBOR ° 0.4%
13.37
2006
204
LIBOR ° 0.4%
13.57

Call Price
Per Share

Carrying
Value

$18.87
19.31
19.74

$87
87
87

$19.03
19.27
19.90

$85
86
87

In February 2003, AT&T redeemed these exchangeable notes that had a carrying value of $652 million at
the time of settlement. The notes were settled with 78.6 million shares of AT&T Wireless common stock and
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$152 million in cash. The settlement resulted in a pretax gain of approximately $176 million. The 12.2 million
remaining AT&T Wireless shares were subsequently sold (see note 7).
9.

Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, we use various Ñnancial instruments, including derivative Ñnancial
instruments, for purposes other than trading. These instruments include letters of credit, guarantees of debt
and certain obligations of former aÇliates, interest rate swap agreements, foreign currency exchange contracts,
option contracts, equity contracts and warrants. Collateral is generally not required for these types of
instruments. However, as the requirements for collateral are generally dependent upon debt ratings and
market conditions, AT&T may be required to post collateral for interest rate and equity swaps, as well as
letters of credit in the future.
By their nature, all such instruments involve risk, including the credit risk of nonperformance by counterparties, and our maximum potential loss may exceed the amount recognized in our balance sheet. However, at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, in management's opinion, there was no signiÑcant risk of loss in the event of
nonperformance of the counter-parties to these Ñnancial instruments. We control our exposure to credit risk
through credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures. Other than the guarantee issued in
connection with the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless, we do not have any signiÑcant exposure to any individual
customer or counter-party, nor do we have any major concentration of credit risk related to any Ñnancial
instruments.
Letters of Credit
Letters of credit are purchased guarantees that ensure our performance or payment to third parties in
accordance with speciÑed terms and conditions. Management has determined that the Company's letters of
credit do not create additional risk to AT&T.
The notional amounts outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were $923 million and $408 million,
respectively. The letters of credit in eÅect at December 31, 2002, were collateralized by restricted cash of
$496 million, of which $442 million was recorded in ""Other assets'' and $54 million was recorded in ""Other
current assets.'' The fair values of the letters of credit, based on the fees paid to obtain the obligations, were
immaterial at December 31, 2002 and 2001.
Guarantees
From time to time, we guarantee the debt of our subsidiaries, and, in connection with the separation of
certain subsidiaries, we issued guarantees for certain debt and other obligations of our former subsidiaries
AT&T Capital Corp., NCR, AT&T Wireless and AT&T Broadband. We also issue indemniÑcations as part of
our software license agreements.
Total notional amounts of guaranteed debt at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were $506 million and
$59 million, respectively. Prior to the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, we had guaranteed certain debt of AT&T
Broadband that matures in 2038. Such guarantee remained outstanding after the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband
and at December 31, 2002 totaled $500 million. Comcast has provided us with an indemniÑcation for this debt
and, under the terms of the merger agreement between AT&T Broadband and Comcast, if Comcast does not
call the debt in 2003 they must provide us with a letter of credit in the amount of $500 million. The remaining
guarantees for debt have expiration dates ranging from 2003 to 2020. Should the Ñnancial condition of debtors,
including AT&T Broadband and Comcast, deteriorate to the point at which they are unable to meet their
obligations, third party creditors could look to us for payment. We currently hold no collateral for these
guarantees, and have not recorded corresponding obligations. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were no
quoted market prices for similar agreements.
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AT&T provides a guarantee of an obligation that AT&T Wireless has to NTT DoCoMo (DoCoMo).
The amounts of the guarantee at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were $4.1 billion and $3.9 billion, respectively.
On January 21, 2001, DoCoMo invested approximately $9.8 billion for shares of AT&T preferred stock that
were converted into AT&T Wireless common stock in connection with the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless. Of the
initial investment, AT&T retained approximately $3.6 billion, with the remainder of the proceeds allocated to
AT&T Wireless. In connection with that investment, AT&T and AT&T Wireless agreed that, under certain
circumstances, including if AT&T Wireless fails to meet speciÑc technological milestones by June 30, 2004,
DoCoMo would have the right to require AT&T Wireless to repurchase its AT&T Wireless common stock for
$9.8 billion, plus interest. In the event AT&T Wireless is unable to satisfy the entire obligation, AT&T is
secondarily liable for up to $3.65 billion, plus accrued interest. On December 26, 2002, AT&T Wireless and
DoCoMo entered into an amendment to the original agreement which, among other things, extended the
deadline for compliance with the technological milestones to December 31, 2004. We currently hold no
collateral for this guarantee, and have not recorded a corresponding obligation. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, there were no quoted market prices for similar agreements.
The total notional amount of other guaranteed obligations at December 31, 2002, was $458 million. Prior
to the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, we had guaranteed various obligations of AT&T Broadband. In
connection with the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, we continue to provide guarantees of these obligations,
including operating leases for real estate, surety bonds, and equity hedges. These guarantees have expiration
dates ranging from 2003 through 2007. Comcast has provided indemniÑcations for these guarantees of
$458 million at December 31, 2002. Should the Ñnancial condition of AT&T Broadband and Comcast
deteriorate to the point at which they are unable to meet their obligations, third party creditors could look to us
for payment. We currently hold no collateral for these guarantees, and have not recorded corresponding
obligations. At December 31, 2002, there were no quoted market prices for similar agreements.
The total notional amounts of software license indemniÑcations with a stated maximum liability, at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, were approximately $50 million and $30 million, respectively. In addition, in a
few instances, our liability is limited by the value of the licensing fees received or is not limited at all. Amounts
related to these indemniÑcations cannot be estimated. The indemniÑcations generally have terms that coincide
with the software license which may be until terminated by the licensee. Under the terms of these agreements,
we indemnify licensees against damages, expenses and losses arising from third party claims and proceedings
against trademark, copyright and/or patent infringement. We currently hold no collateral for these guarantees
and have not recorded corresponding obligations. At December 31, 2002, there were no quoted market prices
for similar agreements.
Interest Rate Swap Agreements
We enter into interest rate swaps to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates. We enter into swap
agreements to manage the Ñxed/Öoating mix of our debt portfolio in order to reduce aggregate risk to interest
rate movements. Interest rate swaps also allow us to raise funds at Öoating rates and eÅectively swap them into
Ñxed rates that are generally lower than those available to us if Ñxed-rate borrowings were made directly.
These agreements involve the exchange of Öoating-rate for Ñxed-rate payments or the exchange of Ñxed-rate
for Öoating-rate payments without the exchange of the underlying principal amount. Floating-rate payments
are tied to the LIBOR. We also designated certain interest-rate swaps as cash Öow hedges under SFAS
No. 133, ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.''
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The following table indicates the types of swaps in use at December 31, 2002 and 2001, the respective
notional amounts and their weighted-average interest rates. Average Öoating rates are those in eÅect at the
reporting date, and may change signiÑcantly over the lives of the contracts:
At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Floating-rate to Ñxed-rate swaps Ì notional amountÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Weighted-average receive rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Weighted-average pay rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 190
1.81%
7.30%

$ 218
2.08%
7.31%

In addition, we have combined interest rate, foreign currency swap agreements for foreign-currencydenominated debt, which hedge our risk to both interest rate and currency movements. At December 31, 2002
and 2001, the notional amounts related to these contracts was $3.8 billion, of which $3.1 billion was associated
with our Euro bond oÅering in 2001.
The table below summarizes the fair and carrying values of the agreements. These swaps are valued using
current market quotes, which were obtained from dealers.
2002
2001
Fair/Carrying
Fair/Carrying
Value
Value
Asset
Liability
Asset
Liability
(Dollars in millions)

Interest rate swap agreements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Combined interest rate foreign currency swap agreements ÏÏÏÏ

$ Ì
660

$23
Ì

$Ì
18

$18
26

Foreign Exchange
We enter into foreign currency forward contracts to manage our exposure to changes in currency
exchange rates related to foreign-currency-denominated transactions. Although we do not designate most of
our foreign exchange contracts as accounting hedges, we have certain contracts that are designated as foreign
currency cash Öow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133. At December 31, 2002, our foreign exchange
contracts consisted principally of Euros, Japanese yen, and Swiss francs. At December 31, 2001, our foreign
exchange contracts consisted principally of Canadian dollars (which related to our obligation to purchase the
remaining shares of AT&T Canada), Euros, Japanese yen, Swiss francs, and Brazilian reais. In addition, we
are subject to foreign exchange risk related to other foreign-currency-denominated transactions. The notional
amounts under contract at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were $742 million and $6.4 billion, respectively. The
decrease from 200l was primarily due to approximately $5.3 billion in 2001 of foreign exchange contracts
relating to a Euro Commercial Paper Program and our obligation to purchase the outstanding AT&T Canada
shares we did not own. A signiÑcant portion of our debt under the Euro Commercial Paper Program was paid
down in 2002, and our obligation to purchase the outstanding shares of AT&T Canada was satisÑed in 2002.
The following table summarizes the fair and carrying values of the foreign exchange contracts at December 31, 2002 and 2001. These foreign exchange contracts are valued using current market quotes which were
obtained from independent sources.
2002
2001
Fair/Carrying
Fair/Carrying
Value
Value
Asset
Liability
Asset
Liability
(Dollars in millions)

Foreign exchange contracts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
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Equity Option and Equity Swap Contracts
We enter into equity option and equity swap contracts, which are undesignated, to manage our exposure
to changes in equity prices associated with various equity awards of previously aÇliated companies (see
note 12). The notional amounts outstanding on these contracts at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were
$112 million and $19 million, respectively. The following table summarizes the carrying and fair values of
these instruments at December 31, 2002 and 2001. Fair values are based on market quotes.
2002
2001
Carrying/Fair
Carrying/Fair
Value
Value
Asset
Liability
Asset
Liability
(Dollars in millions)

Equity hedges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$Ì

$25

$Ì

$15

Warrants
We may obtain warrants to purchase equity securities in private and public companies as a result of
certain transactions. Private warrants and public warrants that provide for net share settlement (i.e. allow for
cashless exercise) are considered to be derivative instruments and recognized on our balance sheet at fair
value (in accordance with SFAS No. 133). Warrants are not eligible to be designated as hedging instruments
because there is no underlying exposure. Instead, these are eÅectively investments in private and public
companies. The fair value of these warrants, as determined by using the Black-Scholes model, was $2 million
and $24 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Debt Securities
The carrying value of debt with an original maturity of less than one year approximates market value. The
table below summarizes the carrying and fair values of long-term debt (including currently maturing longterm debt), excluding capital leases, at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The fair values of long-term debt were
obtained based on quotes or rates available to us for debt with similar terms and maturities.
2002
2001
Carrying Value
Fair Value
Carrying Value
Fair Value
(Dollars in millions)

Long-term debt, excluding capital leases ÏÏ

$20,292

$21,030

$24,820

$24,704

Derivative Impacts
The following table summarizes the activity in ""Accumulated other comprehensive loss'' in Shareowners'
equity related to derivatives designated as cash Öow hedges during the periods January 1, 2001 (date of the
company's adoption of SFAS No. 133) through December 31, 2002. Unrealized amounts recorded within
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""Accumulated other comprehensive loss'' prior to adoption of SFAS No. 133 were recognized in earnings in
conjunction with the adoption of SFAS No. 133 ($1.6 billion pretax; $1.0 billion after-tax), (see note 3).
Pretax
After-tax
(Dollars in millions)

Balance at January 1, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrealized gains (losses) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Realized (gains) losses reclassiÑed into earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

Ì
(480)
85

Balance at December 31, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrealized gains (losses) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Realized (gains) losses reclassiÑed into earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net amounts spun-oÅ with AT&T Broadband ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ (395)
1,747
(1,259)
317

$ (244)
1,078
(777)
196

Balance at December 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

$ 253

410

$

Ì
(296)
52

Included within the balance at December 31, 2002, were unrealized gains of $131 million pretax
($81 million after-tax) on embedded derivatives related to exchangeable notes that were indexed to AT&T
Wireless common stock, which were settled in February 2003. The remaining balance of unrealized gains at
December 31, 2002, was largely oÅset within ""Accumulated other comprehensive loss'' by unrealized losses
on the underlying debt. Based upon the expiration or maturity dates of these remaining derivatives designated
as cash Öow hedges, we do not expect additional amounts to be transferred into earnings within the next year.
10.

Equity Transactions

Pursuant to the AT&T Broadband and Comcast merger agreement, AT&T was required to redeem the
outstanding TCI PaciÑc Communications, Inc. Class A Senior Cumulative Exchangeable Preferred Stock for
AT&T common stock. Each share of TCI PaciÑc preferred stock was exchangeable at the option of the holder
for 8.365 shares (1.673 adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse stock split) of AT&T common stock. All outstanding
shares (approximately 6.2 million) of TCI PaciÑc preferred stock with a carrying value of $2.1 billion at
December 31, 2001 (included in Minority Interest of Discontinued Operations in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet), were either exchanged or redeemed for approximately 51.8 million shares (10.4 million shares
adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse stock split) of AT&T common stock. No gain or loss was recorded on the
exchange/redemption of the TCI PaciÑc preferred stock.
During 2002, AT&T issued 14.7 million shares (2.9 million shares adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse stock
split) of AT&T common stock to certain current and former senior managers in settlement of their deferred
compensation accounts. Pursuant to AT&T's deferred compensation plan, senior managers may defer shortand long-term incentive compensation awards. The issuance of these shares resulted in an increase to total
shareowners' equity of $196 million.
In June 2002, AT&T completed a public equity oÅering of 230 million shares (46 million shares adjusted
for the 1-for-5 reverse stock split) of AT&T common stock for net proceeds of $2.5 billion. AT&T utilized the
proceeds from the oÅering to satisfy a portion of its obligation to AT&T Canada common shareholders (see
note 7).
On January 22, 2001, NTT DoCoMo invested approximately $9.8 billion for 812,512 shares of a new
class of AT&T preferred stock with a par value of $1 per share. On July 9, 2001, in conjunction with the splitoÅ of AT&T Wireless Group, these preferred shares were converted into AT&T Wireless common stock.
During 2001, we recorded dividend requirements on this preferred stock of $652 million. The preferred stock
dividend represented interest in connection with the DoCoMo preferred stock as well as accretion of the
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beneÑcial conversion feature associated with this preferred stock. The beneÑcial conversion feature was
recorded upon the issuance of the preferred stock and represented the excess of the fair value of the preferred
shares issued over the proceeds received.
11.

Pension, Postretirement and Other Employee BeneÑt Plans

We sponsor noncontributory, deÑned beneÑt pension plans covering the majority of our employees.
Pension beneÑts for management employees are based principally on career-average pay. Pension beneÑts for
occupational employees are not directly related to pay. Pension trust contributions are made to trust funds held
for the sole beneÑt of plan participants. Our beneÑt plans for current and certain future retirees include healthcare beneÑts, life insurance coverage and telephone concessions.
The following table shows the components of the net periodic beneÑt (credit) costs for continuing
operations included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Service cost Ì beneÑts earned during the
period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest cost on beneÑt obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of unrecognized prior service
cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Credit for expected return on plan assetsÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of transition assetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of (gains) losses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Charges for special termination
(credits) beneÑts*ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net curtailment losses (gains)* ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net settlement losses* ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net periodic beneÑt (credit) cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2002

$

Pension BeneÑts
Postretirement BeneÑts
2001
2000
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

209
1,002

152
(1,526)
(34)
(22)
(19)
Ì
6
$ (232)

$

226
938

172
(1,647)
(89)
(182)
188
113
4
$ (277)

$

239
983

174
(1,812)
(156)
(332)
Ì
121
8
$ (775)

$

23
365

$

26
344

$

34
351

12
(187)
Ì
5

4
(201)
Ì
Ì

4
(230)
Ì
(16)

Ì
Ì
Ì

28
59
Ì

16
(14)
Ì

$ 218

$ 260

$ 145

* Primarily included in ""Net restructuring and other charges'' in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In connection with our restructuring plan announced in the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded a
$188 million charge related to management employee separation beneÑts expected to be funded by assets of
the AT&T Management Pension Plan as well as a $28 million charge related to expanded eligibility for
postretirement beneÑts for certain employees expected to exit under the plan. We also recorded pension and
postretirement beneÑt curtailment charges of $172 million.
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The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plans' beneÑt obligations and fair value
of assets, and a statement of the funded status:
Postretirement
Pension BeneÑts
BeneÑts
2002
2001
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Change in beneÑt obligations:
BeneÑt obligation, beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Service costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Plan amendmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Actuarial losses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑt payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Special termination (credits) beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Settlements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Curtailment losses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$13,878
$12,898
$ 5,277
209
226
23
1,002
938
365
34
62
14
1,134
655
640
(1,221)
(1,072)
(480)
(19)
188
Ì
(32)
(17)
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì

$ 4,851
26
344
Ì
373
(406)
28
Ì
61

BeneÑt obligation, end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$14,985

$ 5,277

Change in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Actual return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Employer contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑt payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Settlements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$18,449
$21,055
$ 2,156
(1,663)
(1,576)
(255)
70
59
324
(1,221)
(1,072)
(480)
(32)
(17)
Ì

$ 2,521
(214)
255
(406)
Ì

Fair value of plan assets, end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$15,603

$18,449

$ 1,745

$ 2,156

$

$ 4,571
(2,624)
(34)
887

$(4,094)
1,684
Ì
(10)

$(3,121)
606
Ì
(12)

$ 2,800

$(2,420)

$(2,527)

At December 31:
Funded (unfunded) beneÑt obligationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrecognized net loss (gain) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrecognized transition asset ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrecognized prior service cost (credits) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net amount recordedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

618
1,715
Ì
769

$ 3,102

$13,878

$ 5,839

The AT&T Management Pension Plan had an unfunded accumulated beneÑt obligation of $1.1 billion as
of December 31, 2002. The accumulated beneÑt obligation of $9.4 billion at December 31, 2002, was in excess
of the fair value of the plan assets of $8.3 billion. Our nonqualiÑed pension plans had an unfunded
accumulated beneÑt obligation of $98 million and $113 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The unfunded accumulated beneÑt obligation for the AT&T Management Pension Plan is attributed
primarily to the loss in value of the plan assets and the impact of the decline in the discount rate used to value
the pension beneÑt obligations. As a result, due to the under-funded status of these plans, in 2002, the
Company recorded an additional minimum pension liability of $699 million. The oÅset to this liability was an
intangible asset of $410 million and a charge to ""Other comprehensive income (loss)'' of $289 million
($179 million, net of tax).
Our postretirement welfare beneÑt plans and telephone concession beneÑt plans had accumulated
postretirement beneÑt obligations of $5.9 billion at December 31, 2002, which was in excess of plan assets of
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$1.7 billion. Our postretirement welfare beneÑt plans and telephone concession beneÑt plans had accumulated
postretirement beneÑt obligations of $5.3 billion at December 31, 2001, which was in excess of plan assets of
$2.2 billion.
At December 31, 2002 and 2001, our pension plan assets included $13 million and $31 million of AT&T
common stock, respectively.
The following table provides the amounts recorded in our Consolidated Balance Sheets:
At December 31,

Postretirement
Pension BeneÑts
BeneÑts
2002
2001
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Prepaid pension cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑt related liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Intangible asset (in ""Other assets'') ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accumulated other comprehensive incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 3,596
(1,255)
456
305

$3,329
(591)
46
16

$
Ì
(2,420)
Ì
Ì

$
Ì
(2,527)
Ì
Ì

Net amount recordedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 3,102

$2,800

$(2,420)

$(2,527)

The assumptions in the following table were used in the measurement of the pension and postretirement
beneÑt obligations and the net periodic beneÑt costs, as applicable. These assumptions were reassessed as of
December 31, 2002. The discount rate was reduced to 6.5% based on current yields on high quality corporate
Ñxed-income investments with maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the beneÑt obligations.
The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets was adjusted downward to 8.5% eÅective January 1, 2003,
primarily in consideration of the current and projected investment portfolio mix and estimated long-term
investment returns for each asset class. Additionally, the rate of projected compensation increases was reduced
to 4.25% reÖecting expected inÖation levels, our actual recent experience and future outlook. Our previous
years' disclosed compensation rates have been restated to include the component of the assumed compensation rate increase attributable to employee promotion.
At December 31,

Weighted-Average
Assumptions
2002
2001
2000

Discount rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Expected return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Rate of compensation increase ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

6.50% 7.25% 7.50%
9.0% 9.5% 9.5%
4.25% 5.9% 5.9%

We assumed a rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health-care beneÑts (the health-care cost
trend rate) of 10.9%. This rate was assumed to gradually decline after 2002 to 5.0% by 2010 and then remain
level. Assumed health-care cost trend rates have a signiÑcant eÅect on the amounts reported for the healthcare plans. A one percentage point increase or decrease in the assumed health-care cost trend rate would
increase or decrease the total of the service and interest-cost components of net periodic postretirement
health-care beneÑt cost by $11 million and $10 million, respectively, and would increase or decrease the
health-care component of the accumulated postretirement beneÑt obligation by $175 million and $152 million,
respectively.
We also sponsor savings plans for the majority of our employees. The plans allow employees to contribute
a portion of their pretax and/or after-tax income in accordance with speciÑed guidelines. We match a
percentage of the employee contributions up to certain limits. Contributions relating to continuing operations
amounted to $135 million in 2002, $131 million in 2001, and $206 million in 2000.
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12.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Under the 1997 Long-term Incentive Program (Program), which was eÅective June 1, 1997, and
amended on May 19, 1999, and March 14, 2000, we grant stock options, performance shares, restricted stock
and other awards on AT&T common stock, and also granted stock options on AT&T Wireless Group tracking
stock prior to the split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless.
Under the initial terms of the Program, there were 30 million shares of AT&T common stock available
for grant with a maximum of 4.5 million common shares that could be used for awards other than stock
options. Subsequent to the 1999 modiÑcation, beginning with January 1, 2000, the remaining shares available
for grant at December 31 of the prior year, plus 1.75% of the shares of AT&T common stock outstanding on
January 1 of each year, become available for grant. Under the amended terms, a maximum of 7.5 million
shares may be used for awards other than stock options. In 2001, as a result of the AT&T Wireless split-oÅ,
the number of shares available for grant increased by 3.5 million which includes 0.6 million for awards other
than stock options. In 2002, AT&T restructured stock options and other stock-based awards in conjunction
with the AT&T Broadband spin-oÅ. The number of shares available for grant increased by 44.5 million which
includes 0.8 million for awards other than stock options. The exercise price of any stock option is equal to the
stock price when the option is granted. Generally, the options vest over three or four years and are exercisable
up to 10 years from the date of grant. (All above share amounts have been adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse
stock split.)
Under the Program, performance share units are awarded to key employees in the form of either common
stock or cash at the end of a three-year period, based on certain Ñnancial-performance targets.
On April 27, 2000, AT&T created a new class of stock and completed an oÅering of AT&T Wireless
Group tracking stock. Under the Program, AT&T issued AT&T Wireless Group stock options to employees.
The exercise price of any stock option was equal to the stock price when the option was granted. When
granted, the options had a two to three and one-half year vesting period, and were exercisable up to 10 years
from the date of grant. On April 27, 2000, substantially all employees were granted AT&T Wireless Group
tracking stock options.
In connection with the July 9, 2001 split-oÅ of AT&T Wireless Group, all outstanding AT&T Wireless
Group tracking stock options and all AT&T common stock options granted prior to January 1, 2001, were
converted in the same manner as common shares (see note 1). AT&T modiÑed the terms and conditions of all
outstanding stock option grants to allow the AT&T Wireless common stock options held by AT&T employees
to immediately vest and become exercisable for their remaining contractual term and to also allow the AT&T
common stock options held by AT&T Wireless employees to immediately vest and become exercisable for
their remaining contractual term. In 2001, AT&T recognized $3 million of compensation expense related to
these modiÑcations.
In connection with the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband, all outstanding AT&T stock options held by active
AT&T employees were restructured into an adjusted number of AT&T options. All outstanding AT&T stock
options held by active AT&T Broadband employees were restructured into an adjusted number of AT&T
Broadband options and subsequently replaced with new Comcast stock options, and all AT&T stock options
held by inactive employees at the time of the spin-oÅ were converted into adjusted AT&T stock options and
new Comcast stock options. In January 2002, AT&T modiÑed the terms and conditions of outstanding AT&T
stock options and other equity awards granted under plans other than the Program and held by AT&T
Broadband employees. This modiÑcation provided that upon the change in control of AT&T Broadband, their
stock options and other equity awards granted prior to December 19, 2001, would be immediately vested and
exercisable through their remaining contractual term. In 2002, $48 million (pretax) of compensation expense
related to this modiÑcation was recognized by AT&T Broadband and is included within ""Gain on disposition
of discontinued operations.''
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Under the AT&T 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Plan), which was eÅective July 1, 1996, and
amended on May 23, 2001, we are authorized to sell up to 21 million shares of AT&T common stock to our
eligible employees through June 30, 2006. Under the terms of the Plan, employees may have up to 10% of
their earnings withheld to purchase AT&T's common stock. The purchase price of the stock on the date of
exercise is 85% of the average high and low sale prices of shares on the New York Stock Exchange for that
day. Under the Plan, we sold approximately 1.3 million, 1.2 million and 1.1 million shares to employees in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. (All above share amounts have been adjusted for the 1-for-5 reverse stock
split.)
A summary of the AT&T common stock option transactions is shown below. (All share and per share
amounts have been restated to reÖect the 1-for-5 reverse stock split.)

2002

Outstanding at January 1, ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
63,509
Options assumed in mergers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Options granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
15,183
AT&T Wireless split-oÅ adjustments ÏÏÏ
AT&T Broadband spin-oÅ adjustmentsÏÏ
37,049
Options and SARs exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(436)
Options canceled or forfeited ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (17,048)
At December 31:
Options outstanding ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
98,257
Options exercisable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
46,770
Shares available for grant ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
27,751

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price*

WeightedAverage
Exercise
2001
Price*
(Shares in thousands)

2000

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price*

$122.90

49,805

$179.10
110.85

33,753
5,923
14,914

$187.10
123.55
180.60

68.84

13,680
4,330

32.28
125.72

(1,044)
(3,262)

58.15
155.35

(2,290)
(2,495)

110.35
228.05

40.64
49.88

63,509
34,289
6,944

122.90
130.25

49,805
26,290
6,841

179.10
152.20

* The weighted-average exercise prices for the period prior to the AT&T Wireless split-oÅ in 2001, and for the year ended December 31,
2000, have not been adjusted to reÖect the impact of the split-oÅ. The weighted-average exercise prices for the period prior to the
AT&T Broadband spin-oÅ in 2002, and for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, have not been adjusted to reÖect the impact
of the spin-oÅ.
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The following table summarizes information about the AT&T common stock options outstanding at
December 31, 2002:

Range of Exercise Prices

$ 3.93 Ó $23.70 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$23.88 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$23.94 Ó $28.00 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$28.03 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$28.23 Ó $33.66 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$33.68 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$33.77 Ó $38.27 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$38.31 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$38.48 Ó $46.73 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$46.91 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$47.04 Ó $61.54 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$61.66 Ó $87.01 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$87.51 Ó $90.80 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Options Outstanding
WeightedNumber
Average
Outstanding at
Remaining
WeightedDecember 31,
Contractual
Average
2002
Life
Exercise Price
(In thousands)

Options Exercisable
Number
Exercisable at
December 31,
2002
(In thousands)

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

3,368
10,417
1,166
21,465
9,148
8,341
8,206
3,657
4,050
5,553
8,609
9,136
5,141

5.6
9.7
8.5
9.1
8.2
8.2
4.6
4.1
4.6
7.6
5.5
6.9
6.1

$16.76
$23.88
$25.75
$28.03
$32.15
$33.68
$35.68
$38.31
$44.35
$46.91
$59.06
$71.10
$87.52

2,316
8
406
422
3,716
2,823
7,172
3,657
3,459
3,113
8,506
7,146
4,026

$14.57
$23.88
$25.59
$28.03
$32.04
$33.68
$35.68
$38.31
$44.21
$46.91
$59.15
$71.71
$87.52

98,257

7.4

$40.64

46,770

$49.88

A summary of the AT&T Wireless Group tracking stock option transactions is shown below:

2001

Outstanding at January 1: ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
73,626
Options granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
4,037
Options exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(1)
Options canceled or forfeited ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(2,711)
Options assumed by AT&T Wireless on July 9th ÏÏÏÏ (74,951)
At December 31:
Options outstandingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Options exercisable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Shares available for grant ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ì
Ì
Ì

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price
2000
(Shares in thousands)

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

$29.29
$22.57
$22.03
$29.11

Ì
76,983
Ì
(3,357)

$ Ì
$29.29
$ Ì
$29.43

$
$

73,626
12,391
41,874

$29.29
$29.48

Ì
Ì

In 2002, AT&T oÅered employees the option to cancel certain outstanding stock option grants and
replace them with restricted stock units. Approximately 15 million stock options were canceled as a result of
this oÅer, and 2.5 million restricted stock units were granted which vest over a three-year period. The
2.5 million restricted stock units were restructured into 6.5 million units as a result of the spin-oÅ of AT&T
Broadband. Those options that were eligible for cancelation but retained by the employee became variable
awards and will be marked to market until the options are exercised, forfeited, or expired unexercised. The
cancelation of stock options had an immaterial impact on 2002 results of operations.
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The weighted-average fair values at date of grant for AT&T common stock options granted during 2002,
2001 and 2000 were $24.49, $39.50 and $60.50, respectively, and were estimated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The weighted-average risk-free interest rates applied for 2002, 2001 and 2000 were
3.73%, 4.61% and 6.29%, respectively. The following assumptions were applied for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively: (i) expected dividend yields of 1.17%, 0.85% and 1.6%, (ii) expected volatility rates of 40.0%,
36.9% and 33.5% and (iii) expected lives of 4.7 years in 2002, 2001 and 2000.
The weighted-average fair values at date of grant for AT&T Wireless Group tracking stock options
granted during 2001 and 2000 were $11.58 and $14.20, respectively, and were estimated using the BlackScholes option-pricing model. The following weighted-average assumptions were applied for 2001 and 2000,
respectively: (i) risk-free rate of 4.92% and 6.53%, (ii) expected volatility rate of 55.0% in 2001 and 2000 and
(iii) expected lives of 4.8 years and 3.9 years.
EÅective January 1, 2003, AT&T will begin recording compensation expense pursuant to SFAS No. 123,
""Accounting for Stock Based Compensation,'' for AT&T common stock options issued subsequent to
January 1, 2003. The fair value of these stock options will be measured on the grant date and recognized in the
income statement over the vesting period. (For additional information, see note 2.)
13.

Income Taxes

The following table shows the principal reasons for the diÅerence between the eÅective income tax rate
and the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

U.S. federal statutory income tax rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Federal income tax (provision) at statutory rateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of investment tax creditsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
State and local income tax (provision), net of federal income tax
eÅectÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Latin America charge ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Foreign operations, net of tax credits ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Investment dispositions, acquisitions and legal entity
restructurings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Research and other creditsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other diÅerences, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

35%
35%
35%
$ (993) $(2,683) $(4,368)
16
18
23
(222)
(360)
(140)

(209)
Ì
(107)

(292)
Ì
(20)

93
51
(32)

91
42
(42)

70
36
64

(Provision) for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(1,587)

$(2,890)

$(4,487)

EÅective income tax rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

56.0%

37.7%

35.9%
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The U.S. and foreign components of income from continuing operations before income taxes and the
(provision) for income taxes are presented in the following table:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes
United StatesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 2,924
(88)

$ 7,671
(5)

$12,727
(247)

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 2,836

$ 7,666

$12,480

(Provision) For Income Taxes
Current:
Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
State and localÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 1,041
19
(95)

$(1,554)
(192)
(98)

(3,126)
(416)
(87)

(1,844)

(3,629)

965
Deferred:
Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
State and localÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(2,201)
(360)
(7)

(936)
(129)
1

(851)
(34)
4

Deferred investment tax creditsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(2,568)
16

(1,064)
18

(881)
23

(Provision) for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(1,587)

$(2,890)

$(4,487)

We also recorded current and deferred income tax beneÑts that resulted from net losses (earnings) related to other equity investments in the amounts of $112 million in 2002, $2.9 billion in 2001, and
$59 million in 2000.
Deferred income tax liabilities are taxes we expect to pay in future periods. Similarly, deferred income tax
assets are recorded for expected reductions in taxes payable in future periods. Deferred income taxes arise
because of diÅerences in the book and tax basis of certain assets and liabilities.
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Deferred income tax liabilities and assets consist of the following:
At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

Deferred Income Tax Assets
Reserves and allowances ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Employee pensions and other beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Business restructuring ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
InvestmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net operating loss, capital loss and credit carryforwardsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Advance payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other deferred tax assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Valuation allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 845
604
297
281
252
174
162
(689)

$2,237
843
359
423
70
30
419
(34)

Total deferred income tax assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1,926

4,347

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Leveraged and capital leasesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Capitalized software and intangible assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

3,135
1,059
743
818

3,230
1,078
575
710

Total deferred income tax liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

5,755

5,593

Net deferred income tax liability ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$3,829

$1,246

The net increase in the valuation allowance in 2002 of $655 million was primarily attributable to the book
and tax basis diÅerence relating to our investment in AT&T Latin America.
At December 31, 2002, the tax eÅect of net operating and capital loss carryforwards for federal and state
income tax purposes were $10 million and $130 million, respectively, which expire through 2021. In addition,
at December 31, 2002, federal tax credit carryforwards were $1 million, with no expiration date, and state tax
credit carry-forwards were $111 million expiring through 2016.
14.

Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business we are subject to proceedings, lawsuits and other claims, including
proceedings under laws and regulations related to environmental and other matters. Such matters are subject
to many uncertainties, and outcomes are not predictable with assurance.
In connection with the separation of its former subsidiaries, AT&T has entered into a number of
separation and distribution agreements that provide, among other things, for the allocation and/or sharing of
certain costs associated with potential litigation liabilities. For example, pursuant to these agreements, AT&T
shares in the cost of certain litigation (relating to matters while aÇliated with AT&T) if the settlement
exceeds certain thresholds. With the exception of the Sparks matter (see note 1), as of December 31, 2002,
we have assessed that none of the litigation liabilities allocated to former subsidiaries were probable of
incurring costs in excess of the threshold above which we would be required to share in the costs. However, in
the event these former subsidiaries were unable to meet their obligations with respect to these liabilities due to
Ñnancial diÇculties, AT&T could be held responsible for all or a portion of the costs, irrespective of the
sharing agreements.
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Consequently, we are unable to ascertain the ultimate aggregate amount of monetary liability or Ñnancial
impact with respect to these matters at December 31, 2002. However, we believe that after Ñnal disposition,
any monetary liability or Ñnancial impact to us beyond that provided for at year-end would not be material to
our annual consolidated Ñnancial statements.
Leases and Other Commitments
From time to time, AT&T provides guarantees of debt or other obligations relating to former subsidiaries.
(Guarantees are occasionally provided for subsidiaries when owned by AT&T or in connection with its
separation from AT&T. See note 9 for a detailed discussion of these guarantees.)
We lease land, buildings and equipment through contracts that expire in various years through 2040. Our
rental expense under operating leases was $529 million in 2002, $552 million in 2001 and $583 million in 2000.
The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancelable operating subleases as of
December 31, 2002, was $250 million.
The following table shows our future minimum commitments due under non-cancelable operating and
capital leases at December 31, 2002:
Operating
Capital
Leases
Leases
(Dollars in millions)

2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Later years ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 480
409
320
252
203
460

$ 10
19
8
8
8
100

Total minimum lease payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$2,124

153

Less: Amount representing interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

52

Present value of net minimum lease payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$101

In addition, under certain real estate operating leases, we could be required to make payments to the
lessor of up to $447 million at the end of the lease term (ending in years 2004 through 2007). The actual
amount paid, if any, would be reduced by amounts received by the lessor upon remarketing of the property.
(See note 18 for a discussion of the possible consolidation of certain of entities that we lease facilities from.)
AT&T has contractual obligations to utilize network facilities from local exchange carriers with terms
greater than one year. Since the contracts have no minimum volume requirement and are based on an
interrelationship of volumes and discounted rates, we assessed our minimum exposure based on penalties to
exit the contracts on December 31 of each year. At December 31, 2002, the penalties AT&T would incur if we
exited all of these contracts would be $2.1 billion.
15.

Segment Reporting

AT&T's results are segmented according to the customers we service: AT&T Business Services and
AT&T Consumer Services.
AT&T Business Services provides a variety of services to various sized businesses and government
agencies including long distance, international, toll-free and local voice, data and Internet protocol (IP)
services; managed services; and wholesale transport services.
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AT&T Consumer Services provides a variety of communications services to residential customers,
including domestic and international long distance, transaction-based long distance, such as operator-assisted
service and prepaid phone cards; local and local toll (intrastate calls outside the immediate local area); and
dial-up Internet.
The balance of AT&T's continuing operations (excluding LMG) is included in a ""Corporate and Other''
group. This group primarily reÖects corporate staÅ functions and the elimination of transactions between
segments. LMG was not an operating segment of AT&T prior to its split-oÅ from AT&T because AT&T did
not have a controlling Ñnancial interest in LMG for Ñnancial accounting purposes. Therefore, we accounted
for this investment under the equity method. Additionally, LMG's results were not reviewed by the chief
operating decision-makers for purposes of determining resources to be allocated.
Total assets for our reportable segments include all assets, except intercompany receivables. AT&T
prepaid pension assets and corporate-owned or leased real estate are held at the corporate level and therefore
are included in the Corporate and Other group. In addition, as the assets of discontinued operations are not
considered to be a part of AT&T's ongoing operations, they are included in a category separate from
reportable segments and the Corporate and Other group for reporting purposes. Capital additions for each
segment include capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment, additions to nonconsolidated
investments, and additions to internal-use software (which are included in ""Other assets'').
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of signiÑcant
accounting policies (see note 2). AT&T evaluates performance based on several factors, of which the primary
Ñnancial measure is earnings before interest and taxes, including pretax minority interest and net pretax losses
from other equity investments (EBIT).
Generally, AT&T accounts for inter-segment transactions at market prices. AT&T Business Services
sells services to AT&T Consumer Services at cost-based prices, which approximate market prices. Generally
AT&T Business Services accounts for these sales as contra-expense.
Revenue

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

AT&T Business Services external revenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Business Services internal revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$26,235
323

$27,264
441

$28,136
423

Total AT&T Business Services revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Consumer Services external revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

26,558
11,527

27,705
14,843

28,559
18,643

Total reportable segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate and OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

38,085
(258)

42,548
(351)

47,202
(352)

Total revenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$37,827

$42,197

$46,850

Depreciation and Amortization

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

AT&T Business Services ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Consumer ServicesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$4,546
230

$4,234
200

$4,255
167

Total reportable segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate and OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

4,776
112

4,434
125

4,422
116

Total depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$4,888

$4,559

$4,538
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Net (Losses) Earnings Related to Other Equity Investments

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

AT&T Business Services pretax net (losses) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate and Other pretax net (losses) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$(454)
(58)

$(6,482)
(1,301)

$ (8)
(43)

Total pretax (losses)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total tax beneÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(512)
112

(7,783)
2,947

(51)
61

Total net (losses) earnings related to other equity investments

$(400)

$(4,836)

Reconciliation of EBIT to Income from Continuing
Operations Before Income Taxes, Minority Interest Income
and Losses Related to Other Equity Investments
AT&T Business Services EBITÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Consumer Services EBIT ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

$ 1,638
2,647

$ 5,917
6,893

4,285
(399)

2,570
(1,063)

12,810
1,163

Total EBIT ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deduct:
Minority interest income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Pretax net (losses) related to other equity investments ÏÏÏ
Add: Interest (expense) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

3,886

1,507

13,973

114
(512)
(1,448)

131
(7,783)
(1,493)

41
(51)
(1,503)

$ 2,836

Assets
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$(2,305)
4,875

Total reportable segments EBIT ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate and Other EBIT ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Income from continuing operations before income taxes,
minority interest income and losses related to other equity
investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(1)

$ 10

$ 7,666

$12,480

At December 31,
2002
2001
(Dollars in millions)

AT&T Business ServicesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Consumer Services ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$36,365
1,674

$ 40,316
2,141

Total reportable segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate and Other assets(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total assets from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

38,039
17,233
Ì

42,457
19,872
103,152

Total Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$55,272

$165,481

Includes cash of $7.8 billion for 2002 and $10.4 billion for 2001
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Capital Additions

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(Dollars in millions)

AT&T Business Services ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Consumer ServicesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$3,716
127

$5,451
140

$6,841
148

Total reportable segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Corporate and OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

3,843
63

5,591
150

6,989
1,594

Total capital additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$3,906

$5,741

$8,583

Geographic information is not presented due to the immateriality of revenue attributable to international
customers.
ReÖecting the dynamics of our business, we continually review our management model and structure,
which may result in additional adjustment to our operating segments in the future.
16.

Related Party Transactions

AT&T had various related party transactions with Concert until the joint venture was oÇcially unwound
on April 1, 2002.
Included in ""Revenue'' was $268 million, $1.1 billion and $1.1 billion for services provided to Concert for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Included in ""Access and other connection'' are charges from Concert representing costs incurred on our
behalf to connect calls made to foreign countries (international settlements) and costs paid by AT&T to
Concert for distributing Concert products totaling $491 million, $2.1 billion and $2.4 billion for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2001, included a loan of $1.0 billion to Concert, which
was included within ""Other assets.'' Interest income of $67 million was recognized for the year ended
December 31, 2000. In the third quarter of 2001, this loan together with the associated accrued interest was
written oÅ in connection with the decision to unwind Concert (see note 7).
At December 31, 2001, AT&T had a Öoating-rate loan payable to Concert in the amount of $80 million.
The loan was included in ""Debt maturing within one year'' at December 31, 2001. This loan was paid oÅ in
conjunction with the unwind of Concert. Interest expense was $5 million and $6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Included in ""Accounts receivable'' at December 31, 2001, was $438 million related to telecommunications transactions with Concert. Included in ""Accounts payable'' at December 31, 2001, was $201 million
related to transactions with Concert.
Included in ""Other receivables'' at December 31, 2001, was $781 million related to administrative
transactions performed on behalf of Concert. Included in ""Other current liabilities'' at December 31, 2001,
was $935 million related to administrative transactions performed by Concert on behalf of AT&T.
We had various related party transactions with LMG. Included in ""Costs of services and products'' were
programming expenses related to services from LMG. These expenses amounted to $199 million for the seven
months ended July 31, 2001, the eÅective split-oÅ date of LMG for accounting purposes, and $239 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000.
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17.

Quarterly Information (Unaudited)
First
Second(1)
Third
Fourth(2)
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2002

Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net (loss) from discontinued operations (net of
income taxes) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations (net
of income taxes) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) income before cumulative eÅect of
accounting changeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting change (net of
income taxes) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Common Stock Group:(3)
Earnings (loss) per share Ì basic:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Common Stock Group (loss) earnings ÏÏÏÏÏ
Earnings (loss) per share Ì diluted:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Loss) from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏ
Cumulative eÅect of accounting change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T Common Stock Group (loss) earnings ÏÏÏÏÏ
Dividends declared ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AT&T common stock
High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Quarter-end close ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
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$ 9,548
1,634
446
(565)

$

9,580
1,592
603

(13,433)

Ì

Ì

$ 9,409
1,415
525
(318)

$ 9,290
(280)
(611)
(197)

Ì

1,324

(119)

(12,830)

207

516

(856)
(975)

Ì
(12,830)

Ì
207

Ì
516

$

0.63
$
0.83
$ 0.68
(0.80)
(18.41)
(0.41)
Ì
Ì
Ì
(1.21)
Ì
Ì
$ (1.38) $ (17.58) $ 0.27

$ (0.79)
(0.26)
1.71
Ì
$ 0.66

$

0.60
$
0.80
$ 0.67
(0.76)
(17.91)
(0.41)
Ì
Ì
Ì
(1.16)
Ì
Ì
$ (1.32) $ (17.11) $ 0.26
0.1875
0.1875
0.1875

$ (0.79)
(0.26)
1.71
Ì
$ 0.66
0.1875

$ 39.47
27.62
32.19

$ 29.42
21.43
26.11

$

32.50
18.64
21.94

$ 26.35
16.81
24.62
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2001

First
Second
Third(4)
Fourth
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $10,890
Operating incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2,451
Income (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
556
Net (loss) from discontinued operations (net of
income taxes) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(1,804)
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations (net of
income taxes) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ì
Net (loss) income before cumulative eÅect of
accounting change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(1,248)
Cumulative eÅect of accounting change (net of
income taxes) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
904
(5)
Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(344)
AT&T Common Stock Group:(3)
Earnings (loss) per share Ì basic:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.41
(Loss) from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(2.36)
Gain on disposition of discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ì
Cumulative eÅect of accounting change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
0.47
AT&T Common Stock Group (loss) earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.48)
Earnings (loss) per share Ì diluted:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.32
(Loss) from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(2.21)
Gain on disposition of discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ì
Cumulative eÅect of accounting change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
0.44
AT&T Common Stock Group (loss) earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.45)
Dividends declaredÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
0.1875
AT&T Wireless Group (loss) earnings from
discontinued operations per basic and
diluted share(3),(6) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.02)
Liberty Media Group (loss) earnings per basic and
diluted share(7) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.06)
Stock price(8)
AT&T common stock
High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 40.00
Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
27.67
Quarter-end closeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
33.92
AT&T Wireless Group common stock(6)
High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 27.30
Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
17.06
Quarter-end closeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
19.18
Liberty Media Group Class A common stock(7)
High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 17.25
Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
11.88
Quarter-end closeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
14.00

$10,602
2,265
(1,433)

$10,537
2,313
(1,547)

$10,168
803
(216)

(525)

(548)

(1,175)

Ì

13,503

Ì

(1,958)

11,408

(1,391)

Ì
(1,958)

Ì
11,408

Ì
(1,391)

$

0.51
(0.77)
Ì
Ì
$ (0.26)

$ (2.68)
(0.77)
19.10
Ì
$ 15.65

$ (0.31)
(1.66)
Ì
Ì
$ (1.97)

$

$ (2.68)
(0.77)
19.10
Ì
$ 15.65
0.1875

$ (0.31)
(1.66)
Ì
Ì
$ (1.97)
0.1875

0.48
(0.72)
Ì
Ì
$ (0.24)
0.1875

$

0.08

Ì

Ì

$ (0.82)

$

0.04

Ì

$ 37.05
31.56
35.03

$ 44.00
33.85
39.57

$ 41.01
30.24
37.19

$ 21.10
15.29
16.35

$ 19.92
12.52
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

$ 18.04
11.50
17.49

$ 17.85
14.50
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì
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2001

Liberty Media Group Class B common stock(7)
High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Quarter-end closeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

First
Second
Third(4)
Fourth
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts

$ 18.69
14.20
15.00

$ 18.75
12.50
18.15

$ 18.35
12.00
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

(1)

The loss from discontinued operations in the second quarter of 2002 included impairment charges of $16.5 billion ($11.8 billion aftertax) of goodwill and franchise costs.

(2)

Fourth quarter 2002 net income included $1,463 of net restructuring and other charges.

(3)

Earnings per share (EPS) in each quarter is computed using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the quarter
while EPS for the full year is computed using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the year. Thus, the sum of
the four quarters' EPS does not always equal the full-year EPS.

(4)

Third quarter 2001 net income included a gain on disposition of discontinued operations of $13,503, or $19.10 per share.

(5)

First quarter 2001 net income included cumulative eÅect of accounting change of $359 and $545, or $0.44 per diluted share and $0.21
per share, for AT&T Common Stock Group and LMG, respectively, due to the adoption of SFAS No. 133.

(6)

No dividends had been declared on AT&T Wireless Group common stock. AT&T Wireless Group was split-oÅ from AT&T on July 9,
2001.

(7)

No dividend had been declared on LMG common stock. LMG was split-oÅ from AT&T on August 10, 2001.

(8)

Stock prices obtained from the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape. AT&T Common Stock prices have been restated to
reÖect the spin-oÅ of AT&T Broadband and for the 1-for-5 reverse stock split.

18.

Variable Interest Entities

As stated in note 19, AT&T is currently assessing the potential impacts of FASB Interpretation No. 46,
""Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.'' As part of that assessment, we have determined that one entity,
from which we currently lease two buildings, may be determined to be a Variable Interest Entity and subject
to consolidation. We have no ownership interest in this entity and our transactions with it have met the
requirements to be classiÑed as operating leases, with AT&T being the lessee. At the end of their respective
lease terms (including any extensions), AT&T has the option to: renew the lease for a new term, purchase the
property at the unamortized loan funding amount, or exercise the remarketing option. Under the remarketing
option, AT&T could be held liable for a loss in value relative to the properties. At December 31, 2002, our
maximum exposure was $99 million. This entity has approximately $105 million of total assets, (principally
the leased properties) and $110 million of liabilities (principally long term debt secured by the properties).
In addition, we have six leases with another entity, having characteristics similar to those described
above. It is possible that this entity may be deemed to be a VIE. We may, therefore, have variable interests in
speciÑed assets of this entity and be subject to ""silo'' consolidation of the speciÑc assets and related liabilities.
At December 31, 2002, our maximum total exposure related to this entity was $328 million. The estimated
building value is approximately $362 million and the outstanding long-term debt is approximately
$386 million.
19.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.'' This
standard requires that obligations that are legally enforceable and unavoidable, and are associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets, be recorded as liabilities when those obligations are incurred, with the
amount of the liability initially measured at fair value. The oÅset to the initial asset retirement obligation is an
increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, this liability is accreted to its future
value, and the asset is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, an
entity either settles the obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss upon settlement. SFAS
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No. 143 is eÅective for Ñnancial statements issued for Ñscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. For AT&T,
this means that the standard was adopted on January 1, 2003. AT&T currently includes in its group
depreciation rates an amount related to the cost of removal for certain assets. However, such amounts are not
legally enforceable or unavoidable; therefore, AT&T will be required to reverse the amount accrued in
accumulated depreciation. As of January 1, 2003, AT&T will report approximately $40 million as the
cumulative eÅect of a change in accounting principles related to this reversal. The impact of no longer
including the cost of removal in the group depreciation rates, coupled with the cumulative eÅect impact on
accumulated depreciation, will result in a decrease to depreciation expense in 2003. However, the costs
incurred to remove these assets will be reÖected as a cost in the period incurred as ""Costs of services and
products.''
On June 28, 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, ""Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities.'' This
statement addresses the recognition, measurement and reporting of costs that are associated with exit and
disposal activities. This statement includes the restructuring activities that are currently accounted for
pursuant to the guidance set forth in EITF 94-3, ""Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring),'' costs
related to terminating a contract that is not a capital lease and one-time beneÑt arrangements received by
employees who are involuntarily terminated -nullifying the guidance under EITF 94-3. Under SFAS No. 146
the cost associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized in the periods in which it is incurred rather
than at the date the company committed to the exit plan. This statement is eÅective for exit or disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002, with earlier application encouraged. Previously issued Ñnancial
statements will not be restated. The provisions of EITF 94-3 shall continue to apply for exit plans initiated
prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 146. Accordingly, the initial adoption of SFAS No. 146 will not have an
eÅect on AT&T's results of operations, Ñnancial position or cash Öows. Liabilities associated with future exit
and disposal activities will not be recognized until actually incurred.
In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì
Transition and Disclosure Ì an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.'' This standard provides alternate
methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation and requires more prominent disclosure about the method used. This statement is eÅective for
Ñscal years ending after December 15, 2002. For AT&T, this means it is eÅective for December 31, 2002.
Currently AT&T applies the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation'' and we do not expense our stock options. However, as previously announced, AT&T will begin
expensing all stock options issued after January 1, 2003, and will continue to apply the disclosure-only
provisions to stock options issued prior to January 1, 2003. This method of transition is in compliance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 148. The adoption of the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 will not have an
impact on AT&T's results of operations, Ñnancial position or cash Öows; however, the expensing of the stock
options issued after January 1, 2003, will have a negative impact on our results of operations.
In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 45, ""Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.'' FIN 45
requires that an entity issuing a guarantee (including those embedded in a purchase or sales agreement) must
recognize, at the inception of the guarantee, a liability equal to the fair value of the guarantee. FIN 45 also
requires detailed information about each guarantee or group of guarantees even if the likelihood of making a
payment is remote. The disclosure requirements of this interpretation are eÅective for Ñnancial statements of
periods ending after December 15, 2002, which makes them eÅective for AT&T for December 31, 2002 (see
note 9 for the disclosures required under this interpretation). The recognition and measurement provisions of
this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modiÑed after December 31,
2002. FIN 45 could have an impact on the future results of AT&T depending on guarantees issued; however,
at this time we do not believe that the adoption of this statement will have a material impact on our results of
operation, Ñnancial position or cash Öows.
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In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, ""Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities Ì an Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51.'' FIN 46 requires the primary beneÑciary to consolidate
a variable interest entity (VIE) if it has a variable interest that will absorb a majority of the entity's expected
losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity's expected residual returns if they occur, or both. FIN 46
applies immediately to VIEs created after January 31, 2003, and to VIEs in which the entity obtains an
interest after that date. For VIEs acquired before February 1, 2003, the eÅective date for AT&T is July 1,
2003. AT&T is currently in the process of determining the impact of this statement on its results of operations,
Ñnancial position and cash Öows. The disclosures relating to our present involvement with VIEs and our
maximum exposure to losses are included in note 18.
In November 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF 00-21, ""Revenue Arrangements with
Multiple Deliverables,'' related to the timing of revenue recognition for arrangements in which goods or
services or both are delivered separately in a bundled sales arrangement. The EITF requires that when the
deliverables included in this type of arrangement meet certain criteria they should be accounted for separately
as separate units of accounting. This may result in a diÅerence in the timing of revenue recognition but will not
result in a change in the total amount of revenue recognized in a bundled sales arrangement. The allocation of
revenue to the separate deliverables is based on the relative fair value of each item. If the fair value is not
available for the delivered items then the residual method must be used. This method requires that the amount
allocated to the undelivered items in the arrangement is their full fair value. This would result in the discount,
if any, being allocated to the delivered items. This consensus is eÅective prospectively for arrangements
entered into in Ñscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003, which, for AT&T, is July 1, 2003. AT&T is
currently evaluating the impact of this consensus on its results of operations, Ñnancial position and cash Öows.
In January 2003, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF 02-18, ""Accounting for Subsequent
Investments in an Investee after Suspension of Equity Method Loss Recognition.'' This consensus states that
if the additional investment, in whole or in part, represents the funding of prior losses, the investor should
recognize previously suspended losses. This determination would be based on various factors including
whether the investment results in an increased ownership percentage, the fair value of the consideration
received is equivalent to the consideration paid and whether the investment is acquired from a third party or
directly from an investee. If any of these provisions are met, the additional investment would generally not be
considered as funding prior losses. When appropriate to recognize prior losses, the amount recognized would
be limited to the amount of the additional investment determined to represent the funding of prior losses. The
consensus will be eÅective for additional investments made after February 5, 2003.
20.

Subsequent Events

In January 2003, AT&T early retired $3.7 billion of long-term notes. In February 2003, AT&T redeemed
exchangeable notes that were indexed to AT&T Wireless common stock and subsequently sold its remaining
AT&T Wireless holdings. For further information on these items, see notes 7 and 8.
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O AT&T Board of Directors

David W. Dorman, 49
Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer since
November 2002. Elected to the
Board in 2002.
Kenneth T. Derr, 66
Retired Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of
Chevron Corporation, an
international oil company.
Director since 1995. 2, 3
M. Kathryn Eickhoff, 64
President of Eickhoff Economics,
Inc., an economic consulting firm.
Director since 1987. 1, 3

Frank C. Herringer, 60
Chairman of the Board and
former Chief Executive Officer of
Transamerica Corporation, a
financial services company,
which was acquired in 1999 by
Aegon N.V., an international
insurance organization. Elected
to the Board in 2002. 1, 2

Donald F. McHenry, 66
Distinguished Professor in the
Practice of Diplomacy at the
School of Foreign Service at
Georgetown University, and
President of IRC Group LLC,
international relations
consultants. Director since 1986.
1, 3

Amos B. Hostetter, Jr., 66
Chairman of Pilot House Associates, LLC, a family investment
company. Director since 1999.
1, 2

Tony L. White, 56
Chairman of the Board, President,
and Chief Executive Officer of
Applera Corporation, a life sciences company. Elected to the
Board in 2002. 2, 3

Shirley Ann Jackson, Ph.D., 56
President of Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute. Elected to
the Board in 2001. 2, 3
Jon C. Madonna, 59
Retired Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of KPMG, an
international accounting and
consulting firm. Director since
2002. 1

1. Audit Committee
2. Compensation and Employee
Benefits Committee
3. Governance and Nominating
Committee
Ages are as of April17, 2003.
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David W. Dorman
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Mirian Graddick-Weir
Executive Vice President
Human Resources

Betsy J. Bernard
President

Thomas W. Horton
Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer

James W. Cicconi
General Counsel and Executive
Vice President
Law and Government Affairs
Hossein Eslambolchi
President of AT&T Labs,
Chief Technology Officer and
AT&T Business Chief
Information Officer

Frank Ianna
President
AT&T Network Services
John C. Petrillo
Executive Vice President
Corporate Strategy and
Business Development

John Polumbo
President and Chief Executive
Officer
AT&T Consumer
Kenneth E. Sichau
President
AT&T Business Sales
Constance K. Weaver
Executive Vice President
Public Relations, Brand &
Business Marketing

Other Corporate Officers
Nicholas S. Cyprus
Vice President and Controller

Robert S. Feit
Vice President, Law
and Corporate Secretary

Richard E. Sullivan, Jr.
Investor Relations Vice President

Edward M. Dwyer
Vice President and Treasurer
John Petrillo, Mirian GraddickWeir, John Polumbo

David Dorman, Betsy Bernard,
Tom Horton

Hossein Eslambolchi,
Ken Sichau

Jim Cicconi, Connie Weaver,
Frank Ianna
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Corporate Headquarters
One AT&T Way
Bedminster, NJ 07921-0752
Business
AT&T Business has relationships
with about 4 million business customers worldwide who depend on
AT&T for voice, data, Internet and
managed solutions. For more
information about AT&T Business
and our products and services,
visit our Web site at www.att.com/
business. Small/medium business
customers can find the right
communications solution with
the convenience of on-line sales
and service by visiting
www.att.com/businesscenter/smb
ushome.html. Large/ global business customers can access our
expansive set of local to global
business solutions by visiting
www.att.com/businesscenter/lgbu
shome.html. Government customers can locate our suite of integrated technology solutions with
professional service expertise by
visiting www.att.com/gov.
Consumer
AT&T Consumer has nearly 50 million customer relationships and
offers services as diverse as long
distance and local services,
domestic and international calling
plans, prepaid and subscriber
calling cards, and dial-up and
broadband Internet access.
AT&T Consumer also offers customers the convenience of online
billing, ordering and customer service. To order a consumer service,
visit our Web site at
www.consumer.att.com.

AT&T on the World Wide Web
The AT&T Internet home page –
www.att.com – is your entry point
to a vast array of services and
information. One of the most visited sites on the Internet, att.com
gives you access to the latest
AT&T products for your home,
along with the convenience and
security of online ordering and
billing. The site connects business
customers to the services and
innovation that give their companies a competitive advantage. In
addition, you can navigate to current company news, connections
to investor and corporate information and the latest advances from
AT&T Labs.
AT&T Giving
For more than 100 years, AT&T
has built a tradition of investing in
local communities through our
ongoing support for education,
civic and community service, the
environment and the arts. In 2002,
the AT&T Foundation contributed
nearly $40 million to nonprofit
organizations in local communities
throughout the United States and
many other countries. Also in
2002, AT&T employees volunteered nearly 750,000 hours of
community service through the
AT&T CARES program. For more
information on the AT&T Foundation and AT&T CARES, visit our
Web site at
www.att.com/foundation.
Environment, Health & Safety
AT&T is dedicated to creating a
safe and healthy workplace for
AT&T employees and strives to
maintain our reputation as one of
the top corporate environmental
champions. More information
about AT&T's environment,
health and safety initiatives may
be found at our Web site:
www.att.com/ehs/.

TelecomPioneers
Since 1911, AT&T has been a
sponsor of TelecomPioneers (formerly Telephone Pioneers of
America), the world's largest,
industry-based volunteer organization. AT&T employees and
retirees comprise more than
57,000 of its members. In 2002,
TelecomPioneers awarded the
AT&T Pioneers its first President's
Innovation Award. For more information on the AT&T Pioneers, visit
our Web site at
www.attpioneers.org.
Supplier Diversity Initiative
As part of AT&T's Supplier Diversity initiative, approximately $870
million of AT&T's total purchases in
2002 were made from minority-,
women- and service-disabled veteran-owned business enterprises.
More information is available at our
Web site:
www.att.com/supplier_diversity/.
AT&T Communications Action
Network (CAN)
On February 20, the FCC
announced its Triennial Review
decision, approving new rules to
give states more authority over the
$125 billion U.S. local-telephone
market. Jim Cicconi, AT&T Corp.
General Counsel and Executive
Vice President, Law and Government Affairs, said, “the result is
that consumers will see lower
prices and more choices in the
marketplace, and the economy will
experience more investment and
greater innovation.” To learn more
about this and other important
AT&T public policy issues, visit the
CAN Web site at www.attcan.org.
While you’re there, sign up and
join our Communications Action
Network!
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Shareowner Services
You can get up-to-the-minute information about your AT&T investment 24 hours a day by visiting
www.att.com/ir – the AT&T Investor
Relations Web site – where you will
find current stock quotes, historical stock prices, financial results,
tax basis information, investor
news and online access to your
AT&T shareowner account. Get
fast information about how to
arrange for the direct deposit of
dividends, change your address,
reinvest your dividends or transfer
ownership of your shares. If you
need more information, send an
e-mail to att@equiserve.com, or
contact us by phone at 1-800-3488288. Our interactive voiceresponse system can answer most
of your questions 24 hours a day,
seven days a week. Representatives are available Monday
through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.
(Eastern), to assist you. Shareowners outside the United States may
call 1-816-843-4282. Shareowners
using a telecommunications
device for the deaf (TDD) may
call 1-800-822-2794. Our fax
number is 1-781-575-3261, and
our mailing address is:
AT&T Shareowner Services,
c/o EquiServe, P.O. Box 43007,
Providence, RI 02940-3007.
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Electronic Access to Proxy
Materials
In an effort to reduce the printing
and mailing costs associated with
the distribution of the AT&T Annual
Report and Proxy Statement, AT&T
registered shareowners can electronically access, view and download the AT&T Annual Report and
Proxy Statement and other materials at the AT&T Investor Relations
Web site at www.att.com/ir. AT&T
shareowners can choose this
option by marking the “Electronic
Access” box on the proxy card or
by following the instructions provided when voting by telephone or
the Internet. If you choose this
option prior to each shareowner
meeting, you will receive your
proxy card, which provides a
notice of meeting and a businessreply envelope. Beneficial owners
can request the electronic-access
option by contacting their broker
or financial institution.
Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Participating in the AT&T Shareowner Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan (DRP) is a
convenient, systematic way to
build your investment. Under Dividend Reinvestment, all or a portion
of your dividends are automatically
reinvested to purchase additional
shares of AT&T common stock.
Participants receive periodic
account statements tracking reinvestment transactions and
account balances. Additional
shares of AT&T common stock can
be purchased with cash or automatic monthly investments from
your bank account. Fees may
apply to certain transactions. To
obtain a Plan prospectus, contact
EquiServe at 1-800-348-8288.

Direct Registration of AT&T Shares
AT&T shareowners are finding it
convenient to have shares held in
the Direct Registration System,
which gives you full ownership
of your shares. With Direct Registration, AT&T's transfer agent
(EquiServe) holds the shares in
your name. You retain full ownership and continue to receive all
AT&T dividends, shareowner communications, annual reports and
proxy-voting material. You can
easily get your account balance or
sell your shares by phone or via
the Internet. It's safe and convenient. For more information on this
service, contact EquiServe at
1-800-348-8288.
Stock Information
AT&T (ticker symbol “T”) is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange,
as well as the Boston, Chicago,
Cincinnati, Pacific and Philadelphia exchanges in the United
States; and the Euronext-Paris,
and the London and Geneva stock
exchanges. As of December, 31,
2002, AT&T had approximately
783 million shares outstanding,
held by more than 3.3 million
shareowners.
Additional Financial Information
A copy of AT&T’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commision, may
be obtained free of charge by
sending a request to:
One AT&T Way
Bedminster, NJ 07921
Attention: Investor Relations
or may be accessed electronically
at www.att.com/ir/.

O Our Common Bond

We commit to these values to
guide our decisions and behavior:
Respect for Individuals
We treat each other with respect
and dignity, valuing individual and
cultural differences. We communicate frequently and with candor,
listening to each other regardless
of level or position. Recognizing
that exceptional quality begins
with people, we give individuals
the authority to use their capabilities to the fullest to satisfy their
customers. Our environment supports personal growth and continuous learning for all AT&T people.
Dedication to Helping Customers
We truly care for each customer.
We build enduring relationships by
understanding and anticipating
our customers’ needs and by serv-

ing them better each time than the
time before. AT&T customers can
count on us to consistently deliver
superior products and services
that help them achieve their personal or business goals.
Highest Standards of Integrity
We are honest and ethical in all our
business dealings, starting with
how we treat each other. We keep
our promises and admit our mistakes. Our personal conduct
ensures that AT&T’s name is
always worthy of trust.
Innovation
We believe innovation is the
engine that will keep us vital and
growing. Our culture embraces
creativity, seeks different perspectives and risks pursuing new
opportunities. We create and
rapidly convert technology into
products and services, constantly
searching for new ways to make
technology more useful to customers.

Teamwork
We encourage and reward both
individual and team achievements. We freely join with colleagues across organizational
boundaries to advance the interests of customers and shareowners. Our team spirit extends to
being responsible and caring partners in the communities where we
live and work.
By living these values, AT&T
aspires to set a standard of excellence worldwide that will reward
our shareowners, our customers,
and all AT&T people.
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